Public Document Pack

PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT
COMMITTEE
Thursday, 10 June 2021 at 9.30 am
Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Silver
Street, Enfield, EN1 3XA

Contact: Koulla Panaretou
Governance and Scrutiny Secretary
Direct: 020 8379 4835
Tel: 020 8379 1000
E-mail: Koulla.panaretou@enfield.gov.uk
Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk

PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT
COMMITTEE
Thursday, 10th June, 2021 at 9.30 am in the Council Chamber, Civic
Centre, Silver Street, Enfield, EN1 3XA
Membership:
Councillors: Tim Leaver,
Terence Neville OBE JP

Claire Stewart,

Doug Taylor,

Edward Smith

and

AGENDA – PART 1
1.

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS
Members of the Council are invited to identify any disclosable pecuniary,
other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests relevant to the items on the
agenda.

3.

MINUTES FROM THE LAST MEETING (Pages 1 - 4)
To receive and agree the minutes from the last meeting held on 25 th March
2021.

4.

PENSION BOARD FEEDBACK
To receive feedback from the last Pension Board from the Chair and Vice
Chair.

1

5.

REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF ADMISSION POLICY (Pages 5 - 24)
To review and approve the Admissions Policy presented by Julie Barker.

6.

QUARTERLY INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT DATED 31ST
MARCH 2021 (Pages 25 - 190)
To receive the quarterly Investment Performance report dated 31 st March
2021.

7.

ECONOMIC AND MARKET OUTLOOK
To receive a presentation from Daniel Carpenter of Aon in respect of
Economic and Market Outlook.

8.

KEY DEVELOPMENTS ON INVESTMENTS & ASSET MANAGERS
UPDATE
To receive a presentation from Joseph Peach of Aon on the key
developments on investments and an asset managers update.

9.

LGPS UPDATE (Pages 191 - 200)
To receive an update by Bola Tobun on several general developments
affecting the Local Government Pensions Scheme to meet the Councils
duties in respect of the efficient management of the pension fund.

10.

REVIEW OF WORK PLAN FOR 2021-2022 (Pages 201 - 210)
To receive the work plan covering the municipal year 2021-2022.

11.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

12.

BREAK (10 MINS)
PART 2 AGENDA

13.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES FOR THE INVESTMENT CONSULTANT
(Pages 211 - 244)
To receive the Strategic Objectives for the investment consultant from AON.

14.

INVESTMENT STRATEGY REVIEW UPDATE (Pages 245 - 272)
To receive a presentation from AON on the updated Investment Strategy
review.

15.

INVESTMENTS CONSIDERATIONS & LCIV INVESTMENT OFFERINGS
UPDATE

2

To receive investment considerations and an update on the LCIV Investment
offerings.

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1
Public Document
Pack

Agenda Item 3

PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE - 25.3.2021

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT
COMMITTEE
HELD ON THURSDAY, 25 MARCH 2021
COUNCILLORS
PRESENT

Tim Leaver, Claire Stewart, Doug Taylor, Edward Smith and
Terence Neville OBE JP

ABSENT

Ergun Eren

OFFICERS:

Bola Tobun (Finance Manager – Pensions & Treasury), Clare
Bryant (Secretary)

Also Attending:

Carolan Dobson (Independent Advisor), Daniel Carpenter
(Aon), and Joe Peach (Aon)
Pauline Kettless (Chair of the Local Pension Board)
Councillors Ahmet Oykener (Local Pension Board Member)

1
WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS
Councillor Tim Leaver (Chair) welcomed everyone to the virtual meeting and
Members and Officers were introduced.
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Ergun Eren.
2
DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS
3
MINUTES FROM THE LAST MEETING
The minutes of the previous meeting on 28 January 2021 were agreed.
4
LOCAL PENSION BOARD FEEDBACK
Pauline Kettless, Chair of the Local Pension Board, provided an update on the
Boards work and informed the Committee that the Board is working well.
Pauline raised concerns over members attendance at the Board.
5
LGPS UPDATE
The Committee received a report from the Finance Manager – Pensions &
Treasury. The following points were noted:

-1-

Page 2
PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE - 25.3.2021






The Exit Payment regulations have been disapplied. Further advice is
expected on how members already affected by the regulations will be
dealt with and a new scheme;
The Good Governance Project has now been completed and
regulations are expected soon. Enfield Council is currently looking at its
Pension Fund, and inviting scheme members to be non-voting
members of the Committee; and
All pension funds in England and Wales will be compared on their
performance. Once Enfield receives its report it will be shared with the
Group.

ACTIONS: Bola to report back to the Committee on how those affected
by the Exit Payment regulations will be dealt with, including the number
of former officers affected.
6
ANY OTHER BUSINESS
It was discussed whether hold an AGM for the Board would be useful. The
Chair of the Local Pension Board agreed it would be.
7
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
The Committee AGREED that in accordance with Section 100(A) of the Local
Government Act 1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for
the item moved to part two of the agenda on the grounds that it involved the
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 (information
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including
the authority holding that information) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order
2006).
8
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES FOR THE INVESTMENT CONSULTANT
The Committee received a report from Finance Manager – Pensions &
Treasury who explained the report in detail.
The Committee agreed to defer this item to the Committee’s next meeting in
order for the current reviews to be completed.
9
QUARTERLY INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT - 31 DECEMBER
2020
The Committee received a report from Finance Manager – Pensions &
Treasury.

-2-

Page 3
PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE - 25.3.2021

Following discussions the Committee noted the report, and that the Council
the good position the Council is currently in.
10
ECONOMIC AND MARKET OUTLOOK; AND KEY DEVELOPMENTS ON
INVESTMENTS & ASSET MANAGERS UPDATE
The items “Economic and Market Outlook” and “Key Development on
Investments & Asset Managers Update were taken together.
Joe Peach from AON presented on the above. This included information on
markets, budgets and updates on funds recent evaluations. AONs optimism
for economic recovery following the Coronavirus pandemic is in line with other
market participants. Joe provided details on asset managers currently under
review.
The Strategy review will look at diversification.
11
LONDON CIV QUARTERLY AND INVESTMENTS OFFERINGS UPDATE
The Committee received a report from Finance Manager – Pensions &
Treasury. The Committee noted the report and that Enfield Council is currently
in the middle of the Investment Strategy Review.
It was discussed that London CIV had improved their reporting.
The Committee agreed to bring this item back to its next meeting for the
Finance Manager – Pensions & Treasury to provide an update on Enfield
Council working with the London CIV.
12
PRESENTATION ON INVESTMENT STRATEGY REVIEW UPDATE
Daniel Carpenter, AON, presented on the Investment Strategy Review. The
Review focus on liquidity, complexity, ESG and diversification.
The Committee agreed to hold a meeting in April 2021 to make a decision
regarding the Strategy Review.
ACTION: Clare Bryant and Bola Tobun to organise a date for the
meeting.
13
REVIEW OF ENFIELD PF RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT POLICY
The Committee received a report from Finance Manager – Pensions &
Treasury. The Committee noted that there is a net zero goal for pensions by
2025. Concerns were raised over whether this was doable.
The report was noted and the commitment to the target was agreed.

-3-

Page 4
PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE - 25.3.2021

ACTION: Bola Tobun, Matt Bowmer and AON to work on creating a plan
to ensure the target is met.
14
PROCUREMENT UPDATE
The Committee agreed to bring this item to its next meeting in order for in
depth discussions to be able to take place.

-4-

Page 5

Agenda Item 5

London Borough of Enfield
Pension Policy and Investment Committee
Meeting Date: 10.06.2021

Subject:

Enfield Pension Fund Admissions Policy

Cabinet Member:

Cllr Maquire

Executive Director: Fay Hammond
Key Decision:

n/a

Purpose of Report
1.

In accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
Regulations, associated legislation and the Pension Policy and Investment
Committee (PPIC) terms of reference, the Committee is responsible for all
functions and responsibilities relating to the management of the Enfield
Pension Fund.

2.

The PPIC is required to agree the Administrating Authority’s policies,
particularly when they involve the admission of bodies to the Pension Fund.
The proposed Admissions Policy is attached at Appendix A.

3.

The purpose of this report is to seek agreement to adopt the revised
Admissions Policy for both new employers and existing employers in the
Fund.

Proposal
4.

To agree the terms in which the Administering Authority can approve
employers to the Fund, where employers employ eligible employees.

Reason for Proposal
5.

The Administering Authority has been working with the Council’s actuaries,
Aon to review the current Admission Policy to ensure statutory compliance
and to develop a more pragmatic approach when agreeing admission
agreements.

6.

Since the last Fund triannual valuation there has been an increase in the
number of requests to admit employers to the Enfield Fund, particularly
from employers who have won catering and cleaning contracts from schools
and academy trusts.

Page 6
7.

Whilst the current Admissions Policy provides a pooling arrangement for
small admitted bodies, with 10 or fewer active members it does not address
school cluster arrangements. This occurs when contactors have won
several school contracts, under one service agreement with an academy
trust scheme employer.

8.

The current policy does not provide an alternative approach to the
requirement for an indemnity or a bond. On occasions this requirement
provides an issue for small employers and, on occasions they have
consequently withdrawn their bid.

9.

The proposed changes to the Admission Policy allows for a passthrough
pooling arrangement, not restricted to the number of staff transferring with
an additional contribution of pensionable pay in lieu of an indemnity/bond.

Background
10. Schedule 2 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations
2013, allows membership to two types of employers, ‘Scheme Employers’
and ‘Admission Bodies’.
11. Scheme employers must provide automatic admission into the pension
scheme for all eligible employees they employ. Enfield Council and
academies in the Borough are examples of scheme employers in the
Enfield Fund.
12. Admission bodies can provide access to the pension scheme through an
admission agreement. Companies who have won school cleaning and
catering contracts are examples of admission bodies in the Enfield Fund.
A list of scheme employers and admission bodies, as at the last fund
valuation is set out in appendix B.
13. As admission bodies do not automatically qualify as employers within the
Scheme they must comply with the requirements set out in the regulations.
In 1999 admitted body status provisions were extended to allow contractors,
who take on local authority services to offer staff transferring continued
eligibility to the LGPS during the contract period.
14. Where a scheme employer decides to outsource services to a new
contractor, the new contractor can seek continued membership into the
LGPS for those transferring employees by entering into an admission
agreement.
15. New employers can choose not to seek membership into the LGPS but they
will need to offer transferred employees membership of a certified broadly
comparable pension scheme.
16.

2

An admission agreement may be ‘open’ or ‘closed’ to new employees of the
admitted body. The Enfield Admission Agreement offers a closed scheme,
as it is only open to those employees who have transferred from another
scheme employer. Employees are listed on a schedule within the

Page 7
admission agreement and will include active members of the LGPS or those
eligible at the point of transfer.
17. To protect the Pension Fund against any identified risk, the new admission
body employer is required to provide a bond or indemnity to meet that level
of risk. The Fund’s actuaries, Aon calculate the value of the bond required.
18. Aon will also calculate the employer contribution, payable by the admitted
body by reviewing the profile of the eligible employees/members joining as
part of the agreement. The rate will ensure that the benefits which accrue to
members are funded over the period of the contract. The employer
contribution rate is reviewed at each triennial actuarial valuation.
19. The current Admissions Agreement allows employers to be grouped
together in a pooling arrangement which has a single funding target. These
arrangements are also set out in the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement.
The Enfield Pension Fund has a number of employers having a ‘pooled’
arrangement and thus having been certified to have a contribution rate
equal to the rate payable by Enfield Council in accordance with the policy.
This arrangement currently only applies to small admitted bodies with 10 or
fewer active members.
20. An admission agreement must terminate if the employer ceases to be an
admission body i.e., if the contract terminates, the last active members
leaves employment or opts out of the fund etc. On termination an actuarial
valuation of the outstanding liabilities is undertaken. On receipt of a revised
rates and adjustment certificate the admitted body is required to pay the
contributions due (cessation costs).

Main Considerations
21. The proposed changes to the Fund’s Admission Policy and revised
admissions agreements include all the required features as detailed above.
Additional flexibility has however been added to assist schedule bodies to
successfully outsource services whilst protecting the Fund and its members.
22. The proposed policy changes include passthrough pooling arrangements.
This arrangement can be requested by a schedule body and must be
agreed by the administering authority. This arrangement allows an
employer to enter the same funding pool as the relevant scheme employer.
Liabilities of the admission body will be allocated to the Pool.
23. The passthrough pooling approach allows future admitted body employers
to be allocated the same employer rate as the schedule body. The
employer rate is therefore available at the point of tenders being sought.
New potential employers can include pension costs in their bid and be
provided with information regarding admission agreements early in the
process.
24. The other proposed policy change relates to bonds and indemnities. In a
pooled arrangement, if it is not desirable for an admitted body, for whatever
3

Page 8
reason to obtain an indemnity/bond, the scheme employer will be required
to be the guarantor of the admission body liabilities. In this situation the
admitted body will be required to pay an additional 2% of pensionable pay
in lieu of the bond. The policy does allow for this contribution to be
increased, based on risk. This will be agreed in consultation with the
administering authority and the scheme employer.
25.

After consulting with the Fund’s Responsible Officer, an additional 2% of
pensionable pay in lieu of a bond was considered by Aon to be reasonable
and measured. It is expected that this arrangement will only be agreed by
the administering authority in relation to school catering and cleaning
contracts. It is expected that admission agreements relating to large
contracts and the outsourcing of numerous staff, will be required to provide
an indemnity/bond and will have a separate valuation and employer
contribution rate.

Safeguarding Implications
26. No Safeguarding implications arising from the report.
Public Health Implications
27. The Enfield Pension Fund indirectly contributes to the delivery of Public
Health priorities in the Borough

Equalities Impact of the Proposal
28. The Enfield Pension Fund is committed to fairness for all to apply
throughout all work and decisions made. The Administration Authority
serves all members of the Enfield Pension Fund and employees who are
eligible to join the scheme fairly, tackling inequality through the provision of
excellent services for all.
Environmental and Climate Change Considerations
29. There are no environmental and climate change considerations arising from
the report

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken
30. If the admission agreement is not agreed, scheme employers may find that
they are unable to attract the best providers to provide services to their
organisation as companies are resistant to take on pension liabilities
relating to staff who transfer to their employment.
31. The length of time to agree admission agreements and associated actuarial
costs (individual employer actuarial valuations, cessation costs, triannual
valuation costs etc) will remain.
4

Page 9

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that
will be taken to manage these risks
32. The Administering Authority's aim is to minimise risk to the Fund by
ensuring that the employers participating in the Fund are managed in a way
that ensures they can adequately fund the liabilities attributable to them
and, to pay any deficit due when leaving the Fund.
33. Aon will review contribution levels, as part of the Fund’s triannual valuation
payable by employers in a pooled arrangement to ensure that scheme
employers are adequately funded.
34. Pooling arrangements must be agreed by the relevant schedule body and
the administering authority.
35. Whilst the additional 2% of pensionable pay in lieu of a bond was
considered by Aon to be reasonable and measured the policy does allow for
this contribution to be increased, based on risk. This will be agreed in
consultation with the administering authority and the scheme employer
36. The policy regarding passthrough pooling arrangements will be monitored
and should the admission body become significantly greater in terms of
membership or the risk posed is considered material, the policy will be
reconsidered.
37. The policy and admission agreements retains all the ‘standard’ features i.e.:
individual employer contribution rate, bond/ indemnity and it compliant with
LGPS regulations and associated legislation.

Financial Implications
38. The administering authority has an obligation to pursue all liabilities owed
so that any shortfall from an individual employer does not fall back on other
employers.
39. When a passthrough pooling arrangement is agreed, on exit there will be no
cessation costs. Whilst an additional 2% contribution uplift in lieu of a bond
was considered by the Aon to be reasonable and measured, the Committee
may wish to review the additional contribution as quoted in the policy.
40. To mitigate the risk, the administering authority as well as the scheme
employer will need to agree the use of a pass through pooling arrangement
and can also increase the additional contribution, in lieu of a bond if
required.

Legal Implications
41. The amended Admissions Policy, drafted by the Council’s actuaries Aon
adhere to the LGPS Regulations 2013.
5

Page 10

Workforce Implications
42. The Admission Policy protects the rights of members and eligible
employees when transferring employment from a scheme employer. It
allows employees to remain in the LGPS as new employers can join the
scheme by entering into an admissions agreement with the Administering
Authority.
43. On reviewing the policy, protecting members’ pension rights and simplifying
the process has been considered. Historically, the process to approve
admission agreements takes time and attracts actuarial fees and on
occasion legal costs.
44. It is a very difficult time for members of the fund who are transferring to a
new employer. It is therefore important to ensure that the process is
streamlined and resolved quickly so reassurances can be provided to staff
transferring.
45. The administering authority are currently working on improving
communication to scheme employers as well as members. It is planned to
create guides for members and eligible staff who are affected by
outsourcing services.

Property Implications
46.

There are no property implications arising from this report

Other Implications – None

Options Considered
47.

Scheme and admitted body employers must meet the requirements set
out in Schedule 2 to the LGPS Regulations 2013. They must also meet
any further requirements as set out in the Administering Authorities
Admissions Policy.

48.

It is best practice to regularly review administering authority policies to
guarantee compliance and address issues to ensure policies meet the
requirements of scheme employers and protect members of the fund.

49.

Not reviewing and amending policies when applicable is not best practice.

Conclusions
50.
6

The proposed policy changes will minimise the administrative burden,
streamline, simplify and speed up the admission agreement process,

Page 11
reduce actuarial expenses and provide scheme employers with a flexible
approach to outsourcing services whilst protecting the fund and pension
rights of members.

Report Author:

Julie Barker
Head of Exchequer Services
julie.barker@enfield.gov.uk
020 8132 1231

Date of report:

01.06.2021

Appendices
Appendix A

7

Page 12
Enfield Pension Fund
Admissions Policy
1. Purpose of this Document
This document explains the policies and procedures of the London Borough of Enfield
Pension Fund (“the Fund”) in the treatment of employers including on commencement or
admission, considerations in respect of the participation of existing Admission Bodies,
and the methodology for assessment of an exit payment on exit of employers in the
Fund, administered by the London Borough of Enfield (“the Administering Authority”).
This Policy supplements the general funding policy as set out in the Funding Strategy
Statement and should be read in conjunction with that statement.
It should be noted that this statement is not exhaustive and individual circumstances
may be taken into consideration where appropriate.
Where the information relates to a particular type of employer, this will be explained. If
no type of employer is indicated the information relates to all employers in the Fund.
The Administering Authority's aim is to minimise risk to the Fund by ensuring that the
employers participating in the Fund are managed in a way that ensures they are able to
adequately fund the liabilities attributable to them and, in particular to pay any deficit due
when leaving the Fund.
The Administering Authority has an obligation to pursue all liabilities owed so that any
shortfall from an individual employer does not fall back on other employers.
2. Regulatory Background – LGPS Employers and eligibility
'Scheme employers', such as councils, academies and further and higher education
corporations, are employers which are named in the LGPS Regulations as employing
authorities. Scheme employers automatically take part in the LGPS in their own locality.
Administering authorities can admit bodies that are not Scheme employers to their Fund,
provided they satisfy certain other conditions. These are ‘Admission Bodies’.
Employees who are members of the LGPS are treated the same way whether they are
employees of admission bodies or employees of Scheme employers.
Scheme Employers
Schedule 2, Part 1 of The LGPS Regulations 2013 provides a list of bodies which have a
statutory obligation to participate in the LGPS. The list is amended from time to time.
Schedule 2, Part 2 of The LGPS Regulations 2013 provides a list of bodies that can
designate employees for access to the Scheme. This list can also be amended from time
to time. Employees of these bodies have the right to join the LGPS if they are covered
by the employer’s published admission policy or, if there is no admission policy, if their
employer designates them as a member.
Schedule 2, Part 4 of The LGPS Regulations 2013 provides a list of persons eligible for
membership and a list of scheme employers deemed to be their employer for pension
purposes. Persons in the first column of the table in Part 4 of Schedule 2 are eligible for
membership and have a right to join the LGPS (assuming they meet the entry
requirements). This list can also be amended from time to time.

8

Page 13
Types of Admission Body
The following bodies are types of potential admission body (a) a body which provides a public service in the United Kingdom which operates
otherwise than for the purposes of gain and has sufficient links with a Scheme employer
for the body and the Scheme employer to be regarded as having a community of interest
(whether because the operations of the body are dependent on the operations of the
Scheme employer or otherwise);
(b) a body, to the funds of which a Scheme employer contributes;
(c) a body representative of any Scheme employers, or
 local authorities or officers of local authorities;
(d) a body that is providing or will provide a service or assets in connection with the
exercise of a function of a Scheme employer as a result of the transfer of the service or assets by means of a contract or other arrangement,
 a direction made under section 15 of the Local Government Act 1999 (Secretary
of State's powers),
 directions made under section 497A of the Education Act 1996;
(e) a body which provides a public service in the United Kingdom and is approved in
writing by the Secretary of State for the purpose of admission to the Scheme.
An employer who wishes to join the Fund may apply to the Administering Authority for
admission. If admitted, that employer becomes an Admission Body and specified
categories of its employees can participate as members of the Fund.
The Administering Authority is responsible for deciding whether an application from an
employer to become an Admission Body within the Fund should be declined or
accepted. The employer must meet the requirements set out in Part 3 of Schedule 2 to
the LGPS Regulations 2013, and, where appropriate, the additional requirements set out
by the Administering Authority.
The Administering Authority will generally only consider admission if the body in question
is based wholly or mainly in the London Borough of Enfield or has clear links to an
existing Scheme employer of the Fund, the body has a sound financial standing and
appropriate security is in place (see section on bonds, indemnities and guarantees
below).
The Admission Body is required to have an "admission agreement" with the Fund in
respect of each contract it has with Scheme employers within the Fund, which sets out
(in conjunction with the Regulations) the conditions of participation and which employees
(or categories of employees) are eligible to be members of the Fund. The Administering
Authority has a template admission agreement which it will generally expect to be
entered into without amendment. Details are available on request.

3. New Admission Body Employers
Subsumption Commitment for Admission Bodies

9

Page 14

The Administering Authority's preference is for a Scheme employer to provide a
subsumption commitment in respect of any new Admission Bodies wishing to join the
Fund. This subsumption commitment is a guarantee that following exit from the Fund,
the assets and liabilities of the outgoing admission body will be "subsumed" into the
Scheme employer's liabilities and notional pool of Fund assets.
Where such a commitment is not available, an Ongoing Orphan Funding Target will be
adopted, to protect the Fund as set out in section 3.3 of the Funding Strategy Statement
and explained further below. In the extreme, the Administering Authority may exercise
its discretion to refuse admission to the Scheme for any admission bodies with no
subsumption commitment if this is considered appropriate to protect the interests of the
Fund. However, for paragraph 1(d) admissions where the body undertakes to meet the
requirements of the Regulations the Administering Authority must admit the eligible
employees of that body to the Fund.
Bonds, Indemnities and Guarantees
The Administering Authority will seek to minimise the risks that a new Admission Body
might create for the Fund and the other employers in the Fund. These risks will be taken
into account by the Administering Authority in considering the application for admission,
and the Administering Authority may put in place conditions on any approval of
admission to the Fund to minimise these risks, such as a satisfactory guarantee,
indemnity, bond or other appropriate agreement with the Administering Authority and a
satisfactory risk assessment. An indemnity / bond is a way of insuring against the
potential cost of the Admission Body failing by reason of insolvency, winding up or
liquidation and hence being unable to meet its obligations to the Fund.
Admission bodies under paragraph 1(d)(i) of Part 3 of Schedule 2 to the 2013
Regulations
Admission bodies under paragraph 1(d)(i) of Part 3 of Schedule 2 to the LGPS
Regulations 2013, (generally admissions as a result of a Best Value transfer), are
required to carry out an assessment of the level of risk arising on premature termination
of the provision of service or assets by reason of insolvency, winding up, or liquidation of
the admission body. This assessment has to be to the satisfaction of the Scheme
employer (i.e. the employer letting the contract) and of the Administering Authority.
Where the Administering Authority is satisfied as to the strength of covenant of the
Scheme employer, it will not usually require a minimum level of cover in order to be
"satisfied" with the risk assessment, as the risk of premature termination will fall on the
Scheme employer.
However, as agreed with the London Borough of Enfield (which is the Scheme employer
for most of the new admissions under paragraph 1(d)), the Administering Authority's
policy is to seek actuarial advice in the form of a “risk assessment report” provided by
the Fund’s Actuary. This report can be shared with the Scheme employer on the
understanding that the Fund Actuary cannot provide advice to the Scheme employer.
Based on this assessment, the Scheme employer and the Administering Authority
should decide whether or not to require the admission body to enter into an indemnity or
bond and if so at what level. The risk must be kept under review throughout the period of
the admission and assessed at regular intervals and otherwise as required by the
Administering Authority.

10

Page 15
Where, for any reason, it is not desirable for a 1(d)(i) admission body to enter into an
indemnity or bond the admission body must secure a guarantee from the Scheme
employer. In this situation the Admission Body may be required to pay additional
employer contributions to the Fund at a rate specified by the Administering Authority. In
this event, any additional contributions would be credited to the Scheme Employer's
notional share of the Fund's assets
In the event that unfunded liabilities (i.e. deficit) arise that cannot be recovered from the
admission body on termination of the admission, the indemnity or bond provider or
guarantor, these will normally fall to be met by the Scheme employer.

Other admission bodies
Other admission bodies are required to carry out an assessment of the level of risk
arising on premature termination of the provision of service or assets by reason of
insolvency, winding up, or liquidation of the admission body. This assessment has to be
to the satisfaction of the Administering Authority. The Administering Authority's policy is
to seek actuarial advice in the form of a “risk assessment report” provided by the Fund’s
Actuary. Based on this assessment, the Administering Authority will decide whether or
not to require the admission body to enter into an indemnity or bond and if so at what
level.
Where, for any reason, it is not desirable for an admission body to enter into an
indemnity or bond the admission body must secure a guarantee from:
a) a person who funds the admission body in whole or in part;
b) a person who(i)
owns, or
(ii)
controls the exercise of the functions of, the admission body; or
c) the Secretary of State in the case of an admission body(i)
which is established by or under any enactment, and
(ii)
where that enactment enables the Secretary of State to make financial
provision for that admission body, or
(iii)
which is a provider of probation services under section 3 of the Offender
Management Act 2007 (power to make arrangements for the provision of
probation services) or a person with whom such a provider has made
arrangements under subsection (3)(c) of that section.
In this situation the Admission Body will be required to pay an additional 2% of
Pensionable Pay, or other amount confirmed by the Administering Authority after
consulting with the Scheme Employer. In this event, any additional contributions would
be credited to the Scheme Employer's notional share of the Fund's assets, where
appropriate.
Ultimately, an indemnity or bond or guarantee is designed to protect the Fund in the
event that unfunded liabilities are present after the termination of an admission body.
When an admission agreement comes to its end, or is prematurely terminated for any
reason, employees may transfer to another employer, either within the Fund or
elsewhere. If this is not the case the employees will retain pension rights within the
Fund, either deferred benefits or immediate retirement benefits. Early retirements can, in
particular, create a strain on the Fund and so give rise to unfunded liabilities.
In the event that unfunded liabilities (i.e. deficit) arise that cannot be recovered from the
admission body on termination of the admission, the indemnity or bond provider or
guarantor, these will normally fall to be met by the Scheme employer in the case of

11

Page 16
paragraph 1(d) admission bodies or the Fund as a whole (i.e. all remaining employers) in
the case of other admission bodies. In this latter case the shortfall would normally fall on
the employers pro-rata to their liabilities in the Fund, and reflected in employer
contributions following the next actuarial valuation. Alternatively, if the guarantor for the
outgoing admission body was also a participant in the Fund, the outgoing admission
body's assets, liabilities and the funding deficit could be subsumed by the guarantor
within the Fund, and reflected in its contributions following the next actuarial valuation of
the Fund.
4. Funding Target
The funding target used for any particular employer will determine the level of assets
transferred to the employer in respect of transferring members, and the level of
contributions required to be paid by the employer.
The funding target depends upon what will happen to the liabilities in respect of the
employees of the employer on exit of that employer.
Where employers are grouped together in a Pool, including Passthrough Pooling
arrangements (see Section 8), a single funding target will apply that reflects the profile of
the employers participating within the Pool. For the avoidance of doubt the funding target
of the Enfield Council Pool will be the funding target for tax raising scheduled bodies.

Further details about the different funding targets is set out in section 3.3 of the Funding
Strategy Statement.
Sections 5-7 apply for employers who are not eligible to enter into a Passthrough
Pooling arrangement with a Scheme employer. Passthrough Pooling
arrangements are set out in Section 8.
5. Initial notional asset ("sub-fund") transfer
When a new employer commences in the Fund, and members transfer from another
employer in the Fund, a notional transfer of assets is needed from the original employer
to the new employer. The employer is then notionally allocated this "sub fund" of the
total Fund assets and this is tracked over time to determine the employer's funding
position.
When a new admission body starts in the Fund, they will usually start as fully funded.
This means that any past service surplus or deficit for the members who are transferring
to the new employer remains with the original employer and does not transfer to the new
employer. In other words they start with notional assets equal to their funding target.
Another option for the initial notional asset transfer is to allow for the funding level of the
original employer, and therefore to transfer any past service surplus or deficit in respect
of the transferring membership to the new employer. This is known as a "Share of Fund"
approach.
For new Admission Bodies the Administering Authority will only agree to a deficit
transferring to the new Admission Body where a subsumption commitment is in place
from a long-term secure scheduled body or other appropriate security is in place. This
share of Fund approach would normally apply to new scheduled bodies where members
are transferring from another employer in the Fund.

12

Page 17
For schools obtaining Academy status on or after 1 April 2017, unless specific instruction
is received and the agreement is reflected in the Commercial Transfer Agreement, the
Administering Authority's policy is that where the Local Authority’s sub-fund is in deficit at
the time of conversion an adjusted or "prioritised" share of Fund approach is adopted in
notionally re-allocating assets from the Local Authority to the academy in respect of the
transferring liabilities Put another way, there is a prior allocation of assets to fully fund
any deferred and pensioner liabilities for the Local Authority before assets are notionally
allocated to fund the liabilities for the members transferring to the new Academy. If the
Local Authority’s sub-fund is in surplus at the time of conversion, the new Academy will
start as fully funded, i.e. the notional assets allocated will be set equal to their funding
target.
Where the new employer will participate in a pool of employers, for example where a
multi-academy trust has requested that its academies be treated as a single employer,
the notional asset transfer would be to the relevant pool of employers.
The calculation of the employer's liabilities for employers commencing in the Fund after
1 April 2019, insofar as they impact the initial asset transfer, will allow for the following
uncertainties:




an increase of 1.5% will be applied to these liabilities to allow for the potential
increase in benefits due to the cost management process and the McCloud
judgement. The form and extent of any such increase in benefits is currently
uncertain, and so this is an approximate allowance calculated to cover the
expected increase in liabilities for an average employer in the fund. The
adjustment to apply to liabilities for new employers has been calculated
consistently with the addition to contribution rates applied at the 2019 valuation.
full indexation of GMPs assumed to be paid by the Fund for all of the new
employer’s members whose State Pension Age is on or after 1 April 2016.

This policy will be kept under review and may change at any time.

6. Employer Contribution Rate
Initial Rate
When a new employer joins the Fund, the Fund's Actuary determines the initial employer
contribution rate payable.
The employer contribution rate will be set in accordance with the Funding Strategy
Statement, taking into consideration elements such as:
 Any past service or transferred liabilities
 Whether the new employer is open or closed to new entrants
 The funding target that applies to the employer
 The funding level on commencement, and, where there is a surplus or deficit,
whether the admission agreement (if applicable) is fixed term or not, whether
open or closed and the period of any fixed term contract period or average future
working lifetime of the employee membership (as appropriate). This all
determines the length of time over which any surplus or deficit should be
recovered, and therefore the required additional contributions/reduction in
contributions relative to the ongoing cost of accruing benefits.
 Other relevant circumstances as determined by the Administering Authority on
the advice of the Fund Actuary

13

Page 18
An interim contribution rate may be set pending a more accurate calculation by the
Fund's Actuary of the employer contribution rate payable. The interim contribution rate
for the period covered by the Rates and Adjustments Certificate at the commencement
date will be equal to the contribution rate payable by the ceding employer in accordance
with the Rates and Adjustments Certificate. For the avoidance of doubt where the ceding
employer is paying capital contributions these will not be payable by the Admission Body
in addition. The Administering Authority will change these interim contribution rates
following each triennial Actuarial Valuation and at any other time at its discretion.

For Academies commencing on or after 1 April 2017, the Academy contribution rate will
be set in accordance with the Funding Strategy Statement, taking into consideration
elements such as any past service or transferred liabilities, and the funding level on
commencement.
However, for practical purposes, the contribution rate will normally be set as equal to the
local authority’s contribution rate until new rates determined at the next triennial
valuation of the Fund come into force. Where the London Borough of Enfield's notional
sub-fund is in surplus, contribution levels will be set no lower than the local authority’s
future service ("primary") contribution rate until new rates determined at the next triennial
valuation of the Fund come into force.
When a new academy joins a multi–academy trust where a single contribution rate
applies, it will pay the same contribution rate as the Trust, until the next triennial
Actuarial Valuation at which time the contributions for the Trust will be reviewed. The
Trust may elect to increase the contributions for all employers in the Trust before the
next triennial Actuarial Valuation where the addition of a new academy is likely to lead to
an increase as advised by the Fund’s Actuary.

Review of Employer Contribution Rates
The Regulations require a triennial Actuarial Valuation of the Fund. As part of each
Actuarial Valuation the contributions paid by each employer in the Fund are reviewed
and may be increased or reduced.
The employer contributions payable by employers may also be reviewed outside of the
triennial Actuarial Valuations where there has been a material change of circumstances,
such as the basis of admission changing from open to closed or where it otherwise
appears likely that the admission body may exit from the Fund, as permitted by
Regulation 64(4).
The Administering Authority monitors the active membership of closed admission bodies
and will commission a valuation from the Actuary under Regulation 64(4) where it has
reason to believe that the Admission Body may become an exiting employer before the
next triennial Actuarial Valuation.

7. Employer Exit
Where an employing authority ceases participation, whether by ceasing to be a Scheme
employer (including ceasing to be an admission body participating in the Fund), or
having no active members contributing to the Fund, an Exit valuation will be carried out
in accordance with Regulation 64. That valuation will take account of any activity as a
consequence of the exit, regarding any existing contributing members (for example any
bulk transfer payments due) and the status of any liabilities that will remain in the Fund.

14

Page 19
When employees do not transfer to another employer they will retain pension rights
within the Fund, i.e. either as a deferred pensioner or immediately taking retirement
benefits.
The assumptions adopted to value the departing employer’s liabilities for the exit
valuation will depend upon the circumstances. In particular, the exit valuation may
distinguish between residual liabilities which will become orphan liabilities, and liabilities
which will be subsumed by other employers.

The exit valuation will make allowance for prospective liabilities arising from expected
changes to the Scheme or its benefits. The Administering Authority's current policy is as
follows when calculating the liabilities in the Fund in respect of the exiting employer:




an increase of 1.5% will be applied to these liabilities to allow for the potential
increase in benefits due to the cost management process and the McCloud
judgement. The form and extent of any such increase in benefits is currently
uncertain, and so this is an approximate allowance calculated to cover the expected
increase in liabilities for an average employer in the fund. The adjustment to apply to
liabilities on exit has been calculated consistently with the addition to contribution
rates applied at the 2019 valuation.
Full indexation of GMPs assumed to be paid by the Fund for all of the exiting
employer’s members whose State Pension Age is on or after 1 April 2016.

This policy will be kept under review and may change at any time.
The departing employer will be expected to make good any deficit revealed in the exit
valuation. The fact that liabilities may become subsumed liabilities does not remove the
possibility of an exit payment being required from the outgoing employer.
However, where agreed between the parties the deficit may be transferred to the
subsuming employer or guarantor, in which case it may be possible to simply transfer
the former admission body’s members and assets to the subsuming body, without
needing to crystallise any surplus or deficit. Where any guarantee only covers an exit
deficit, it is assumed that the departing employer's liabilities will still become orphaned
within the Fund.
If there are liabilities (i.e. deficit) which cannot be recovered from the exiting employer or
any bond/indemnity, these will fall to be met by the Fund as a whole (i.e. all other
employers) unless there is a guarantor or successor body within the Fund.
In relation to employers exiting on or after 14 May 2018, where there is an agreement
between the departing employer and the accepting employer that a condition of
accepting the liabilities is that there is to be no exit credit to the exiting employer on exit,
all of the assets which are notionally allocated to the liabilities being accepted will
transfer to the accepting employer and no exit credit will be paid to the departing
employer.
In all other cases where the exit valuation above shows a surplus in relation to
employers exiting on or after 14 May 2018, the Administering Authority will determine the
amount of the exit credit payable, if any, in accordance with the LGPS Regulations and
the policy set out in the Funding Strategy Statement. Any exit credit will be payable
within 6 months of the exit date, or such longer time as the Administering Authority and
departing employer may agree. If the departing employer has not provided the Fund with
all requisite information in order for the Fund to facilitate the exit valuation within 1 month

15

Page 20
of the exit date, the Administering Authority will deem the departing employer to have
agreed to a longer period.

Any actuarial and legal costs incurred by the Administering Authority in connection with
the exit will be deducted from the surplus when determining an exit credit.

Any deficit would normally be levied on the departing employer as a single capital
payment. Under exceptional circumstances, the Administering Authority may, at its sole
discretion,
At successive triennial Actuarial Valuations the Actuary will allocate assets within the
Fund equal to the value of the orphan liabilities so that these liabilities are fully funded.
This may require a notional reallocation of assets from the ongoing employers in the
Fund.
Multi-academy trusts
Where an employer within a multi-academy trust (MAT) fails, unless that academy is an
employer in its own right there is no power within the Regulations for the Administering
Authority to commission an exit valuation under Regulation 64, unless it considers that
the MAT itself may become an exiting employer and so a valuation under Regulation
64(4) is appropriate.
In that case, where an employer within the MAT has failed, irrespective of whether or not
the Department for Education guarantee applies, the liabilities of the exiting academy will
fall to be funded by the remaining employers within the MAT rather than becoming
orphaned liabilities. The Administering Authority will direct the Fund Actuary to take this
failure into account and adjust the contributions payable by the remaining employers
within the MAT at the next triennial Actuarial Valuation.
Where employers within a MAT are individual Scheme employers for the purpose of the
Regulations, and an academy within the MAT leaves or fails, an exit valuation will be
carried out as at the date of exit. Where there is no successor body and the Department
for Education guarantee does not make good any shortfall on exit, the Administering
Authority would seek to recover any unpaid deficit from the remaining employers within
the MAT where those employers participate in the Fund. Rather than requiring a lump
sum payment, the Administering Authority may instead act on the assumption that the
remaining MAT employers have provided a subsumption commitment, which includes
subsumption of the unpaid deficit which would then fall to be recovered from ongoing
contributions. In that case the Administering Authority will instruct the Fund Actuary to
allocate the assets and liabilities of the outgoing academy across the remaining
employers in the MAT.
Suspension notices
Regulation 64 (2A) permits the suspension of an employer's liability to make an exit
payment for up to 3 years where the Administering Authority believes that the employer
is likely to have one or more active members contributing to the Fund within the period
specified in the suspension notice. In that case, the Fund will advise the employer of the
exit amount calculated by the Actuary and serve a written suspension notice on the
employer. Whilst under such a suspension notice, the employer must continue to pay
any deficit payments certified to the Fund as if it were an ongoing employer and the
actuary will recalculate any deficit and contributions due at the next Actuarial Valuation.
8. Passthrough Pooling arrangements

16

Page 21

At the request of the relevant Scheme employer, and with the consent of the
Administering Authority, an Admission Body admitted under Paragraph 1(d) of Part 3,
Schedule 2 of the LGPS Regulations can be admitted on a Passthrough Pooling
arrangement. This approach allows an employer to be entered into the same funding
pool ("Pool") as the relevant Scheme employer, with the liabilities of the Admission Body
being allocated to the Pool. No notional asset sub-fund will be determined for the
Admission Body.
Employer contribution rate
For Admission Agreements entered into after August 2019, the details of the contribution
requirements for the Admission Body will be set out in the Admission Agreement.
For Admission Agreements entered into before August 2019, where the Admission Body
is certified a contribution rate equal to the rate payable by Enfield Council in accordance
with the policy for an employer with 10 or fewer active members, the Passthrough
Pooling arrangements set out in this policy and the Funding Strategy Statement will
apply to that body with effect from August 2020. Where the relevant Scheme employer is
not Enfield Council, contribution rates will continue at the certified rates until they are
next reviewed in accordance with the Regulations.
An interim contribution rate will be payable by the Admission Body for the period
covered by the Rates and Adjustments Certificate in force at the commencement date
equal to the contribution rate payable by the ceding employer (or Enfield Council in the
case of Admission Agreements entered into before August 2020 in accordance with that
Rates and Adjustments Certificate. For the avoidance of doubt where the ceding
employer is paying capital contributions these will not be payable by the Admission Body
in the interim period.
Contributions for employers within a Pool will be calculated using appropriate methods
and assumptions, considering the circumstances of the employers participating in a Pool
in aggregate, in accordance with the principles set out within the Funding Strategy
Statement.
In particular:

17



In accordance with the 2013 Regulations, the Primary Contribution Rate will be
expressed as a percentage of the Pensionable Pay (as defined under Regulation
20 of the 2013 Regulations) of those employees of the employers of the Pool
who are active members of the Fund. There will be a common Primary
Contribution Rate applied to all employers in the Pool.



For the purpose of certifying a Secondary Contribution Rate to ongoing
employers in the Pool:
o any deficit of the Fund relating to the participation of the employers in the
Pool in aggregate will be assigned to all the employers of the Pool
collectively. The Secondary Contribution Rate of the Pool will be shared
between the employers in the Pool in proportion to Pensionable Pay. This
will either be effected through certification of the Secondary Contribution
Rate as a percentage of Pensionable Pay, or certification of a stream of
additional capital payments that will be allocated between the Pool
participants in proportion to Pensionable Pay at the relevant valuation
date. The Administering Authority will consider requests from the relevant
Scheme employer for all capital payments to be allocated to the relevant
Scheme employer.

Page 22

o



any surplus of the Fund relating to the participation of the employers in
the Pool in aggregate will be assigned to all the employers of the Pool
collectively. The assignment will be as a percentage reduction to the
Primary Contribution Rate of the Pool.

In the case of Admission Bodies admitted under Paragraph 1(d) of Part 3,
Schedule 2 of the LGPS Regulations, where 10 or fewer employees who are
eligible for LGPS membership are transferring to the Admission Body on the
commencement date of that agreement, the Administering Authority's current
policy is to require a Passthrough Pooling arrangement with the relevant Scheme
Employer, unless there is a an express request from either the relevant Scheme
Employer or Admission Body that this should not apply. This policy is in place to
minimise administrative burden and actuarial and other expenses in relation to
small employers. The risk posed in relation to these Admission Bodies is
currently considered by the Administering Authority to be acceptable. However,
the position in regard to these Admission Bodies is monitored and should the
Admission Body become significantly greater in terms of membership or the risk
posed by such Admission Bodies is considered material, the policy will be
reconsidered. In any event, the policy will be kept under review at future
actuarial valuations.

Review of Employer Contribution Rates
It is not anticipated that an Admission Body admitted on a Pooled Passthrough
arrangement will have their contributions reviewed in between formal Actuarial
Valuations unless a review is undertaken of the Pool's contribution rate.
Employer Exit
Any exit payment or credit (within the meaning of the 2013 Regulations) will be deemed
to be nil.
Bonds, Indemnities and Guarantees
The relevant Scheme employer of a Pooled Passthrough arrangement will be required to
be the guarantor of the Admission Body's liabilities. The Scheme employer must
consider the regulatory requirement to undertake an assessment of risk for the purpose
of deciding if a bond or other indemnity should be required, as set out in Section 3 of this
policy.

9. Responsibilities of employers in the Fund
Individual employers will pay for any legal and actuarial costs incurred by the Fund on
their behalf.
Employers should have regard to the Administering Authority's administration strategy
and their responsibilities as set out in the Funding Strategy Statement at all times.
All employers need to inform the Administering Authority of any changes to their
organisation that will impact on their participation in the Fund. This includes changes of
name or constitution or mergers with other organisations or other decisions which will or
may materially affect the employer's Fund membership, including but not limited to:

18

Page 23







an admission body closing to new entrants
a scheduled body setting up a wholly owned company to employ new staff
merging with another organization, whether a participant in the Fund or not (e.g.
colleges merging under the Area Review process or housing companies
merging)
an application by a 6th form college to become a 16-19 academy, including
whether successful or not
a material change in the funding of the organization including a reduction in
grants from local or central government or a shift in the balance of funding
a large scale redundancy exercise which could materially reduce the employer's
active membership

Employers considering outsourcing any services should have regard to and adhere to
the requirements of the Fair Deal Policy/Best Value direction. They should also advise
the Administering Authority at the earliest opportunity and before any transfer of staff so
that the necessary paperwork and calculations can be completed.

Date Adopted:

Appendix B

19

Page 24

20

Page 25

Agenda Item 6

London Borough of Enfield
PENSION POLICY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
Meeting Date: 10 June 2021

Subject:

Quarterly Investment Report for March 2021

Cabinet Member:

Cllr Maguire

Executive Director:

Fay Hammond

Key Decision:

[

]

This report informs Members of the performance of the Pension Fund and its
investment managers for the fourth quarter of 2020/21.
Over the quarter to 31
March 2021 the Fund
posted a positive
return of c.2.29%

Over the three-month period to 31 March 2021 all Equity
markets delivered positive returns in both local currency
and sterling terms. The Fund outperformed its benchmark
by 1.65%. Fund value was £1.395bn, a £31m increase
from the December quarter end.

For the quarter
fourteen mandates
matched/achieved
benchmark return

For this quarter, fourteen out of twenty mandates
delivered returns, matching or achieving returns above
the set benchmark. The six mandates lagging the set
benchmark for the quarter were LCIV JPMorgan EM,
LCIV BG Alpha, MFS Global Equity, M&G Inflation, Antin
and LGIM.

The Fund’s
investments
underperformed its
benchmark over the
12-month period

Over the twelve-month period to 31 March 2021, the Fund
outperformed its benchmark by 4.55%. For the year to 31
March 2021, sixteen out of twenty mandates delivered
returns, matching or achieving returns above the set
benchmark. The following portfolios generated significant
amount of unrealised losses: MFS Global Equity -2.28%,
LCIV Longview -2.99%, Adam Street -2.62% and York
Capital -20.53%

Longer-term
performance, the Fund Looking at the longer-term performance, the three-year
return for the Fund was 1.23% per annum above its
outperformed its
benchmark return and for over five years, the Fund posted
benchmark return
a strong return of 8.63% outperforming the benchmark
return of 7.90% by 0.72% per annum.
Fund is broadly in line
with benchmark
The distribution of the Fund’s assets amongst the
weightings
different asset classes is broadly in line with the strategic
benchmark weight, albeit there is a need to rebalance the
assets and equities is mildly overweight. The overweight
position in equities has helped the fund’s performance in
recent months.

Page 26

Purpose of Report
1.

The Pension Fund Regulations require that the Council establishes
arrangements for monitoring the investments of the Fund. It considers the
activities of the investment managers and ensures that proper advice is
obtained on investment issues.

2.

Officers and fund advisers meet regularly with investment managers to
discuss their strategy and performance and if considered necessary may
recommend that investment managers are invited to explain further to the
Pension Policy & Investment Committee.
Proposal(s)

3.

Pension Policy and Investments Committee are recommended to note the
contents of this report.
Reason for Proposal(s)

4.

The report informs the Pension Policy and investment Committee of the
performance of pension fund managers and the overall performance of the
Enfield Pension Fund.

5.

Relevance to the Council’s Corporate Plan

6.

Good homes in well-connected neighbourhoods.

7.

Build our Economy to create a thriving place.

8.

Sustain Strong and healthy Communities.
Background
INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

9.

The overall value of the Fund at 31 March 2021 stood at £1,395m, an
increase of £31m from its value of £1,364m as at 31 December 2020. Markets
have bounced back sharply as initial outbreaks across major developed
economies slowed and unprecedented fiscal and monetary stimulus
measures boosted markets.

10.

The fund outperformed the benchmark this reporting quarter by posting a
return of 2.29% against benchmark return of 0.64%. The twelve-month period
sees the fund ahead its benchmark by 4.55%.

11.

Looking at the longer-term performance, the three years return for the Fund
was 7.96%, which was 1.23% per annum ahead its benchmark return. For
over five years period, the Fund posted a return of 8.63% slightly
outperforming the benchmark return of 7.90% by 0.72% per annum, as shown
on the graph below.

Page 2 of 9

Page 27

Pension Fund Performance
25.00
20.00
15.00
10.00
5.00
0.00

Current Quarter

One Year

Three Years

Five Years

Fund

2.29

21.04

7.96

8.63

Benchmark

0.64

16.48

6.73

7.90

12.

Global equities continued to perform well over the quarter. The MSCI AC
World posted a 6% return in local terms and a 3.7% return in sterling terms as
sterling appreciated in a relief rally after a Brexit agreement was finally
reached with the European Union at the end of 2020.

13.

UK equities rose by 5.2%, outperforming other markets in sterling terms, but
not in local terms, after their huge 10.6% return in Q4 2020. The UK entered
its third national lockdown in January with 1.3 million cases reported just in
that month. However, the impressive UK vaccination program caused case
numbers to tumble and the UK equity market, along with other equity markets,
posted strong March returns.

14.

UK nominal government bond yields rose across maturities over the first
quarter. The rise in yields at medium and long-dated maturities was significant
with 10-year and 30-year nominal yields rising 70bps to 0.93% and 65bps to
1.43% respectively. These yields are now back to similar levels to prior to the
pandemic at the start of last year.

15.

Credit markets benefited from risk-on investor sentiment with credit spreads
continuing to contract to ever tighter levels. UK investment grade credit
spreads edged down by 2bps to 106bps, while global investment grade credit
spreads fell by 5bps to 98bps over the quarter.

16.

Sterling appreciated against major currencies over the quarter, boosted by the
Brexit deal, vaccine-led economic optimism and higher UK bond yields. It
rallied most against the yen (8% move) which depreciated on a broad basis
against the global risk-on backdrop but the pound was also quite strong
against the euro, rising by 5.1% to €1.17/£.

17.

For March quarter end, two out of the Fund’s equity mandates performed well
delivering returns matching their respective benchmarks or outperforming the
respective benchmarks. With LCIV JPMorgan EM, LCIV BG Alpha and MFS
Global Equity lagging the their respective benchmark for the quarter.
Page 3 of 9

Page 28

18.

Fourteen out of twenty mandates delivered returns, matching or achieving
returns above the set benchmark. The six mandates lagging the set
benchmark for the quarter were LCIV JPMorgan EM, LCIV BG Alpha, MFS
Global Equity, M&G Inflation, Antin and LGIM.

19.

For the 12 months to March 2021, sixteen out of twenty mandates
outperformed their respective benchmarks or targets. The mandates that
delivered
negative
returns
or
underperformed
their
respective
benchmark/target were MFS Global Equity -2.28%, LCIV Longview -2.99%,
Adam Street -2.62% and York Capital -20.53%
INTERNAL CASH MANAGEMENT

20.

Cash is held by the managers at their discretion in accordance with limits set
in their investment guidelines, and internally by Enfield Council to meet
working cashflow requirements, although transfers can be made to Fund
managers to top up or rebalance the Fund.

21.

The Pension Fund cash balance is invested in accordance with the Council’s
Treasury Management strategy agreed by Full Council in February 2020,
which is delegated to the Executive Director of Resources to manage on a
day to day basis within the agreed parameters.

22.

The cash balance as at 31 March 2021, was £95.068m in short term deposits
and money market funds. £31.296m with Goldman Sachs and £65.407m with
Northern Trust.
CURRENCY ANALYSIS

23.

The appreciation of sterling versus the US dollar over the quarter decreased
the value of dollar denominated holdings. The Fund has exposure to the euro,
US dollar, yen and other currencies within its portfolio.

24.

At this reporting quarter, the Fund has 5.7% of total assets exposure to the
euro, 36.4% to US dollar, 2.1% to yen and 5.9% to other currencies within it.
The active equity managers have exposures to various currencies as they are
all global mandates, and AON, the Fund Investment Consultant have
approximated the currency exposures based on the geographical split of the
underlying investments.

25.

Adams Street, York Capital and Davidson Kempner are US dollar
denominated whilst Antin is euro denominated. CFM, BlackRock, CBRE,
Western, M&G Inflation Opportunities, Legal & General, Brockton, Insight,
LCIV MAC and IPPL mandates are assumed to have no direct exposure to
foreign currencies as they are either hedged to sterling or are sterling share
classes.

26.

US dollar exposure has increased by 1.9% to 36.4% of the total assets and
still representing the largest foreign currency risk for the Fund. For example, a
1% foreign currency appreciation (or depreciation) for the Funds' US dollar
denominated assets will increase (or decrease) by £5.1m, and for Euro
Page 4 of 9

Page 29

denominated assets in the Fund, this will effect an increase (or decrease) by
£0.8m and for Yen denominated assets this will effect an increase (or
decrease) by £0.3m.
27.

It is therefore worth noting that movements in currencies may either contribute
to or be caused by factors that move other asset classes. For example, the
US dollar may appreciate at times of stress which could coincide with a fall in
the value of the Fund's equity holdings.

ASSET ALLOCATION

Asset Class
Equities
Private Equities
Total Equities
Hedge Funds
Property
Infrastructure
Bonds
Inflation protection
illiquid
Cash
Total

Strategic asset
allocation as at
April 2019 (%)
35.0
5.0
40.0
10.0
10.0
6.0
24.0

Fund Position
as at 31 Mar.
2021 (%)
43.4
6.6
50.0
4.6
5.6
5.0
20.2

Difference
as at 31 Mar.
2021 (%)
8.4
1.6
10.0
(5.4)
(4.4)
(1.0)
(3.8)

Difference as
at 31 Mar.
2021 (£m)
117.32
22.18
139.50
(74.91)
(60.82)
(14.23)
(53.01)

10.0

7.6

(2.4)

(33.2)

0.0
100.0

6.9
100.0

6.9

96.70

28.

The current strategic weight of asset distribution and the Fund’s assets
position as at 31 March 2021 are set out below:

29.

The Fund has underweight position of 4.4% in Property, 23.8% underweight
position in Bonds and Indexed linked gilts, 2.4% underweight Inflation
protection illiquid and 5.4% underweight position in Hedge Funds. with 1%
underweight position in Infrastructure and with 1.6% overweight position with
Private Equities. There is a need for assets rebalancing to their strategic
weights, the consideration for this is included in the ongoing investment
strategy review for the Fund.

30.

The Fund triennial valuation result was very favourable with an outcome of
103% funding level. This means as at 31st March 2019 valuation, the Fund is
in surplus. The outcome of Enfield Pension Fund of 103% funding level has
put the Fund in a favourable position and it is worth noting that the strong
2016-2019 asset performance was due to high exposures to (strongly
performing) overseas equities.

31.

The Fund Investment Consultant is currently reviewing the strategic asset
allocation of the Fund, incorporating the Fund’s latest investment beliefs.

32.

15.8% of the equity portfolio is being managed passively by BlackRock. The
remainder is being managed on an active basis, with the largest share of
Page 5 of 9

Page 30

10.1% with MFS, followed by 8.3% with LCIV Baillie Gifford, 6.6% with LCIV
Longview and 2.6% in LCIV Emerging Markets.
33.

As at 31 March 2021, the MSCI All Country World Index had a 13% exposure
to Emerging Markets and in aggregate, the Fund's equity portfolio has
£99.7m, an improvement in value by £15.2m compared to 31 December 2020
valuation of £84.5m. At this quarter end c.7.1% of the Fund’s total assets are
invested in Emerging Markets which equates to 16.5% of the Fund’s equity
portfolio.

34.

Asset allocation is determined by several factors including: i) The risk profile - there is a trade off between the returns that can be
obtained on investments and the level of risk. Equities have higher
potential returns, but this is achieved with higher volatility. However, the
Fund remains open to new members and able to tolerate the volatility,
allowing it to target higher returns, which in turn reduces the deficit
quicker and should eventually lead to lower contribution rates by
employers.
ii) The age profile of the Fund - the younger the members of the Fund, the
longer the period before pensions become payable and investments
must be realised for this purpose. This enables the Fund to invest in
more volatile asset classes because it has the capacity to ride out
adverse movements in the investment cycle.
iii) The deficit recovery term / the surplus amortisation period - Most LGPS
funds are fully Funded or almost 100% funded because of great
investment returns but being tampered mildly by increasing life
expectancy. The actuary determines the period over which the deficit is
to be recovered and considers the need to stabilise the employer’s
contribution rate. For 2019 valuation, the actuary used 16 years as the
target of reducing the funding ratio, to illustrate the surplus amortisation.

35.

Individual managers have discretion within defined limits to vary the asset
distribution. The overweight position in equities has helped the fund’s
performance in recent months.
Safeguarding Implications

36.

The report provides clear evidence of sound financial management, efficient
use of resources, promotion of income generation and adherence to Best
Value and good performance management.
Public Health Implications

37.

The Enfield Pension Fund indirectly contributes to the delivery of Public
Health priorities in the borough.
Equalities Impact of the Proposal

38.

The Council is committed to Fairness for All to apply throughout all work and
decisions made. The Council serves the whole borough fairly, tackling
Page 6 of 9

Page 31

inequality through the provision of excellent services for all, targeted to meet
the needs of each area. The Council will listen to and understand the needs of
all its communities.
Environmental and Climate Change Considerations
39.

There are no environmental and climate change considerations arising from
this report.
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not
taken

40.

Any form of investment inevitably involves a degree of risk.

41.

To minimise risk the Pension Policy and Investment Committee attempts to
achieve a diversification portfolio. Diversification relates to asset classes and
management styles.

42.

The monitoring arrangement for the Pension Fund and the work of the
Pension Policy & Investment Committee should ensure that the Fund
optimises the use of its resources in achieving the best returns for the Council
and members of the Fund.
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that
will be taken to manage these risks

43.

Not noting the report recommendations and not adhering to the overriding
legal requirements could impact on meeting the ongoing objectives of the
Enfield Pension Fund.
Financial Implications

44.

This is a noting report which fulfils the requirement to report quarterly
performance of the Pension Fund investments portfolio to the Pension Policy
and Investment Committee. There are no direct financial implications arising
from this report, however the long-term performance of the pension fund will
impact upon pension contribution rates set by this Committee.
Legal Implications

45.

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of
Funds) Regulations 2016 govern the way in which administering authorities
should manage and make investments for the fund. There are no longer
explicit limits on specified types of investment and instead administering
authorities should determine the appropriate mix of investments for their
funds. However, administering authorities must now adhere to official
guidance; broad powers allow the Government to intervene if they do not.
Under regulation 8, the Secretary of State can direct the administering
authority to make changes to its investment strategy; invest its assets in a
particular way; that the investment functions of the authority are exercised by
the Secretary of State and that the authority complies with any instructions
issued by the Secretary of State or their nominee.
Page 7 of 9

Page 32

46.

The Council must take proper advice at reasonable intervals about its
investments and must consider such advice when taking any steps in relation
to its investments.

47.

The Council does not have to invest the fund money itself and may appoint
one or more investment managers. Where the Council appoints an
investment manager, it must keep the manager’s performance under review.
At least once every three months the Council must review the investments
that the manager has made and, periodically, the Council must consider
whether or not to retain that manager.

48.

One of the functions of the Pension Policy & Investment Committee is to meet
the Council’s duties in respect of investment matters. It is appropriate, having
regard to these matters, for the Committee to receive information about asset
allocation and the performance of appointed investment managers. The
Committee’s consideration of the information in the report contributes towards
the achievement of the Council’s statutory duties.

49.

When reviewing the Pension Fund Investment Performance, the Council must
have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful conduct under the Equality
Act 2010, the need to advance equality of opportunity and the need to foster
good relations between persons who share a protected characteristic and
those who don’t (the public sector duty). The Committee may take the view
that good, sound investment of the Pension Fund monies will support
compliance with the Council’s statutory duties in respect of proper
management of the Pension Fund.
Workforce Implications

50.

The employer’s contribution is a significant element of the Council’s budget
and consequently any improvement in investment performance will allow the
Council to meet this obligation easily and could also make resources available
for other corporate priorities.
Property Implications

51.

None
Other Implications

52.

None
Options Considered

53.

There are no alternative options.
Conclusions

54.

The Fund assets increased by £31m over the quarter to 31 March 2021 the
Fund posted a return of 2.3%. All Equity markets delivered positive returns in
both local currency and sterling terms. The Fund outperformed its benchmark
by 1.65%.
Page 8 of 9

Page 33

55.

Fourteen out of twenty mandates delivered returns, matching or achieving
returns above the set benchmark. The six mandates lagging the set
benchmark for the quarter were CFM Stratus by -2.85%, M & G by -0.44%,
York Capital by -4.73%, Adam Street by -3.06% and Brockton Capital -7.31%.

56.

For the 12 months to March 2021, sixteen out of twenty mandates
outperformed their respective benchmarks or targets. The mandates that
delivered
negative
returns
or
underperformed
their
respective
benchmark/target were MFS Global Equity -2.28%, LCIV Longview -2.99%,
Adam Street -2.62% and York Capital -20.53%

57.

Looking at the longer-term performance, the three year return for the Fund
was 1.23% per annum above its benchmark return. For over five years, the
Fund posted a strong return of 8.63% outperforming the benchmark return of
7.90% by 0.72% per annum.

58.

15.8% of the equity portfolio is being managed passively by BlackRock. The
remainder is being managed on an active basis, with the largest share of
10.1% with MFS, followed by 8.3% with LCIV Baillie Gifford, 6.6% with LCIV
Longview and 2.6% in LCIV Emerging Markets.

59.

As at 31 March 2021, the MSCI All Country World Index had a 13% exposure
to Emerging Markets and in aggregate, the Fund's equity portfolio has
£99.7m, an improvement in value by £15.2m compared to 31 December 2020
valuation of £84.5m. At this quarter end c.7.1% of the Fund’s total assets are
invested in Emerging Markets which equates to 16.5% of the Fund’s equity
portfolio.

60.

The distribution of the Fund’s assets amongst the different asset classes is
broadly in line with the strategic benchmark weight, albeit there is a need to
rebalance the assets and equities is mildly overweight. The overweight
position in equities has helped the fund’s performance in recent months.

Report Author:

Bola Tobun
Finance Manager – Pensions & Treasury
Bola.Tobun@enfield.gov.uk
Tel no. 020 8132 1588

Date of report

16th May 2021

Appendices – To be attached electronically but not in the main printing pack.
Appendix 1 – AON Quarterly Report (Confidential)
Appendix 2 – AON Market Update and Investment Outlook (Confidential)
Appendix 3 - London CIV Sub-Funds Quarterly Report
Background Papers
None

Page 9 of 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 35

Quarterly Investment
Report Q1 2021
Prepared for

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund

Prepared by

Aon

Date

May 2021

Copyright © 2021 Aon Solutions UK Limited. All rights reserved.
aon.com
Aon Solutions UK Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.
Registered in England & Wales No. 4396810
Registered office:
The Aon Centre | The Leadenhall Building | 122 Leadenhall Street | London | EC3V 4AN
This report and any enclosures or attachments are prepared on the understanding that it is solely for the
benefit of the addressee(s). Unless we provide express prior written consent no part of this report should be
reproduced, distributed or communicated to anyone else and, in providing this report, we do not accept or
assume any responsibility for any other purpose or to anyone other than the addressee(s) of this report.

Page 36

Table of Contents
Executive Summary – Q1 2021

2

Performance

2

Manager Allocations

3

Summary of Key Developments

4

Quarterly Investment Outlook Summary

5

Portfolio overview

6

Ratings

9

BlackRock – World Low Carbon Equity

11

MFS – Global Unconstrained Equity

12

London CIV – Baillie Gifford Global Alpha Growth Fund

13

London CIV – Longview Global Equity Focus Fund

14

London CIV – JP Morgan Emerging Market Equity Fund

16

Adams Street – Private Equity

17

York – Distressed Securities Hedge Fund ("YCO")

18

Davidson Kempner – Event Driven Hedge Fund

19

CFM – Stratus Hedge Fund

20

BlackRock – UK Property

21

LGIM – UK Property

23

Brockton – Opportunistic Property

25

International Public Partnership Ltd – Listed PFI

26

Antin – Infrastructure Fund III

27

BlackRock – BlackRock Passive Fixed and Index-Linked Gilts

28

Western – Active Investment Grade Credit

29

M&G – Inflation Opportunities

30

CBRE – UK Secured Long Income Fund

31

London CIV – CQS Multi Asset Credit Fund

33

Insight – Absolute Return Bond Funds

34

Appendix A – Market Background: Q1 2021

35

Appendix B – Quarterly Investment Outlook

40

Appendix C – Explanation of Manager Ratings

45

Ratings Explanation - Infrastructure

47

Disclaimer

48

1

Page 37

Executive Summary – Q1 2021
Quarterly (%)

Since Inception p.a.
(%)

Annual (%)

Benchmark

Active

Portfolio

Portfolio

Active

Active

Benchmark

Benchmark

Portfolio

BlackRock World Low Carbon

5.1

5.0

0.1

40.7

40.2

0.5

14.0

13.0

1.0

MFS Global Unconstrained

2.9

4.0

-1.1

36.9

LCIV Baillie Gifford

2.2

4.0

-1.8

56.5

38.9

-2.0

13.7

11.9

1.8

38.9

17.6

18.3

11.7

6.6

LCIV Longview

6.5

4.0

2.5

36.0

38.4

-2.4

10.1

14.2

-4.1

LCIV JP Morgan Emerging
Market

-0.1

1.3

-1.4

53.5

42.4

11.1

13.4

13.6

-0.2

Adams Street

13.6

7.9

5.7

30.9

13.1

17.8

13.6

10.7

2.9

York Distressed Securities

4.3

-

-

-29.6

-

-

-0.6

-

-

Davidson Kempner

2.6

-

-

8.2

-

-

7.2

-

-

CFM Stratus

6.4

-

-

12.8

-

-

1.1

-

-

Blackrock

2.2

2.2

0.0

4.0

2.5

1.5

3.4

6.2

-2.8

Legal & General

1.9

2.2

-0.3

1.8

2.5

-0.7

6.9

6.8

0.1

Brockton

3.1

-

-

5.5

-

-

12.5

-

-

IPPL Listed PFI

-1.2

0.5

-1.7

12.5

1.5

11.0

8.5

2.9

5.6

Antin

-3.4

-

-

3.6

-

-

6.5

-

-

BlackRock Passive Fixed and
Index-Linked Gilts

-3.0

-3.0

0.0

1.1

0.9

0.2

2.0

1.9

0.1

Western Active Credit

-7.4

-7.9

0.5

10.5

8.6

1.9

5.2

5.6

-0.4

Insight Absolute Return Bonds

1.6

-

-

7.9

-

-

0.2

-

-

LCIV CQS MAC

2.1

0.0

2.1

25.3

0.4

24.9

3.9

0.7

3.2

M&G Inflation Opportunities

-1.7

0.5

-2.2

7.5

1.5

6.0

6.8

2.2

4.6

CBRE

1.2

-

-

4.8

-

-

2.2

-

-

2.3

0.6

1.7

21.0

16.5

4.5

8.5

-

-

Performance

Equities

Private Equity
Hedge Funds

UK Property

PFI & Infrastructure

Bonds

Inflation protection illiquids

Total Assets

Source: Investment managers/ Aon / Northern Trust. Performance is shown net of fees with exception of Blackrock Equities and LGIM which is shown gross of
fees. In the absence of audited net performance figures from Northern Trust, performance has been sourced from the managers or estimated by Aon using
manager data where possible. Totals may not sum due to rounding.
1) Please note that BlackRock equity 1 year and since inception figures are a composite of the current BlackRock ACS World Low Carbon Equity Tracker Fund
(incepted in March 2021) and previous BlackRock UK and Global equity funds.
2) IPPL is measured against the UK Retail Price Inflation (RPI) index.
3) Adams Street and Brockton are close ended funds and traditional time weighted returns are not reflective of true performance. Adam Street numbers are IRR
figures. Returns are lagged by a quarter due to the nature of the asset class (returns are as at Q4 2020).
4) The Adams Street, Davidson Kempner, and York returns will partly reflect currency movements. Over the quarter, Sterling appreciated against the Dollar and,
as a result, these returns are weaker in sterling than in local currency terms.
5) Please note that BlackRock property since inception fund and benchmark performance are a composite of BlackRock and previous property mandate(s).
6) Fund benchmark is composed of 35% global equities 5% private equity (proxied by a global equity index), 10% property, 29% bond composite (based on
underlying manager benchmarks) 6% infrastructure and 15% hedge funds.

2

Page 38

31.12.2020

31.03.2021
Market Value
(£m)

Relative (%)

Percentage (%)

Strategic (%)

Market Value
(£m)

Equities

585.2

42.9

605.3

212.4

15.6

-

-

BlackRock Passive*

Percentage (%)

Manager Allocations

43.4

35.0

8.4

35.0

8.4

-

-

220.6

15.8

0.9

0.1

0.8

0.1

MFS Global Unconstrained

136.5

10.0

140.4

10.1

BlackRock World Low Carbon*
Trilogy Global Unconstrained
LCIV Baillie Gifford

113.7

8.3

116.2

8.3

LCIV JP Morgan Emerging Market

36.0

2.6

35.9

2.6

LCIV Longview Partners

85.7

6.3

91.3

6.5

77.6

5.7

92.0

6.6

5.0

1.6

77.6

5.7

92.0

6.6

5.0

1.6

10.0

-5.4

10.0

-4.4

6.0

-1.0

24.0

-3.8

10.0

-2.4

Private Equity
Adams Street

61.6

4.5

64.6

4.6

York Distressed Securities

6.4

0.5

6.0

0.4

Davidson Kempner

28.9

2.1

30.2

2.2

CFM Stratus

26.3

1.9

28.5

2.0

75.9

74.3

78.6

5.6

BlackRock

35.6

2.6

36.2

2.6

Legal & General

33.8

2.5

34.5

2.5

Brockton

6.5

0.5

7.9

0.6

70.7

5.2

69.4

5.0

IPPL Listed PFI

49.2

3.6

48.6

3.5

Antin

21.6

1.6

20.8

1.5

291.4

21.4

281.8

20.2

BlackRock Passive Fixed and
Index-Linked Gilts

94.6

6.9

91.8

6.6

Hedge Funds

UK Property

PFI & Infrastructure

Bonds

Western Active Bonds

112.0

8.2

103.5

7.4

Insight Absolute Return Bonds

31.3

2.3

31.9

2.3

LCIV CQS MAC

53.6

3.9

54.7

3.9

106.3

7.8

106.3

7.6

M&G Inflation Opportunities

78.4

5.7

78.6

5.6

CBRE

27.9

2.0

27.7

2.0

95.1

7.0

96.9

6.9

-

6.9

95.1

7.0

96.9

6.9

-

6.9

1363.7

100.0

1395.0

100.0

100.0

Inflation protection illiquids

Cash
Enfield Cash
Total Assets
Source: Northern Trust, Managers
Note: Numbers may not sum due to rounding.

*The Fund transferred the BlackRock equity holding from UK and Global equity funds to the BlackRock ACS World Low Carbon Equity Tracker Fund in March
2021, therefore the valuation as at 31 March 2021 was the new low carbon holding and valuation as at 31 December 2020 was the previously held UK and
Global equity funds.

3

Page 39

Summary of Key Developments
Key developments

▪

In February 2021, CBRE Global Investors (“CBRE”) communicated to
investors their decision to outsource the administration functions for
their UK pooled vehicles, including the CBRE UK Long Income Fund
in which the Fund is invested, to Langham Hall. CBRE will be passing
the costs of outsourcing these functions on to investors in the affected
funds and estimate that it will add circa 2-3bps onto the annual
management fees.
Our research team have spoken with CBRE and although we would
have preferred for them to absorb the costs associated with this, we
have no concerns with the decision from an administrative
perspective and agree that it is a move in line with competitors. We
are pleased to know that CBRE conducted a competitive tender
process to identify the best third party for its requirements and are
comfortable that Langham Hall is a suitable choice for the services
required.
This fund remains “Buy” rated and we are not recommending any
action is taken as a result of this development.

▪

The Fund transferred its BlackRock passive equity holding from UK
and Global equity funds to the BlackRock ACS World Low Carbon
Equity Tracker Fund in March 2021.

4

Page 40

Quarterly Investment Outlook Summary
Summary

▪

Vaccine success and large US fiscal expansion have led to a rare
event. Bond yields and rates views have moved up for a change.

▪

The pandemic's drag on economic activity now looks to be of shorter
duration than many would have expected a year ago. But its
disruption and key 'new normal' effects will still leave a lasting legacy.

▪

The gilt yield jump in Q1 has erased the extreme pessimism in the
UK rates market. Large yield moves higher from here look unlikely.

▪

Index-linked gilts look expensive versus fixed, however. The current
scarcity of index-linked gilts should ease as issuance rises. However,

▪

any inflation underhedging to take advantage of this needs to be
done with care.

▪

Pension scheme de-risking demand for UK corporate bonds is now
an important factor in sustaining low credit spreads in the sterling
market. Low reward for credit risk could remain the status quo on
these trends. Global approaches to credit selection will provide some
alleviation.

▪

The past half year's comeback in equity market laggards represents a
conventional rotation to value, which has been in line with our views.
There should be some more of it later this year.

▪

The earnings recovery under way is supportive for equities but
recovery and reopening is already priced in. More good news to
excite markets is getting harder to find. Equities look reasonable as a
'hold' but it is harder to make the case for putting new money to work.

▪

UK commercial property appears to have had a pandemic 'soft
landing' to date but there are some caveats. A global approach to real
estate exposures remains the preferred option.

▪

Bitcoin is a long way away from being a new digital gold. Its scary
volatility, speculative immaturity and competition from central banks
are formidable hurdles to its wider adoption.

Q1 2021 Performance Summary

Past performance is no guarantee of future results. Indices cannot be invested in directly. Unmanaged index returns assume reinvestment of all distributions and do
not reflect fees or expenses

5

Page 41

Portfolio overview
Asset class target
ranges

The table below shows the discussions at the April 2018 Committee
meeting where new strategic allocations were agreed.
Strategic asset
allocation

Investment Strategy
Statement ("ISS") ranges

40%

30-50%

10%
10%
6%
24%

10-20%
5-15%
3-9%

Equities (including
private equity)
Hedge Funds
Property
Infrastructure
Bonds
Inflation protection
illiquids
Split of equity portfolio

19-39%

10%

The table below shows the allocation to emerging markets within the
equity portfolio:

BlackRock
MFS
Baillie Gifford
Longview
JP Morgan
Total

31 Mar. 2021
value (£m)

Emerging
Market
Allocation (%)

Emerging
Market
Allocation (£m)

220.6
140.4
116.2
35.9
91.3
604.5

0.0
1.3
17.4
0.0
85.0
16.5

0.0
1.8
20.3
0.0
77.6
99.7

Source: Investment managers. Totals may not sum due to rounding. Does not include
Trilogy because of the small allocation and the Fund is disinvesting from the mandate.
Includes 'other' allocation from managers for prudence, although this may include small
developed market allocations (e.g. NZ).

▪

c.36% of the equity portfolio is being managed passively by
BlackRock. The remainder is being managed on an active basis, with
MFS the largest holding.

▪

In aggregate, c. 16.5% of the Fund's equity portfolio is allocated to
Emerging Markets. As at 31 March 2021, the MSCI All Country World
Index had a 13.0% exposure to Emerging Markets.

6

Page 42

Sterling-US dollar
exchange rate

The chart below shows the movements in sterling versus the US dollar
over time.
Sterling-US Dollar exchange rate over time

2.00
1.90

Increase in value of
unhedged dollar
denominated investments

1.80

Avenue Redemption
Numeric Redemption and DK investment
(1 Jan 15)

1.70

1.60
1.50

Avenue reduced

1.40

Gruss disinvestment
(Jan 18)

Gruss funded
(1 March 15)

1.30

1.20
1.10

1.00
Mar 11

Mar 12

Mar 13

Mar 14

Mar 15

Mar 16

Mar 17

Mar 18

Mar 19

Mar 20

Mar 21

The appreciation of sterling versus the US dollar over the quarter
decreased the value of dollar denominated holdings.

Currency analysis

The Fund has exposure to the euro, US dollar, yen and other currencies
within its portfolio.
The active equity managers have exposures to various currencies as they
are all global mandates, and we have approximated the currency
exposures based on the geographical split of the underlying investments.
Adams Street, York and Davidson Kempner are US dollar denominated
whilst Antin is euro denominated. CFM, BlackRock, CBRE, Western,
M&G Inflation Opportunities, Legal & General, Brockton, Insight, London
CIV MAC and IPPL mandates are assumed to have no direct exposure to
foreign currencies as they are either hedged to sterling or are sterling
share classes.
Currency

%

£m

Sterling

49.9

695.9

US dollar

36.4

508.0

Euro

5.7

79.7

Yen

2.1

28.9

Other

5.9

82.3

Total

100.0

1394.8

Note: Totals may not sum due to rounding.
Manager exposures are based on geographical, not currency, exposures.

7

Page 43

Summary

US dollar exposure is the largest foreign currency risk for the Fund.
Following a 1% foreign currency appreciation (depreciation), we
approximate that the value of the Funds' US dollar denominated assets
will increase (decrease) by £5.1m, euro denominated assets will increase
(decrease) by £0.8m and yen denominated assets will increase
(decrease) by £0.3m.
Note that movements in currencies may either contribute to or be caused
by factors that move other asset classes. For example, the US dollar may
appreciate at times of stress which could coincide with a fall in the value
of the Fund's equity holdings.

Approximate increase in value of Fund assets following a 1%
foreign currency appreciation
0.4%

0.4%

0.3%

0.2%

0.1%

0.1%
0.0%

0.0%
USD (£5.1m)

Currency
US dollar
Euro
Yen

Euro (£0.8m)

Yen (£0.3m)

Fund exposure to
currency (£m)

1% change in currency
(£m)

1% change in currency
(% in Fund's assets)

508.0
79.7
28.9

5.1
0.8
0.3

0.4
0.1
0.0

8

Page 44

Overall

ODD

Business

Staff

Process

Risk

Performance

T&C

ESG

Buy

Pass

4

4

4

4

4

2

2

Qualified

A1

3

3

2

2

2

2

3

LCIV Baillie Gifford

Buy

A1

4

3

3

2

3

3

2

LCIV Longview Partners

Buy

A1

3

2

3

2

3

2

2

Not Rated

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Qualified

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

York Distressed Securities

Sell

A2

1

2

2

2

1

2

-

Davidson Kempner

Buy

A2

4

4

4

3

3

3

-

Buy (Closed)

A1

3

4

3

3

3

2

-

Buy

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Qualified

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Buy (Closed)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Not Rated

--

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Buy (closed)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Buy

Pass

4

3

4

4

4

2

2

Qualified

ER

✓

✓







✓

-

Buy

A1

4

4

4

3

3

2

2

Not Rated

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Buy (closed)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Buy

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Ratings
Equities
BlackRock Passive
MFS Global Unconstrained

LCIV JP Morgan Emerging
Market

Private Equity
Adams Street

Hedge Funds

CFM Stratus

UK Property
BlackRock
Legal & General
Brockton

PFI & Infrastructure
IPPL Listed PFI
Antin

Bonds
BlackRock Passive Fixed and
Index-Linked Gilts
Western Active Credit
Insight Absolute Return Bonds
LCIV CQS MAC

Inflation Protection
Illiquids
M & G Inflation Opportunities
CBRE
Note:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

6.

Ratings shown are as at Q1 2021, aside from Baillie Gifford which is as at Q4 2020.
Previous quarter's ratings are shown in brackets where they have changed.
ER = Exceptions reported/ NER = No exceptions reported.
Aon does not rate the London CIV. Ratings are shown for underlying managers where appropriate.
Aon's process for reviewing property, private equity & infrastructure strategies has changed. Therefore, from 31
March 2019 onwards Aon's manager research specialists will not include sub-ratings for property, private equity &
infrastructure strategies.
Ratings shown for BlackRock equity are for BlackRock's passive equity capabilities and not specific to the Low
Carbon Index in which the Fund is now invested, which is yet to be approved by our research team.

9

Page 45

ESG rating
Aon has increasingly been asked for input on whether and how well
investment managers integrate Responsible Investment ("RI")
considerations, and more specifically Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) data, into their investment strategies.
To best serve our clients’ desire to understand how non-financial ESG
data may (or may not) be accommodated by various outside investment
managers, Aon has developed a distinct ESG rating system for buy-rated
investment strategies. This serves to provide an added dimension of fund
analysis for clients who have embraced, or are considering, ESG and RI
within their investment policies. At this time the strategy’s ESG rating is
not designed to have an impact on the overall rating of Buy/Qualified/Sell
ratings.
ESG ratings are currently being deployed for buy-rated, long-only equity
and credit strategies with liquid alternatives, private equity and real estate
to follow. Like our investment strategy ratings, ESG ratings are assigned
on a 1 to 4 scale, please refer to the Rating Explanation section for more
detail.

10

Page 46

BlackRock – World Low Carbon Equity
Buy

7.0
6.0

Return (%)

Key Information:
Appointed:
March 2009
31 March 2021 Value:

5.0
4.2

4.0

3.0
2.2

£220.6 million

2.0

Vehicle:

1.0

ACS

0.0

2.5

2.5

2.2

Fund
Benchmark
Relative

Global Equities
Benchmark:
FTSE All Share/ FTSE All World
Developed ex UK (to March 2021)
MSCI World Low Carbon Target
Index (From March 2021)
Target:

2.4

1.5

0.0

Mandate:

4.2

4.0

Quarter
2.2
2.2
0.0

One Year
4.0
2.5
1.5

0.1

0.0

3 Year (p.a.)
2.5
2.4
0.1

5 year (p.a.)
4.2
4.2
0.0

Source: Blackrock. Returns are shown gross of fees.
1 year, 3 year and since inception figures are a composite of the current BlackRock ACS World Low Carbon
Equity Tracker Fund (incepted in March 2021) and previous BlackRock UK and Global equity funds.

Major Developments
The Fund transferred the BlackRock equity holding from UK and Global
equity funds to the BlackRock ACS World Low Carbon Equity Tracker
Fund in March 2021.

To perform in line with the
benchmarks
Fee Scale:

Performance

Fees following transition of units to
London CIV:
0.01% p.a.

The pooled equity funds within the BlackRock equity portfolio exhibited
acceptable tracking error during the first quarter of 2021.

Our Ratings:
Overall

Buy

ODD

Pass

Business

4

Staff

4

Process

4

Risk

4

Performance

4

Terms

2

ESG

2

11

Page 47

MFS – Global Unconstrained Equity
50.0

Qualified

40.0

36.9

38.9

Return (%)

Key Information:
Appointed:
August 2010
31 March 2021 Value:

30.0
20.0
14.014.1

13.312.7

13.7

11.9

10.0
2.9 4.0

£140.4 million

1.8

0.6

0.0

Initial Investment:

-1.1

£35.9 million

-0.1

-2.0

-10.0

Vehicle:
Fund
Benchmark
Relative

MFS Global Equity Fund
Mandate:

Quarter

One Year

3 Year (p.a.)

5 year (p.a.)

2.9
4.0
-1.1

36.9
38.9
-2.0

13.3
12.7
0.6

14.0
14.1
-0.1

Since Inception
(p.a.)
13.7
11.9
1.8

Global Equity

Source: MFS. Returns are shown net of fees.

Benchmark:

Performance

MSCI All Country World Total
Return Index

The strategy underperformed its benchmark over the first quarter and
remained behind the benchmark over the 12 month period.

Target:
To outperform the benchmark by
2% pa gross of fees
Fee Scale:
Tiered base fee based on the
AUM of 0.65% pa on the first
£25.0m, 0.50% pa on the next
£25.0m, 0.45% pa on the next
£50.0m and 0.40% pa thereafter.
No performance fee.

Our Ratings:
Overall
ODD

Qualified
A1

Business

3

Staff

3

Process

2

Risk

2

Performance

2

Terms

2

ESG

3

An overweight position in Consumer Staples and not holding any stocks
in the Energy sector were the primary detractors during the quarter.
Stock specific detractors include: Not holding Alphabet, which had
strong advertising sales, particularly in search and YouTube, that
helped quarterly financial results beat consensus estimates; Check
Point Software Technologies, security software provider whose stock
price struggled after management guided 2021 earnings per share
below consensus due to a combination of higher investment levels,
higher costs, a weakening US dollar and lower interest income;
Heineken, the brewer’s shares struggled as it reported fiscal-year 2020
earnings below consensus estimates and noted that 2021 revenues and
earnings would remain below 2019 levels.
Stock selection in Consumer Discretionary and an underweight
allocation to Information Technology contributed during the quarter.
Kansas City Southern added value due to the announcement of the
merger agreement with Canadian Pacific.

12

Page 48

London CIV – Baillie Gifford Global Alpha Growth Fund
Buy

60.0

56.5

50.0

Return (%)

Key Information:
Appointed:
October 2016
31 March 2021 Value:

38.9

40.0
30.0

17.6

20.0

18.9

18.3
12.7

10.0

£116.2 million

2.2

Initial Investment:

11.7
6.2

4.0

6.6

0.0
-1.8

£41.4 million

-10.0

Vehicle:
Fund
Benchmark
Relative

London CIV
Mandate:

Quarter

One Year

3 Year (p.a.)

2.2
4.0
-1.8

56.5
38.9
17.6

18.9
12.7
6.2

Since Inception
(p.a.)
18.3
11.7
6.6

Source: London CIV/ Aon. Returns are shown net of fees.

Global Equities
Benchmark:
MSCI All Country World Total
Return Index
Target:
To outperform the benchmark by
2-3% pa gross of fees over rolling
five year periods.

Major Developments
As highlighted in last quarter's report, in May 2021 Catherine Flockhart
(Client Services, Positive Change), Dave Bujnowski (US Equities) and
Colin Lennox (Technology Service Delivery) all became partners.
Charles Plowden (Senior Partner / Global Alpha) and Bill Pacula (North
America) retired in April 2021. Partner numbers will rise to 47.

Fee Scale:
Tiered base fee based on the
aggregate AUM of the Fund,
0.65% pa on the first £30.0m,
0.50% pa on the next £30.0m, and
0.35% p.a. thereafter.
An additional platform fee of
0.025% p.a. is payable to London
CIV.

Ratings:*
Overall
ODD

Buy

Performance
Baillie Gifford's Global Alpha strategy underperformed in Q1 2021, but
outperformance remains strong relative to benchmark over longer
periods.
The sectors that contributed the most to performance were those that
would benefit from a life returning to normal after the Covid-19 vaccine
rollout, such as Materials, Consumer Staples and Real Estate. Likewise,
the less successful sectors that detracted from performance were
Financials, Health Care and Energy.

A1

Business

4

Staff

3

Process

3

Risk

2

Performance

3

Terms

3

ESG

2

Ratings are shown for the underlying
managers as we do not rate the London CIV.

(Commentary sourced from the London CIV's quarterly report)

13

Page 49

London CIV – Longview Global Equity Focus Fund
Buy

50.0
38.4

40.0

Return (%)

Key Information:
Appointed:
October 2018
31 March 2021 Value:

36.0

30.0
20.0
14.2
10.1

10.0

6.5
4.0

£91.3 million

2.5

0.0

Initial Investment

-2.4

£70 million

-10.0

Vehicle:
Fund
Benchmark
Relative

London CIV
Mandate:

Quarter

One Year

6.5
4.0
2.5

36.0
38.4
-2.4

-4.1

Since Inception
(p.a.)
10.1
14.2
-4.1

Global Equities

Source: London CIV/ Aon. Returns are shown net of fees.

Benchmark:

Major Developments

MSCI World Total Return Index

In April, Longview announced that research team member and partner
Luke Taylor would leave the firm in May. Mr. Taylor joined Longview in
2009. With Matthew Tunna joining from a private equity background in
January 2021, Murat Gunc stepping in from the Risk Team and two new
trainees starting, the research complement is up to 9, but we note the
overall loss of experience resulting from the personnel changes over the
last 2-3 years.

Target:
To outperform the benchmark by
3% pa over rolling three year
periods.
Fee Scale:
Tiered base fee based on the
aggregate AUM of the Fund,
0.75% pa on the first £25.0m,
0.65% pa on the next £25.0m,
0.60% pa the next £75.0m,
0.50% pa on the next £125.0m,
0.40% pa thereafter.
An additional platform fee of
0.025% p.a. is payable to London
CIV.

Our Ratings:
Overall
ODD

Buy
A1

Business

3

Staff

2

Process

3

Risk

2

Performance

3

Terms

2

ESG

2

Ratings are shown for the underlying
managers as we do not rate the London CIV.

Performance
Longview posted another positive quarter in Q1 2021, although one
year and since inception returns still lag the benchmark following the
poor outcome in calendar 2020. Looking at the manager's 'problem'
areas from 2020, the portfolio's financial holdings have generally
recovered well, and hospitality stocks have, on balance, seen some
recovery on Covid-19 vaccination news. Internet-related growth stocks
presented a mixed picture in Q1, but, at the least, Longview's low
exposure to this area has not been the strong headwind it represented
in 2020.
Alphabet was the largest positive contributor to Q1 2021, with the strong
share price performance reflecting better than expected results from
Google. Shares in American Express, Lloyds, State Street and Bank of
New York Mellon all performed well on the prospect of the improving
economic outlook and higher interest rates.
The largest detractors were Charter Communications, WW Grainger
(engineering supplies, motors) and new purchase Becton Dickinson
(medical devices). Charter had benefited from higher subscriptions in
2020 as the demand for home entertainment increased, and inevitably
there was some slowdown moving into 2021. WW Grainger reported
lower margins which Longview sees a temporary. Another detractor was
Medtronic (medical devices), where the shares lagged as the recovery
in medical operations has been slower than market expectations.
Longview remains confident in the long term investment case.
14

Page 50

Positioning and Transactions
In the first quarter, the Longview team reviewed the portfolio's holding in
Lloyds, deciding that the bank's competitive position had deteriorated.
Accordingly, the 'Quality' rating assigned to Lloyds was reduced and the
holding sold.
The main purchase over the period was Becton Dickinson. The
company supplies needles, syringes and other products to the medical
industry, including Covid testing equipment. Longview is attracted by
the consistency of the company's earnings stream and the sustainability
of the business's strong market position. Longview has researched
Becton for some time and share price weakness in Q1 provided a
suitable buying opportunity.

15

Page 51

London CIV – JP Morgan Emerging Market Equity Fund
60.0

Not rated

53.5

50.0
42.4

Return (%)

Key Information:
Appointed:
October 2018

40.0
30.0
20.0
11.1

31 March 2021 Value:

13.4

13.6

10.0

£35.9 million

1.3

0.0

Initial Investment

-0.1

-0.2

-1.4

-10.0

£26.5 million
Vehicle:

Fund
Benchmark
Relative

London CIV

Quarter

One Year

-0.1
1.3
-1.4

53.5
42.4
11.1

Since Inception
(p.a.)
13.4
13.6
-0.2

Mandate:
Source: London CIV/ Aon. Returns are shown net of fees.

Emerging Market Equities
Benchmark:

Performance

MSCI Emerging Market Total
Return Index
Target:
To outperform the benchmark by
2.5% pa over rolling three year
periods.
Fee Scale:
Fixed base fee of 0.65% pa on
AUM. LCIV fee of 0.025%. No
performance fee.

Our Ratings:
Overall

Not rated

ODD

-

Business

-

Staff

-

Process

-

Risk

-

Performance

-

Terms

-

ESG

-

Ratings are shown for the underlying
managers as we do not rate the London CIV.
C

The JP Morgan Emerging Market Fund returned -0.1% over the first
quarter, underperforming against the MSCI Emerging Market index by
1.4%. Over the 1 year period the fund outperformed, returning 11.1%
relative to benchmark.
One of the key strengths of the investment manager has been its stock
selection, even towards the end of previous quarter, when the market
momentum started to shift towards more cyclical names. However, last
quarter was the first to see detraction through stock selection, again a
function of the focus areas of the investment manager against the
prevailing market themes. As a result, some of the portfolio’s strongest
contributors in 2020, including Mercadolibre and Foshan Haitian
Flavouring, were amongst the largest detractors.
Country allocation proved to be neutral and while India and Argentina
led the way in the fourth quarter, they became large detractors due to
macro headwinds. India is facing major macro challenges, with a spike
in Covid-19 rates causing particular concern, but the related overall
currency devaluation should benefit its information technology
outsourcing businesses that the portfolio holds. China, a key focus for
the portfolio, has delivered strong returns for the strategy in the long
run, and proved to be the saviour again from allocation perspective.
Just like the prior quarters, China benefitted from early normalization
from Covid-19, along with long term structural trends in its Technology
sector.

(Commentary sourced from the London CIV's quarterly report)

16

Page 52

Adams Street – Private Equity
35.0

Qualified*

30.9

30.0

Key Information:

January 2003
31 March 2021 Value:
£92.0 million

Return (%)

25.0

Appointed:

20.6

13.6

13.1

10.7

10.3

10.0

7.9
5.7

Pooled fund ($ Share class)

0.0

Mandate:

MSCI World Total Return Index

13.6

10.4

5.0

Benchmark:

17.8
15.1

15.0

Vehicle:

Private Equity

19.3

20.0

Fund
Benchmark
Relative

4.2

Quarter

One Year

3 Year (p.a.)

5 year (p.a.)

13.6
7.9
5.7

30.9
13.1
17.8

20.6
10.4
10.3

19.3
15.1
4.2

2.9

Since Inception
(p.a.)
13.6
10.7
2.9

Source: Adam Street. Internal rate of return (IRR) shown above. Returns are lagged by a quarter due
to the nature of the asset class (returns are as at Q4 2020). Returns are shown net of fees.

Target:
To generate an absolute return of
15% p.a. net of fees

Performance of the underlying Adams Street funds remained strong
over the longer-term periods.

Fee Scale:
Tiered base fee based on the
AUM of 1.00% pa on the first
£25.0m, 0.90% pa on the next
£25.0m, 0.75% pa on the next
£100.0m and 0.50% pa thereafter.
No performance fee.

Our Ratings:
*Due to the nature of the underlying
investment, Aon's monitoring of illiquid
managers is conducted on an infrequent
basis. Therefore overall ratings of these
managers may be lagged over time.
Aon's process for reviewing property,
private equity & infrastructure strategies
has changed. Therefore, from 31 March
2019 onwards Aon's manager research
specialists will not include sub-ratings for
property, private equity & infrastructure
strategies.

The graph above, sourced from Adams Street, shows the cashflow
profile of the Fund's investment. As the fund has matured over time the
cashflow profile has started to improve and since 2015 (despite small
dips in 2018 and 2020) the Fund has been net cashflow positive.

17

Page 53

York – Distressed Securities Hedge Fund ("YCO")
10.0

Sell

5.0

4.3

5.3

0.0

Return (%)

Key Information:
Appointed:
January 2010

-0.6

-5.0
-10.0

-1.9

-8.7 -9.4

-15.0

31 March 2021 Value:

-20.0

£6.0 million

-25.0

Initial Investments:

-30.0

$16.0 million (£10.0 million)

-35.0

-21.7

-21.2 -21.6

-29.6

Quarter

One Year

3 Year (p.a.)

5 year (p.a.)

4.3
5.3

-29.6
-21.7

-21.2
-21.6

-8.7
-9.4

Vehicle:
York Credit Opportunities Fund
($ share class)

GBP
USD

Since
Inception
(p.a.)
-0.6
-1.9

Source: York. Returns shown above are Sterling and USD returns, net of fees.

Mandate:

Major Developments

Distressed debt hedge fund

Following sizable monetizations of portfolio holdings in the first quarter,
York made a sixth cash distribution to LPs in April, representing 29% of
year-end net asset value (“NAV”) for the LP and 27% for the Unit Trust.
Bill Vrattos remains focused on liquidating the remaining investments,
but the liquidation schedule is uncertain and will likely extend beyond
2021.

Benchmark:
N/A
Target:
Absolute Return
Fee Scale:
Fixed based fee of 1.5% p.a. on
AUM + 20% performance fee.

Our Ratings:
Overall

Sell

ODD

A2

Following Jamie Dinan’s decision in November 2020 to exit the hedge
fund business, there have been a number of departures from York
Capital. Bill Vrattos is now the sole Chief Investment Officer (“CIO) and
remains fully involved in the unwind of the portfolio, with a direct line to
the Chief Executive Officers (“CEOs”) of all of the constituent
companies.

Business

1

Performance
YCO generated a quarter return of 5.3% in USD terms (4.3% in GBP
terms) in Q1. The portfolio is concentrated in catalyst-sensitive
distressed debt and restructured equity and benefitted from positive
strategic developments around one of its larger holdings and some
liquidity events. Gains were partially offset by markdowns of energyrelated investments.

Staff

2

Process

2

Risk

2

Performance

1

Terms

2

18

Page 54

Davidson Kempner – Event Driven Hedge Fund
25.0

Buy

20.4

20.0

Return (%)

Key Information:
Appointed:
January 2015

15.0

10.0

8.2

31 March 2021 Value:

6.2

£30.2 million

5.0
2.6

7.2
5.7

5.1

3.5

Initial Investment:
£19.2 million ($30.0 million)

0.0

Vehicle:

GBP
USD

Davidson Kempner International
Ltd ($ share class)
Mandate:

Quarter

One Year

3 Year (p.a.)

2.6
3.5

8.2
20.4

6.2
5.7

Since Inception
(p.a.)
7.2
5.1

Source: Davidson Kempner. Returns shown above are Sterling and USD returns, net of fees.

Performance

Event Driven hedge fund
Benchmark:
N/A
Target:
Absolute Return (7-10% p.a.)
Fee Scale:
Fixed base fee of 1.5% pa on
AUM plus 20% performance fee.

Davidson Kempner International was up +3.5% over the first quarter in
USD terms (2.6% in GBP), versus HFRI Event-Driven Index, which had
a strong start to the year up +8.4%. The market dynamic changed
coming into 2021, with equities and bonds going in opposite directions.
The trigger was the rush of optimism on economic recovery. Hopes rose
for vaccine-led economic reopening just as a large fiscal stimulus
package under a new US administration was approved by Congress.
Distressed debt led the gains during the first quarter followed by merger
arbitrage positions.

Staff

4

Process

3

At a position level, the largest contributor was Steinhoff at +0.3%. The
bonds continued to benefit from optimism around the IPO of Pepco, the
European discount retailer that owned by Steinhoff, which performed
well through the Covid-19 crisis. The largest detractor over the quarter
was a position in Intelsat, which detracted -0.1%. The satellite
company’s debt traded down as the firm announced a restructuring
transaction without the support of creditors.
The multi-strategy fund remains fully invested at 115% long.

Our Ratings:
Overall
ODD

Buy
A2

Business

4

Risk

3

Performance

3

Terms

2

19

Page 55

CFM – Stratus Hedge Fund
Buy (closed)

14.0

12.8

12.0

Return (%)

Key Information:
Appointed:
1 February 2016
31 March 2021 Value:

10.0
8.0
6.4

6.0

£28.5 million

4.0

Vehicle:

2.0

Pooled fund (£ Share class)

0.0

2.3

Mandate:
GBP

1.1

Quarter

One Year

3 Year (p.a.)

6.4

12.8

2.3

Since Inception
(p.a.)
1.1

Multi Strategy hedge fund
Source: CFM. Returns shown above are net of fees.

Benchmark:

Performance

n/a
Target:
Absolute Return
Fee Scale:
Fixed base fee of 2.0% pa on
AUM. 20% performance fee.

Our Ratings:
Overall
ODD

Buy
(Closed)
A1

Business

3

Staff

4

Process

3

Risk

3

Performance

3

Terms

2

CFM Stratus had a strong start to the year, gaining +6.4% over the
quarter. The bulk of the gains came from the statistical arbitrage
strategy (+5.9%). All clusters contributed except Seasonality, which is
slightly unusual and explains its strong performance of +17% on a
standalone basis. Due to filters on stocks with unusual activity, the
strategy avoided the Gamestop related issues in January, and also
avoided the value rotation due to the book being hedged against
traditional factors.
All of the other four strategies also saw gains over the quarter, with
Directional adding just over +1%, and the other three strategies
contributing c. +1% combined. Allocations across the five strategies
were largely unchanged.

20

Page 56

BlackRock – UK Property
Buy
7.0
6.0

Appointed:

5.0

Return (%)

Key Information:

December 2012
31 March 2021 Value:

4.2

4.0

3.0

£36.2 million

2.2

Pooled fund

1.0

Mandate:

0.0

2.5

2.5

2.2

2.0

Vehicle:

Fund
Benchmark
Relative

Benchmark:
IPD UK Pooled Property All
Balanced Funds Total Return
Index
Target:
To outperform the benchmark
Fee Scale:
Fixed base fee of 1.0% pa on
AUM. No performance fee.

Our Ratings:
Overall

Buy

Aon's process for reviewing property,
private equity & infrastructure strategies
has changed. Therefore, from 31 March
2019 onwards Aon's manager research
specialists will not include sub-ratings
for
property,
private
equity
&
infrastructure strategies.

2.4

1.5

0.0

UK Property

4.2

4.0

Quarter
2.2
2.2
0.0

One Year
4.0
2.5
1.5

0.1

0.0

3 Year (p.a.)
2.5
2.4
0.1

5 year (p.a.)
4.2
4.2
0.0

Source: Blackrock. Returns are shown net of fees.

Performance
Performance over the quarter was 2.2% performing in line with the
benchmark. Performance over 12 months to 31 March 2021
outperformed the benchmark (4.0% versus 2.5%).
Performance over the longer-term (ten-year period to 31 March 2021)
remains marginally below benchmark (6.2% versus 6.4%).
The Fund’s performance benefited from its exposure to industrials, which
is marginally below that of the benchmark. In addition, the Fund has
benefited from the performance of assets in the alternatives sectors such
as healthcare and student housing. The Fund holds an overweight
position to alternatives versus the benchmark (18.6% versus 10.7%). The
Fund continues to hold underweight positions relative to the benchmark
to both retail and offices. The manager has a cautious view on the office
sector given uncertainty surrounding Brexit and the impact of COVID.
The Fund’s retail warehouse component remains well let with a low
vacancy rate and continues to generate good income. The portfolio’s
overall vacancy rate increased slightly during the quarter from 5.5% to
5.8%, materially lower than the benchmark’s vacancy rate of 9.2%.
The Fund remains defensively positioned with material exposure to
industrials and alternatives (including the GP surgeries portfolio which
provides long term income) whilst actively trying to reduce its exposure to
the retail sector.
The Fund remains focused on rent collection. As at 26th April 2021, the
Fund had collected 91% of rental income demanded on the March
quarter day. This level of rent collection takes into consideration those
tenants where agreements have been made to switch to monthly rental
payments. The Fund collected 97% of rent due for CY 2020.
Cash as at 31 March 2021 was 8.0% of the Fund's Net Asset Value
('NAV') versus the benchmark of 7.7%. This increase was due to sales
completed during the quarter.

21

Page 57

Positioning and Transactions
During the quarter the Fund completed the sale of three assets. No
acquisitions were completed during the quarter. The disposals during the
quarter consisted of:
•

Bedfont Logistics Park, Hounslow. This asset formed part of the
Fund’s build to rent logistics portfolio. The asset was acquired in
2013 and developed into a high specification logistics scheme in
2016. In 2020, the Fund completed the final letting therefore
meeting its original business plan objective. As a result of strong
investor demand in the logistics sector and the lack of vacancy
on the park, the Fund took the opportunity to sell the asset for
£118.5 million. Proceeds will be recycled into other logistics
development sites held by the Fund

•

Oldbury Green Retail Park, Weston-Super-Mare, and Wyvern
Retail Park, Derby. These two retail warehouse holdings were
sold during the quarter as a result of the Fund’s continued plan to
reduce its exposure to the retail sector. The assets were sold for
£27.3 million and £22.3 million respectively.

22

Page 58

LGIM – UK Property
Qualified
8.0

Key Information:

6.9 6.8

7.0
6.0

Return (%)

Appointed:
February 2010
31 March 2021 Value:
£34.5 million

5.0

4.2

4.0
3.0

3.0
2.0

1.9

2.5

2.2

2.4

1.8

1.5

1.0

Initial Investment:

0.1

0.0

£14 million

-0.3

-1.0

-0.7

-0.9

-1.2

-2.0

Vehicle:
Pooled fund

Fund
Benchmark
Relative

Mandate:
UK Property

Quarter

One Year

3 Year (p.a.)

5 year (p.a.)

1.9
2.2
-0.3

1.8
2.5
-0.7

1.5
2.4
-0.9

3.0
4.2
-1.2

Since Inception
(p.a.)
6.9
6.8
0.1

Source: LGIM. Returns are shown gross of fees.

Benchmark:

Performance

IPD UK PPFI All Balanced
Property Funds
Target:
To outperform the benchmark
Fee Scale:
Tiered base fee based on the
AUM of 0.70% pa on the first
£2.5m, 0.65% pa on the next
£2.5m, 0.60% pa on the next
£7.5m and 0.55% pa thereafter.
No performance fee

Our Ratings:
Overall

Qualified

Aon's process for reviewing property,
private equity & infrastructure strategies
has changed. Therefore, from 31 March
2019 onwards Aon's manager research
specialists will not include sub-ratings
for
property,
private
equity
&
infrastructure strategies

The Fund returned 1.9% over the quarter marginally underperforming
the benchmark return of 2.2%. The Fund trails the benchmark over
three and five-year periods to 31 March 2021 on an annualized basis by
0.9% and 1.2% respectively.
The manager continues to have a negative view on the retail sector,
particularly shopping centres and high street retail, expecting capital
values to continue to fall through 2021. As a result, the Fund will
continue to underweight to retail assets. In addition, the Fund remains
focused on increasing its exposure to assets in the alternatives sector
notably student accommodation. The Fund still has a positive view on
the industrial sector and aims to further increase the portfolio’s
exposure to the sector. However, the Fund remains concerned about
pricing expectations of sellers and will therefore continue to be very
selective when purchasing assets in this sector.
The Fund remains focused on rent collection, particularly from sectors
that continue to be challenged as a result of COVID-19. As at the end of
April 2021, the Fund had collected 74% of rent due for the March
quarter day covering the second quarter of the year. This is broadly in
line with rent collection levels for the same 35-day period post quarter
end for Q3 and Q4. Rent collection stats for previous quarters have
gradually improved as the Fund continues to provide support to tenants
with financial difficulties providing the option to switch to monthly rental
payments or actual rent deferrals, in some cases. Rent collection, to
date, for each quarter from Q2 2020 to Q1 2021 averages 83% with the
rent collected for the Q1 2021 period currently being the lowest at 80%.
The retail and leisure sectors continue to be challenged providing the
lowest levels of rent collection for the portfolio at 63% and 24%
respectively. However, as lockdown restrictions in the UK continue to
ease, leisure assets have seen a marginal improvement in rent
collection. Offices, Industrials and Alternatives remained the most

23

Page 59

resilient sectors in terms of rent collection (85%, 85% and 84% of rent
due for the second quarter as at end-April 2021).
The Fund has made good progress with asset management initiatives
during the quarter. Most notably, the Fund has provided rent-free space
to 10 local start-up companies at the Dolphin Shopping Centre, Poole.
This forms part of a wider initiative to reposition the scheme for
alternative uses and is also part of a strategic vision to create
meaningful and measurable outcomes from a social and environmental
perspective. It is hoped that attracting start-up companies will stimulate
further interest in the asset and that it will result in a number of those
tenants becoming successful and being able to start paying rent
following the expiry of the rent-free periods.
The Fund’s cash weighting decreased materially during the quarter
(12% to 5.9% of net asset value) following significant transactional
activity. The Fund’s cash weighting falls below the benchmark (7.7%)
and in line with the Fund’s target range (5-7.5%).
Transactions
While no disposals were completed during the quarter, the Fund
completed three acquisitions;
•

The Fund completed the acquisition of an urban logistics
portfolio comprising 5 multi-let industrial estates. Four assets
are located in the South East with the fifth located in Solihull.
The acquisition comes as part of the Fund’s aim to increase its
exposure to the industrial sector, in particular logistics, and
given the Fund’s view of the opportunity for material rental
growth in the short to medium term. The portfolio was acquired
for £55.1 million.

•

In addition, the Fund completed the acquisition of North Tower,
Deansgate, Manchester. The residential asset was acquired
through a 50:50 joint venture with the L&G UK Property Fund
for £44.8 million. Development of the asset was completed in
March 2021 and comprises 276 residential units. The Fund has
a positive view on the region and sector supported by strong
occupancy and rent collection through the ongoing pandemic.

•

Lastly, the Fund acquired a hotel asset in Clerkenwell, London,
out of administration for £70 million. The new hotel, which
completed in August 2020, will operate through a management
contract with Yotel. The Fund will receive income based on the
operating performance of the hotel as opposed to a traditional
lease model. Yotel will receive an annual fee for their role in
managing the operation of the hotel. The asset also includes 5
residential apartments which the Fund expects to continue to
hold and rent into the open market.

24

Page 60

Brockton – Opportunistic Property
14.0

BUY (Closed)

12.0

12.5

12.0

Return (%)

Key Information:
Appointed:
August 2014

10.0
8.0
5.5

6.0

31 March 2021 Value:
4.0

£7.9 million

3.1

2.0

Total commitment:
Initial commitment: £20.0 million
From October 2019: £15.5 million

0.0
Fund

Capital drawn:

Quarter

One Year

3 Year (p.a.)

3.1

5.5

12.0

Since Inception
(p.a.)
12.5

£5.3 million

Source: Brockton.

Vehicle:

Performance

Pooled fund (close ended)
Mandate:

The fund returned 3.1% over the quarter to 31 March 2021, returning
5.5% over the 1 year period and 12.0% p.a. over the 3 year period.

Opportunistic Property

Detailed performance commentary is unavailable at time of writing.

Benchmark:
3 Month LIBOR
Target:
15% net IRR and 1.5x net
multiple.
Fee Scale:
Management fee of 1.4% over the
life if the fund. Carried interest
proportion subject to IRR of the
fund.

Our Ratings:
Overall

Buy
(Closed)

Aon's process for reviewing property,
private equity & infrastructure strategies
has changed. Therefore, from 31 March
2019 onwards Aon's manager research
specialists will not include sub-ratings
for
property,
private
equity
&
infrastructure strategies.

25

Page 61

International Public Partnership Ltd – Listed PFI
15.0

Key Information:

12.5

Appointed:

10.4

January 2006
31 March 2021 Value:
£48.6 million

Return (%)

10.0

8.5
7.0

5.0

Initial Investment:
0.0

£15.0 million

-1.2

Additional Investment:
-5.0

£4.0 million (April 2017)
£5.0 million (December 2017)
Mandate:
Listed PFI

Quarter

One Year

3 Year (p.a.)

5 year (p.a.)

-1.2

12.5

10.4

7.0

Fund

Since
Inception
(p.a.)
8.5

Source: Northern Trust. Returns are shown net of fees.

30 June 2020 Interim Report Summary
The information below pertains to the International Public Partnerships
Limited released 2020 Interim Report.
International Public Partnerships Limited (“IPP Ltd”) invests public
infrastructure projects. As at 31 December 2019, the majority (c. 73%)
of the fund is invested in the UK although the fund also has material
exposure to Belgium (c.8%) and Australia (c.9%).
The weighted average investment life of the portfolio is currently 34
years. As at 30 June 2020, the investment life and project stake
breakdown of the portfolio was as follows:
Investment
Life
<20 years
20-30 years
>30 years

% of fund
52%
19%
29%

Project
Stake
100%
50% - 100%
<50%

% of fund
50%
6%
44%

During the six months to 30 June 2020, the IPPL completed £11.7
million of additional investments across the education and digital
infrastructure sectors. In May 2020, IPPL acquired an additional
interest in the Essex Building Schools for Future (‘BSF’) project. IPPL
invested a further £6.7 million to acquire stakes in the two project
companies which own four schools.
In July 2017, the Company agreed to invest up to £45 million in UK
digital infrastructure alongside the UK Government, through the
National Digital Infrastructure Fund (‘NDIF’). To date, c.£33 million of
the Company’s £45 million commitment has been called by NDIF.
During the six months to 30 June 2020, NDIF called £5 million to
further invest in three of its existing investments.

26

Page 62

Antin – Infrastructure Fund III
Performing*

Overall View

Appointed:

Antin is one of the strongest European infrastructure managers with a
large team with deep knowledge of the infrastructure sector. While
Fund I’s performance will be difficult to replicate, Aon believe Antin is
capable of achieving its 15% gross IRR target for Fund III.

January 2017

Commitment Drawdown

Total Commitment:
€25.0m

The Fund has committed €25m EUR to the fund and the manager will
call down capital gradually over time.

31 March 2021 Value:

Relevant date of the funds

Key Information:

£20.8m
Mandate:
European Infrastructure

First and Final
Closing Date
Fund Term

Benchmark:
Burgiss iQ European
Infrastructure (EUR)
Target:
15% Gross IRR with a gross yield
target of 5% p.a.
Fee Scale:

Fund Life
Extension
Investment Period
Commitment
Period

9 December 2016
9 December 2026 (10 years from First Closing
Date, excluding Fund Life Extension)
Two one-year extension options at the discretion
of the GP following consultation with the Investors'
Committee
9 December 2021 (up to 5 years from First
Closing Date)
12 August 2022 (8 years from First Closing Date,
excluding Fund Life Extension)

1.5% p.a. of total commitments
during investment period

Our Ratings:
*Due to the nature of the underlying
investment, Aon's monitoring of illiquid
managers is conducted on an
infrequent basis. Therefore overall
ratings of these managers may be
lagged over time.
Aon's process for reviewing property,
private equity & infrastructure
strategies has changed. Therefore,
from 31 March 2019 onwards Aon's
manager research specialists will not
include sub-ratings for property, private
equity & infrastructure strategies.

27

Page 63

BlackRock – BlackRock Passive Fixed and Index-Linked
Gilts
Buy

4.0
3.0

Key Information:

2.0

2.0

Return (%)

2.0

Appointed:
October 2005
31 March 2021 Value:

1.1

1.0
0.0
-1.0

£91.8 million

-2.0

Vehicle:

-3.0
-3.0

Pooled

-4.0

Mandate:

Quarter

One Year

3 Year (p.a.)

-3.0

1.1

2.0

Fund

Since Inception
(p.a.)
2.0

Index-Linked Gilts
Source: Blackrock. Returns are shown net of fees. Since inception figures shown reflect performance
since the inception of the restructured mandate in July 2016.

Benchmark:
Composite benchmark of Aquila
Life Up To 5 Years UK Gilt Index
Fund and the Aquila Life All
Stocks UK Index-Linked Gilt Index
Target:
N/A
Fee Scale:

The Fund invests in a blend of the Aquila Life Up To 5 Years UK Gilt
Index Fund and the Aquila Life All Stocks UK Index-Linked Gilt Index
Fund to create a portfolio with duration of c.10 years. At the outset of
the portfolio's construction, the split was set to approximately 60/40
between the two funds, although this has, and will change, over time as
market conditions dictate.
The table below shows the pooled funds held in the portfolio and their
value as at quarter end (provided by BlackRock):

0.005% p.a.

Security

Our Ratings:
Overall

Buy

ODD

Pass

Business

4

Staff

3

Process

4

Risk

4

Performance

4

Terms

2

ESG

2

Aquila Life Up To 5
Years UK Gilt
Index Fund
Aquila Life All Stocks
UK Index-Linked Gilt
Index Fund
Total

Value (£)

Allocation

Nominal
yield

Duration

56,548,644

61.6%

0.15%

2.6

35,201,391

38.4%

1.11%

21.0

91,750,035

100.0%

0.52%

9.6

28

Page 64

Western – Active Investment Grade Credit
15.0

Qualified

10.5

10.0

Return (%)

Key Information:
Appointed:
April 2003
31 March 2021 Value:

8.6
5.8

5.7

5.2

5.6

5.0
1.9
0.5

0.1

0.0
-0.4

£103.5 million

-5.0

Vehicle:
-7.4 -7.9

-10.0

Segregated
Mandate:

Quarter

One Year

3 Year (p.a.)

-7.4
-7.9
0.5

10.5
8.6
1.9

5.8
5.7
0.1

Fund
Benchmark
Relative

IG Credit
Benchmark:

Since Inception
(p.a.)
5.2
5.6
-0.4

Source: Western. Returns are shown net of fees.

BofA Merrill Lynch Sterling NonGilt 10+ Index
Target:

Performance

To outperform the benchmark by
0.75% pa over a rolling 5 year
period

The Western mandate delivered a return of -7.4% over the quarter,
outperforming the benchmark by 0.5%. Since the inception of the
restructured mandate on 30 November 2016, the fund has
underperformed against its benchmark, by 0.4%.

Fee Scale:
Fixed base fee of 0.15% pa
thereafter.

The chart on the following page shows the portfolio and benchmark
allocations as at 31 March 2021.
80.0%
72.0%

73.1%

70.0%

Our Ratings:
Overall

Qualified

60.0%

ER

50.0%

Business

✓

40.0%

Staff

✓

30.0%

Process



Risk



Performance



ODD

Terms

✓

20.0%

14.9%

14.9%

11.6%
10.0%

4.4%

3.7%

4.9%

0.4%

0.0%

0.0%
Investment Grade
Corporates

Global Governments Supra/Sov/Local Govts

Portfolio

Securitised

Cash and Others

Benchmark

Source: Western, ICE BofAML

29

Page 65

M&G – Inflation Opportunities
BUY*

10.0

May 2013
31 March 2021 Value:
£78.6 million
Total Strategy Assets:
£1.7 billion

6.0

Mandate:

5.1

4.6

4.0

2.9
2.2

2.2

1.5

2.0
0.5

0.0
-2.0

-1.7
-2.2

-4.0

Vehicle:
Pooled fund

6.8
6.0

Return (%)

Appointed:

7.5

8.0

Key Information:

Fund
Benchmark
Relative

Quarter

One Year

3 Year (p.a.)

-1.7
0.5
-2.2

7.5
1.5
6.0

5.1
2.2
2.9

Since Inception
(p.a.)
6.8
2.2
4.6

Inflation Opportunities

Source: M&G. Returns are shown net of fees.

Benchmark:

Performance

RPI

Performance over the first quarter was negative with an absolute return
of -1.7%. 3 year performance remains positive with a return of 5.1% p.a.
against a benchmark returns of 2.2% p.a.

Target:
Benchmark + 2.5% pa
Fee Scale:

Detailed performance commentary is unavailable at time of writing.

Fixed base fee of 0.20%- 0.50%
pa on AUM.

Our Ratings:
*Due to the nature of the underlying
investment, Aon's monitoring of illiquid
managers is conducted on an infrequent
basis. Therefore, overall ratings of these
managers may be lagged over time.

30

Page 66

CBRE – UK Secured Long Income Fund
Buy

5.0

4.8

4.5

Key Information:
Return (%)

4.0

Appointed:
December 2018
31 March 2021 Value:

3.5
3.0
2.5

1.5

£27.7 million

2.2

2.0
1.2

1.0

Commitment:

0.5

£45 million

0.0

Capital drawn
Fund

£21 million

Quarter

One Year

1.2

4.8

Since Inception
(p.a.)
2.2

Vehicle:
Open ended (3 year initial lock up
period)
Mandate:
Inflation protecting Illiquids
Benchmark:
N/A
Target:
UK LPI +2.5%-3% p.a. over rolling
10y periods

Source: CBRE/ Aon.

The CBRE UK Secured Long Income Fund is an open-ended product
The Fund will target property with long term, predictable cash flows and
explicit inflation linkage. The target annualised net distribution yield is
2.5% to 3%. The Fund will have exposure to traditional sale and
leaseback properties (let on long leases with explicit inflation linkage)
together with ground rents and income strips. The key individuals
managing the Fund are all very experienced and skilled investors,
following a rigorous and well defined process. The fee structure is very
competitive and well below peer group funds.
Major Developments

Fee Scale:
0.25% management fee per
annum

Our Ratings:
Overall

Buy

Aon's process for reviewing property,
private equity & infrastructure strategies
has changed. Therefore, from 31 March
2019 onwards Aon's manager research
specialists will not include sub-ratings
for
property,
private
equity
&
infrastructure strategies.

In February 2021, CBRE Global Investors (“CBRE”) communicated to
investors their decision to outsource the administration functions for
their UK pooled vehicles, including the CBRE UK Long Income Fund in
which the Fund is invested, to Langham Hall. CBRE will be passing the
costs of outsourcing these functions on to investors in the affected
funds and estimate that it will add circa 2-3bps onto the annual
management fees.
Our research team have spoken with CBRE and although we would
have preferred for them to absorb the costs associated with this, we
have no concerns with the decision from an administrative perspective
and agree that it is a move in line with competitors. We are pleased to
know that CBRE conducted a competitive tender process to identify the
best third party for its requirements and are comfortable that Langham
Hall is a suitable choice for the services required.
This fund remains “Buy” rated and we are not recommending any action
is taken as a result of this development.
Performance
The fund delivered a return of 1.2% over Q1 2021. Over 12 months the
Fund has delivered a total return of 4.8%.

31

Page 67

Positioning and Transactions
Rent collection rates for Q1 2021 and Q2 2021 stand at 65% and 67%
respectively.
Including assets which are being forward funded, approximately 68% of
assets by value are secured on investment grade tenants, 21% noninvestment grade with 11% constituting non-investment grade ground
rents. In terms of actual investment structures, 77.5% by value are let
on conventional leases, 16% on ground rents and 6.4% by way of
income strips.
The portfolio which now comprises 32 assets has a weighted average
lease length of 37 years with 95% of the income either being inflation
linked or benefitting from fixed rental uplifts. In terms of collateralisation,
this is relatively strong, with CBRE GI calculating the aggregated market
rent to be 1.34x the actual passing rents and the underlying vacant
possession value being equivalent to 97% of the reported investment
value.
By sector, the portfolio is reasonably well diversified although we would
highlight that 30.3% is categorised as Other Retail (Pubs) and this is
where there have been rent payment shortfalls. Once the portfolio is
fully invested, based on proposed target acquisitions, this exposure will
fall to 15%. In the meantime, discussions continue with the two pub
operators, Elflock and Upham, intended to provide support during the
continued lockdown but also agreeing eventual repayment plans. Both
hope to re-open their premises in April/May. To date, there have been
no tenant CVAs or insolvencies across the portfolio. Elflock are now
paying rent on all but 2 assets that expect to open in June.
In terms of transactions, the Fund exchanged contracts pre quarter-end
(completed April 2021) for a £34m student accommodation investment
let to the University of Derby, which CBRE GI referenced as having a
credit rating of BBB+ on a 29-year lease. The aggregated market rent is
1.55x the current rent payable which has explicit RPI inflation linkage.
Furthermore, the Fund is under offer at £40m for a distribution unit in
South East England (Crawley) at a net initial yield of 3.6% on a 15-year
inflation linked lease to a well-known parcel delivery company. The
Fund is also under offer at a price of £60m for a student
accommodation block let to the University of Bristol close to the Temple
Meads Enterprise district, reflecting a net initial yield of 5% for a 15-year
lease linked to CPI. Finally, the Fund is under offer for another student
accommodation block in Canterbury (tenant is Canterbury Christ
Church University) at a price of £20m reflecting a net initial yield of
4.25%. However, this deal is contingent on the current owner replacing
the building’s cladding.

32

Page 68

London CIV – CQS Multi Asset Credit Fund
Not Rated

30.0
25.3

December 2018
31 March 2021 Value:

Return (%)

Appointed:

24.9

25.0

Key Information:

20.0
15.0
10.0

£54.7 million
Initial Investment
£50.0 million

2.1

Mandate:
Multi Asset Credit

Fund
Benchmark
Relative

3.2

2.1
0.0

0.4

Quarter

One Year

2.1
0.0
2.1

25.3
0.4
24.9

0.0

Vehicle:
London CIV

3.9

5.0

0.7

Since Inception
(p.a.)
3.9
0.7
3.2

Source: London CIV/ Aon. Returns are shown net of fees.

Benchmark:
3 Month LIBOR (UK) Total Return
Index
Target:
LIBOR +4-5% over 4 years
Fee Scale:
Fixed base fee of 0.41% pa on
AUM. No performance fee.
An additional platform fee of
0.025% p.a. is payable to London
CIV.

Major Developments
The London CIV placed CQS on 'Watch' in June 2019, over concerns
they had with performance, senior management turnover and the fund's
investment strategy.
In early 2020 we were made aware that CQS were no longer on 'Watch'
with the London CIV, however the London CIV would be increasing the
level of monitoring of CQS for a period. CQS have now been on
'Enhanced Monitoring' for over 12 months.

33

Page 69

Insight – Absolute Return Bond Funds
Buy

10.0
7.9

8.0

Return (%)

Key Information:
Appointed:
December 2013
31 March 2021 Value:

6.0
4.0
1.6

2.0
0.0

£31.9 million

-0.1

Initial Investments:

-2.0

£10.0 million

-4.0

Additional Investments:

Quarter

One Year

3 Year (p.a.)

5 Year (p.a.)

1.6

7.9

-1.6

-0.1

£10.0 million (January 2014)
Fund

£10.0 million (March 2014)

0.0

-1.6

Since
Inception
(p.a.)
0.0

Source: Northern Trust/ Aon. Returns are shown net of fees.

Vehicle:
Insight Bonds Plus 400 Fund

Performance

Mandate:

The Fund had a positive absolute return over the quarter. Country
allocation was a strong positive for performance. The main contributors
were a long in Japan versus Germany. Underweights in Canada versus
the UK and US and our long position in Italy versus Germany were also
positive. The long in Australia versus US was a positive contributor. A
long in IG corporate credit was positive. Within credit their positioning in
corporates was a positive as their relative value trades (long
subordinated financials versus IG corporates and long cash versus
CDS) performed well despite the move higher in yields.

Absolute Return Bonds
Benchmark:
3 Month LIBOR (UK) Total Return
Index
Target:
Benchmark + 4.0% pa over rolling
3 year periods net of fees.
Fee Scale:
Fixed base fee of 0.75% per
annum.

Our Ratings:
Overall
ODD

Buy
A1

Business

4

Staff

4

Process

4

Risk

3

Performance

3

Terms

2

ESG

2

34

Page 70

Appendix A – Market Background: Q1 2021
Index returns

Source: FactSet, MSCI (Equities, Property), iBoxx (Corporate Bonds), FTSE (Gilts)

General Background

▪

Improving economic data over the quarter in most countries and
global vaccination roll-outs provided continued optimism over
economic recovery. In the US, the $1.9tn US economic relief package
was approved by the Senate after Democrat Joe Biden was sworn in
as US President in January. However, global Covid-19 cases
continued to surge, with many countries going back into lockdown as
new virus variants raised concern. Health risks also halted the
vaccine roll-out in some countries whilst supply constraints led to
slower roll-out in Europe than expected.

▪

Global equities continued to perform well over the quarter. The MSCI
AC World posted a 6% return in local terms and a 3.7% return in
sterling terms as sterling appreciated in a relief rally after a Brexit
agreement was finally reached with the European Union at the end of
2020.

▪

Bond yields rose over the quarter, most markedly in the US on the
back of economic recovery and inflation expectations fuelled by the
new stimulus package. Meanwhile, the US Federal Reserve (Fed)
continued to indicate that it would keep interest rates near zero until
at least 2024 while upgrading its 2021 growth forecast to 6.5% from
4.2%. The European Central Bank (ECB) pledged to speed up its
bond-buying program under its €1.9tn pandemic emergency purchase
program (PEPP).

▪

The FTSE All Stocks Gilts Index and the FTSE All Stocks IndexLinked Gilts Index returned -7.2% and -6.3% respectively as gilt yields
followed US treasury yields higher and were boosted by economic
optimism as vaccines were rolled out speedily in the UK.

▪

UK investment grade credit spreads continued to contract as credit
markets performed well. However, the return on the iBoxx Sterling
Non-Gilt Index fell by 4.1% over Q1, driven by rising government
bond yields.

▪

Political tensions between China and major Western countries rose
over Beijing’s treatment of Uyghur Muslims. Sanctions were imposed
by both sides.

▪

A steady income return ensured that the total return of the MSCI UK
Monthly Property Index remained in positive territory, as the index
returned 2.2% overall. The index was boosted by a rise in UK property
capital values.

35

Page 71

UK Equities

Overseas Equities

▪

UK equities rose by 5.2%, outperforming other markets in sterling
terms, but not in local terms, after their huge 10.6% return in Q4
2020. The UK entered its third national lockdown in January with 1.3
million cases reported just in that month. However, the impressive UK
vaccination program caused case numbers to tumble and the UK
equity market, along with other equity markets, posted strong March
returns. The Energy and Materials sectors performed particularly well
as commodity markets continued to rally with the Brent crude oil price
future moving above $60/barrel. The Financial sector also posted a
10.1% return as rising bond yields buoyed the sector.

▪

UK large cap stocks underperformed their smaller counterparts again
this quarter as the more international-focused large caps were hurt by
sterling appreciation.

▪

Japanese equities made the strongest local currency gains over the
quarter, supported by low virus cases, global demand for its exports
and cyclical market exposure. However, most of the gain was
eradicated from an unhedged UK investor perspective due to yen
depreciation against the pound.

▪

European ex-UK equities posted the next strongest local return
despite its slow vaccine roll-out and increase in virus cases which
continued to hurt its services sector. However, the region’s
Manufacturing Purchasing Managers’ Index hit a high of 62.4.

▪

US equities returned 5.5% over the quarter in local currency terms.
The labour market continued to improve with the US unemployment
rate falling to 6.2% in February, down from 6.7% a quarter ago. The
Consumer Confidence Index rose strongly.

▪

After being the best performer in Q4 2020, Emerging market equities
lagged this quarter as rising US yields and a more buoyant US dollar
dragged on equity markets and currencies.

▪

In the FTSE All-World ex-UK Index, Energy (+18.0%) and Financials
(+10.4%) were the best performing sectors in local currency terms,
benefiting from the recovering global economy and oil prices. On the
flipside, Healthcare (+1.8%) and Utilities (+2.4%) were the worst
performers.

Currencies and
Interest Rates

Source: FactSet

▪

Sterling appreciated against major currencies over the quarter,
boosted by the Brexit deal, vaccine-led economic optimism and higher
UK bond yields. It rallied most against the yen (8% move) which
depreciated on a broad basis against the global risk-on backdrop but

36

Page 72

the pound was also quite strong against the euro, rising by 5.1% to
€1.17/£.
▪

The US Dollar Index rose by 3.7% over the quarter as the US
regained some of its growth and yield advantage over the rest of the
world. Sterling moved briefly above $1.40/£ in February but ended the
quarter at $1.38/£ after appreciating, removing some of the
appreciation gains over the quarter.

Gilt Returns

Source: FactSet, ICE BofA (cash), FTSE (all others).

▪

UK fixed gilt yields rose across all maturities over the first quarter,
driving the negative performance of UK fixed interest government
bonds. Yields rose on the back of expectations of a strong economic
recovery and the shift in expectations of money markets away from a
negative bank rate.

▪

The FTSE All Stocks Gilts Index returned -7.2% over the quarter
whilst the FTSE All Stocks Index-Linked Gilts Index returned -6.3%.

Yield Curves

Source: Aon, Bloomberg.

▪

UK nominal government bond yields rose across maturities over the
first quarter. The rise in yields at medium and long-dated maturities
was significant with 10-year and 30-year nominal yields rising 70bps
to 0.93% and 65bps to 1.43% respectively. These yields are now
back to similar levels to prior to the pandemic at the start of last year.

37

Page 73

▪

The upwards shift in the index linked yield curve was less marked as
breakeven inflation rose strongly over the quarter, buoyed by
economic optimism. 10-year breakeven inflation increased to 3.71%
rising 44bps over the quarter.

UK Investment Grade
Credit

Source: FactSet, iBoxx

▪

Credit markets benefited from risk-on investor sentiment with credit
spreads continuing to contract to ever tighter levels. UK investment
grade credit spreads edged down by 2bps to 106bps, based on IBoxx
Sterling Non-Gilts data. Lower-quality credit spreads tightened by
more than their higher-quality counterparts. BBB-rated non-gilt
spreads fell by 5bps to 152bps. However, due to the rise in
government bond yields, the Sterling Non-Gilts Index dropped by
4.1%.

▪

Global investment grade credit spreads fell by 5bps to 98bps over the
quarter. Riskier areas of credit, such as US high yield bonds
outperformed due to their shorter duration and larger credit spread
contraction. US high yield credit spreads fell by 50bps to end the
quarter at 336bps. (Data is based on ICE BofA indices).

▪

Hard currency Emerging debt spreads, in contrast, widened by 73bps
(based on the JP Morgan EMBI Global Diversified index) as higher
US yields unnerved Emerging markets.

UK Property

Source: MSCI

▪

UK property capital values continued to rise over the first quarter of
2021. Together with a steady income return, the MSCI UK Monthly
Property Index posted a positive return of 2.2% over the quarter. The
index has reached an all-time high. Meanwhile, vacancy rates rose by
0.8% to 9.8%, whilst rental growth was slightly positive.

▪

The Industrial sector continued to outperform other property sectors,
returning 5.2% over Q1, boosted by heightened demand for logistics
during the pandemic. Meanwhile, the Retail and Office sectors
returned 0.6% and 0.1% respectively.

38

Page 74

Accounting Deficit
(FTSE 350)

Funding Levels
(Typical Pension
Scheme)

▪

The aggregate accounting balance of final salary pension schemes
fell over the quarter. Asset values of a typical scheme also fell over
the quarter, with rising equity markets offsetting some of the falls in
the value of government bond holdings due to a rising gilt yield
environment. Overall, by the end of the quarter, the accounting
balance improved by £23.4bn to an £18.5bn deficit.

▪

Accounting basis discount rates, which are typically based on
estimates of corporate bond yields at longer maturities, ended the
quarter higher as underlying government bond yields increased.
Long-dated corporate bond yields, based on the iBoxx Sterling NonGilts Over 10 Year Index, rose by 66bps to 2.37%. Pension liabilities
fell by £67.1bn over the period on an accounting basis.

▪

Liabilities decreased on a gilts basis over the quarter as long-dated
bond yields rose. Asset values also fell but proportionally less than
liabilities which led to an increase in funding ratios. The aggregate
funding ratio on a gilts basis rose by 2.4% to 72.4%.

▪

Long-dated fixed interest gilt yields (20-year duration) rose by 69 bps
to 1.42% over the quarter. 20-year real yields rose by 37bps over the
quarter whilst 20-year breakeven inflation rose by 32bps.

39

Page 75

Appendix B – Quarterly Investment Outlook
▪

Vaccine success and large US fiscal expansion have led to a rare event. Bond yields and rates
views have moved up for a change.

▪

The pandemic’s drag on economic activity now looks to be of shorter duration than many would
have expected a year ago. But its disruption and key ‘new normal’ effects will still leave a lasting
legacy.

▪

The gilt yield jump in Q1 has erased the extreme pessimism in the UK rates market. Large yield
moves higher from here look unlikely.

▪

Index-linked gilts look expensive versus fixed, however. The current scarcity of index-linked gilts
should ease as issuance rises. However,

▪

any inflation underhedging to take advantage of this needs to be done with care.

▪

Pension scheme de-risking demand for UK corporate bonds is now an important factor in
sustaining low credit spreads in the sterling market. Low reward for credit risk could remain the
status quo on these trends. Global approaches to credit selection will provide some alleviation.

▪

The past half year’s comeback in equity market laggards represents a conventional rotation to
value, which has been in line with our views. There should be some more of it later this year.

▪

The earnings recovery under way is supportive for equities but recovery and reopening is already
priced in. More good news to excite markets is getting harder to find. Equities look reasonable as
a ‘hold’ but it is harder to make the case for putting new money to work.

▪

UK commercial property appears to have had a pandemic ‘soft landing’ to date but there are
some caveats. A global approach to real estate exposures remains the preferred option.

▪

Bitcoin is a long way away from being a new digital gold. Its scary volatility, speculative
immaturity and competition from central banks are formidable hurdles to its wider adoption.

Q1 2021 Performance Summary

Past performance is no guarantee of future results. Indices cannot be invested in directly. Unmanaged index returns assume reinvestment of all distributions and do not
reflect fees or expenses

40

Page 76

Re-opening and recovery expectations
prompt a bond sell-off
After the initial pandemic shock in early 2020, falling bond
yields and rising equity markets had coincided for the rest
of the year. Central banks cut interest rates and pumped
in liquidity, supporting both bonds and risky assets. This
market dynamic changed coming into 2021, with equities
and bonds going in opposite directions. The trigger was
the rush of optimism on economic recovery. Hopes rose
for vaccine-led economic re-opening just as a very large
fiscal stimulus package under a new US administration
passed Congress. This combination made those low
bond yields of late 2020 look suspect given the
transformed economic outlook. Bond prices fell sharply as
yields jumped everywhere, gilts included. Equities rose
on the promise of stronger corporate profits and the UK
market continued its run of better performance. Even UK
commercial property returns moved positive as capital
value falls eased.

2020’s ‘New Normal’ ideas remain valid
even with a ‘short’ pandemic
As we look back on the past year, it is striking how the
world’s scientific community discovered highly effective
vaccines in well under a year after the initial pandemic
outbreak, far sooner than could reasonably have been
expected. Swift regulatory approval followed. Some,
though not all, governments have then succeeded in a
rapid rollout to the public. This overall success in
vaccines makes the duration and severity of the
pandemic look rather better than most would have hoped
for a year ago, even though declaring victory is still
premature. This scientific feat has transformed economic
forecasts for 2021 and is being reflected in activity data
now coming through (see chart).
Global economic releases signalling recovery
(Purchasing Managers’ Indices)

Does this astonishing success mean that ‘New Normal’
notions of Covid-19’s lasting impact, so commonly
discussed last year, should be jettisoned? We had
argued that our highlighted New Normal trends were
likely to be mostly impervious to the pandemic’s duration
and severity1. In fact, a year later, even with a seemingly
‘short’ pandemic, most if not all, of these New Normal
trends appear to persist. Whether it is greater digital
penetration, or much greater government involvement in
economies, a stronger focus on inequality, or indeed
faster progress towards a carbon transition, we have
been travelling further along the roadmap laid out last
year.
Of course, it is true that a year is a short time and allows
us only a preliminary assessment, especially for the more
structural New Normal scenarios which will take much
more time than a year to evolve. A note updating
developments on these New Normal trends will be
available soon.

Gilt yields rise, but what now?
Q1’s rise in gilt yields is a rare event, given such a long
period of falling gilt yields. Falling yields over time have
mainly reflected moves towards lower policy interest rates
and gilt markets becoming resigned to a view that ultra-low
rates would remain the status quo for many years to come.
However, last year’s yield falls had gone to levels where
pessimism on the outlook had just stretched too far. With the
UK’s successful vaccine rollout in early 2021 and pent up
demand from consumers unable to spend in lockdowns,
something had to give. As UK economic growth forecasts
started to be revised up sharply in late January, yields
jumped, by about 0.5% across middle and longer tenors. The
market’s expectation that a negative bank rate might be the
end game for the Bank of England, faded.
What now for gilt yields after this step jump? We see the
excessive pessimism in gilts now largely erased, even
though some upward creep over time is still likely, a view that
the gilt yield curve already allows for. To us, the Q1 jump in
yields does not look like the thin end of the wedge in
portending large further rises in yields. The economy will
bounce later this year, but it is unlikely to be growing fast
enough beyond that to ignite overheating and inflation fears.
Just as important, rising rates would make management of
the government’s sharply increased debt burden far harder,
an important element of the New Normal. This limits scope
for the Bank of England to raise interest rates and caps fixed
interest gilt yields, even though small increases in bank rate
over time should still be possible.

Source: Markit, FactSet

1 Aon, The New Normal – what is it and what does it mean for investors? August 2020

41

Page 77

Inflation hedging currently expensive
Index-linked gilts, however, do show a pricing anomaly
relative to their fixed equivalent. This arises because
current implied inflation in the index-linked market
substantially exceeds expected inflation. If we take the
next 25 years (i.e. the 2021 to 2045 period), consensus
views see average expected inflation (allowing for the
move from RPI to CPIH inflation in early 2030) at least
1% lower than current implied inflation in the gilt market
for this period. Since the November RPI announcement,
inflation hedging has become more, not less, expensive
despite likely longer-dated inflation falling markedly after
reform (see chart). Even after allowing for the customary
‘inflation risk premium’ (which reflects the scarcity of
index-linked gilts), UK inflation hedging costs are high.
What is the explanation? It looks as though the scarcity
of index-linked gilts has increased in the past few years
on account of the government reducing the proportion of
its gilt issuance that is inflation-linked, amidst still high
hedging demand. Over the medium-term, this imbalance
in the market should ease as index-linked issuance picks
up again with the reform announcement now behind us.
This would lower the market’s implied inflation levels
towards more reasonable levels. Such a view does not
imply that clients should necessarily reduce hedging
levels. For many, it will not be the right thing to do.
Schemes will need to evaluate the risks and reward
carefully, and those deciding to under-hedge will need to
size positions bearing in mind the risk that the pricing
anomaly could persist.
Inflation pricing higher since RPI reform announcement
(25-year implied inflation - spot rate, %)

Pension funds driving up sterling
corporate bond prices?
Funding levels for UK pension schemes have improved in
the past year and are much higher than five years ago.
Funding improvement has encouraged de-risking to ‘lockin’ gains and this trend has strengthened recently. As
funds move towards self-sufficiency or buy-out, asset
allocation has changed, with lower allocations to equities
and more towards bonds. The journey to buyout and
higher cash flow needs of more mature pension funds
raise scheme-buying of corporate bonds. Cashflow-driven
and ‘buy and maintain’ strategies have been popular. The
Pensions Regulator’s data show what has been
happening; the DB universe has raised its bond allocation
in assets some 20% in the 2015-20 period, corporate
bonds averaging about a third of this.
Raised demand affects prices of corporate bonds much
as liability hedging through LDI has over many years
increased demand and raised prices for index-linked gilts.
As more pension assets switch into credit, this impact
could increase. Higher issuance can only take some of
the strain. This demand-led impact is arguably already a
factor in UK corporate bond spreads recently reaching
their lowest ever level (adjusted for credit grade quality),
though credit spreads are now very low globally.
What does this mean for investors? That reward for
credit risk in holding corporate bonds is likely to settle at
lower levels on an ongoing basis. This does not mean
that market fluctuations do not happen (as we saw
through the pandemic shock last year), but it could mean
a lower average level of credit spreads over time. One
alleviation of this difficulty for investors is to consider a
more global approach, although many will prefer to hold
sterling bonds.

How the laggards caught up

Source: Bank of England, FactSet

The vaccine news prompted a strong change of market
leadership. Global sector performance since this move
began six months or so ago, tell the story well.
Technology, the big winner of the pandemic has generally
underperformed since, and financial and resource stocks
have made a strong comeback (see chart below). So
much so now that over the previous twelve months, these
three sectors now show level-pegging performance (all
three showing gains of around 60% at the time of writing).
This rebound does not claw back much ground versus
technology over longer periods, but it is still something.

42

Page 78

Our view on the vaccine news being the catalyst for a
rotation into the laggards was based on a conventional
rotation to value. Confidence would grow on economic
recovery amidst higher bond yields and reduced
pessimism in rates markets. This has happened. Some of
this rotation is behind us, but some more should come
later in the year as the global recovery disperses towards
lagging regions.
How lagging sectors caught up since last October
(MSCI World sector returns, US dollars, October 2020=100)

Pandemic ‘soft landing’?
On the face of it, UK commercial property has had a
pandemic ‘soft landing’, defying many gloomy forecasts
that were made a year ago. Returns dipped into negative
territory for a time but are now turning positive (see
chart). Property returns derive substantial stability and
positive tailwinds from the income element which
normally accounts for most of the return. Weaker rents
and a dip in capital values were seen for a time, but the
outlook overall seems to have stabilised recently. While
office demand is weak, logistics demand for property has
been strong. Inward investment from overseas has not
fallen. Capital values, already dipping before the
pandemic, are now settling about 10% lower than 2018
levels; these falls are not large enough to threaten a
prolonged period of negative returns.
UK commercial property soft landing?

Source: MSCI, FactSet

(MSCI UK property total return index, February 2018 = 100)

Crosscurrents for equities
The rotation into the laggards has been healthy for
markets given the narrowness of the earlier gains in 2020
which had been far too focused on a small number of
stocks. Recovery optimism is coming through in upward
revisions to earnings forecasts. More positive economic
news flow also helps keep equity markets supported for
now.
However, this may not be enough to keep markets
ascending. Equities have now priced in economic reopening and a profits recovery. There is an absence of
positive catalysts to push further gains. Indicators of
investor sentiment and positioning are very upbeat, which
also suggest limited room for positive surprises. Finally,
with such strong gains behind us, we are sitting at record
equity market valuations. While it is still true that valuation
does not look stretched relative to fixed income, bonds
are a threat. The effects on yields of such a large rise in
US treasury issuance to finance an expected budget
deficit of some 15% of US GDP in 2021 are an unknown.
This is a source of market volatility; we have already seen
the high sensitivity of the technology sector to interest
rate trends in the past few months. Overall, this backdrop
still suggests some challenges for equities ahead. As we
see it today, equities are a ‘hold’, not a ‘buy’, but derisking schemes are well placed in this environment to
implement their plans.

Source: MSCI, FactSet

Still, some caution is merited for several reasons. The
volume of transactions fell sharply last year, which means
that appraisal values became less reliable. Various
pandemic cushions brought in to protect tenants (such as
preventing forfeiture of commercial leases) prevented
pain and cannot be continued indefinitely. Office demand
may not revive easily even with a stronger economy. All
said and done, however, this looks more like a period of
subdued return than prolonged outright pain for UK
property. However, we continue to prefer the global route
in property exposures in order to access diversity in
different markets.

43

Page 79

Bitcoin still far from ‘digital gold’
Bitcoin’s stratospheric rise in recent years has put it
in the limelight and raised investor curiosity.
Proponents see a parallel with gold, seeing Bitcoin
poised to become a digital store of value. We took a
close look at Bitcoin recently and our assessment is
that we are a long way away from that. Its extreme
volatility, a multiple of that in gold and equities, is a
key barrier to more widespread adoption making the
market appear very speculative and immature. A
more immediate threat to Bitcoin is central bank and
regulatory intervention or competition which would
potentially limit institutional demand. The new Bank
of England proposal for a digital currency provides
an early indication of this.

44

Page 80

Appendix C – Explanation of Manager Ratings
Below we describe the criteria which we use to rate fund management organizations and their specific
investment products. Our manager research process assesses each component using both our
qualitative and Aon InForm criteria. With the exception of Operational Due Diligence ("ODD"), each
component is assessed as follows:
Qualitative
Outcome
1 = Weak
2 = Average

Aon InForm
Outcome

✓

Pass: This component in isolation meets or exceed our desired
criteria



Alert: This component in isolation does not meet our desired
criteria, or the lack of data on this component means that we are
not able to judge whether it meets our desired criteria

-

Not assessed: There is a lack of data, which means that we are
not able to assess this component, however we do not consider
this in isolation to justify an Alert

3 = Above
Average
4 = Strong

The ODD factor is assigned a rating and can be interpreted as follows:
Overall ODD
Rating*

What does this mean?

A1 Pass

No material operational concerns – the firm’s operations largely align
with a well-controlled operating environment.

A2 Pass

The firm’s operations largely align with a well-controlled operating
environment, with limited exceptions – managers may be rated within
this category due to resource limitations or where isolated areas do not
align with best practice.

Conditional Pass
(“CP”)

Specific operational concerns noted that the firm has agreed to address
in a reasonable timeframe; upon resolution, we will review the firm’s
rating.

F

Material operational concerns that introduce the potential for economic
or reputational exposure exist – we recommend investors do not invest
and/or divest current holdings.

*Operational due diligence inputs provided to the research team by Aon’s Operational Risk Solutions and Analytics Group
(ORSA). ORSA is an independent entity from Aon Solutions UK Limited, Aon Solutions Investment Consulting, Inc., and Aon
Solutions Inc./ Aon Solutions Investment Management Inc. Investment advice is provided by these Aon entities.

Aon previously assigned ODD ratings of pass, conditional pass, or fail for the ODD factor. We are in
the process of refreshing all ODD ratings to the new terminology. During the transition period, the
prior ratings, as follows, may persist in some deliverables until the ODD factor rating is converted to
the above noted letter ratings.
▪

Pass – Our research indicates that the manager has acceptable operational controls and
procedures in place.

▪

Conditional Pass – We have specific concerns that the manager needs to address within a
reasonable established timeframe.

▪

Fail – Our research indicates that the manager has critical operational weaknesses and we
recommend that clients formally review the appointment.
45

Page 81

An overall rating is then derived taking into account both the above outcomes for the product. The
overall rating can be interpreted as follows:

Overall Rating

What does this mean?

Buy

We recommend clients invest with or maintain their existing allocation to
our Buy rated high conviction products

Buy (Closed)

We recommend clients invest with or maintain their existing allocation to
our Buy rated high conviction products, however it is closed to new
investors

Qualified

A number of criteria have been met and we consider the investment
manager to be qualified to manage client assets

Not
Recommended

A quantitative assessment of this strategy indicates it does not meet our
desired criteria for investment. This strategy is not recommended.

Sell

We recommend termination of client investments in this product

In Review

The rating is under review as we evaluate factors that may cause us to
change the current rating

The comments and assertions reflect our views of the specific investment product and our opinion of
its quality. Differences between the qualitative and Aon InForm outcome can occur and if meaningful
these will be explained within the Key Monitoring Points section. Although the Aon InForm
Assessment forms a valuable part of our manager research process, it does not automatically alter
the overall rating where we already have a qualitative assessment. Overall rating changes must go
through our qualitative manager vetting process. Similarly, we will not issue a Buy recommendation
before fully vetting the manager on a qualitative basis.
The ESG factor is assigned a rating and can be interpreted as follows:
Overall Rating

What does this mean?

4

The Fund Management Team demonstrates high awareness of all
known and potentially financially material ESG risks in the investment
strategy and, at present, has incorporated appropriate processes to
identify, evaluate and potentially mitigate these risks across the entire
portfolio.

3

The Fund Management Team demonstrates an above average
awareness of potential ESG risks in the investment strategy and has
taken essential steps to identify, evaluate and potentially mitigate these
risks.

2

The Fund Management Team is aware of potential ESG risks in the
investment strategy and has taken some steps to identify, evaluate and
potentially mitigate these risks.

1

The Fund Management Team appears unaware or unconcerned with
ESG risks in the investment strategy and has not taken any material
steps to address ESG considerations in the portfolio.

N/A (Not
Applicable)

An evaluation of ESG risks is not directly applicable to this strategy and
therefore an ESG rating has not been assessed.

46

Page 82

NR (Not Rated)

An evaluation of ESG risks is not yet available for this strategy.

Ratings Explanation - Infrastructure
The standard ratings for closed Infrastructure funds have changed from Buy, Qualified, Not Qualified
to a Performance Rating of Exceeding Expectations, Performing, or Below Expectations. This change
is being made to better address the nature of the asset class and closed fund structures. The current
“Buy, Qualified, Not Qualified” rating system is not really useful for closed funds since an investor can
neither invest in nor exit a closed fund, except through the secondary market. The Performance
Rating is designed to provide better and more useful information on a closed fund’s performance. The
Performance Rating is based on a series on quantitative inputs, the weighting of which adjust as a
fund matures. A fund will be rated annually through the quantitative rating process. Performance
Ratings will not be adjusted quarterly unless there is a very significant change in performance. The
definition of the Performance Ratings is below:
Overall Rating

What does this mean?

Exceeding
Expectations

The product has adequate diversification relative to its goals and is performing
well relative to its peers of the same vintage.

Performing

The product has adequate diversification relative to its goals and is performing
in line with its peers of the same vintage. The product may have some
investment concentrations relative to its goals yet is performing well relative to,
or in line with, its peers of the same vintage.

Below
Expectations

The product is performing below its peers of the same vintage. The product may
have some or significant investment concentrations relative to its goals.

In Review

The rating is under review as we evaluate factors that may cause us to change
the current rating

47

Page 83

Disclaimer
This document and any enclosures or attachments are prepared on the understanding that it is solely
for the benefit of the addressee(s). Unless we provide express prior written consent, no part of this
document should be reproduced, distributed or communicated to anyone else and, in providing this
document, we do not accept or assume any responsibility for any other purpose or to anyone other
than the addressee(s) of this document.
Notwithstanding the level of skill and care used in conducting due diligence into any organisation that
is the subject of a rating in this document, it is not always possible to detect the negligence, fraud, or
other misconduct of the organisation being assessed or any weaknesses in that organisation's
systems and controls or operations.
This document and any due diligence conducted is based upon information available to us at the date
of this document and takes no account of subsequent developments. In preparing this document we
may have relied upon data supplied to us by third parties (including those that are the subject of due
diligence) and therefore no warranty or guarantee of accuracy or completeness is provided. We
cannot be held accountable for any error, omission or misrepresentation of any data provided to us by
third parties (including those that are the subject of due diligence). This document is not intended by
us to form a basis of any decision by any third party to do or omit to do anything.
Any opinions or assumptions in this document have been derived by us through a blend of economic
theory, historical analysis and/or other sources. Any opinion or assumption may contain elements of
subjective judgement and are not intended to imply, nor should be interpreted as conveying, any form
of guarantee or assurance by us of any future performance. Views are derived from our research
process and it should be noted in particular that we cannot research legal, regulatory, administrative
or accounting procedures and accordingly make no warranty and accept no responsibility for
consequences arising from relying on this document in this regard.
Calculations may be derived from our proprietary models in use at that time. Models may be based on
historical analysis of data and other methodologies and we may have incorporated their subjective
judgement to complement such data as is available. It should be noted that models may change over
time and they should not be relied upon to capture future uncertainty or events.

48

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 85
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Bookmarks

Investment Summary| 3| 1
| 0| 2
| 0| 3
Performance Summary| 4| 1
| 0| 2
| 0| 3
Quarterly Update| 8| 1
| 0| 2
| 0| 3
Funds| 16| 1
LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund| 16| 2
Quarterly Manager Commentary| 17| 3
Asset Allocation| 22| 3
Holdings| 23| 3
Environmental Social Governance| 24| 3
| 0| 2
| 0| 3
LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund| 34| 2
Quarterly Manager Commentary| 35| 3
Asset Allocation| 40| 3
Holdings| 41| 3
Environmental Social Governance| 42| 3
| 0| 2
| 0| 3
LCIV Emerging Market Equity Fund| 51| 2
Quarterly Manager Commentary| 52| 3
Asset Allocation| 56| 3
Holdings| 57| 3
Environmental Social Governance| 58| 3
| 0| 2
| 0| 3
LCIV MAC Fund| 67| 2
Quarterly Manager Commentary| 68| 3
Environmental Social Governance| 73| 3
| 0| 3
Passive Investment Summary| 81| 2
| 0| 3
Appendices| 82| 1
| 0| 2
| 0| 3
Glossary of Terms| 82| 2
| 0| 3
Disclaimer| 86| 2
| 0| 3

London CIV Quarterly ACS Investment Report
London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
31 March 2021

Page 105

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund

Introduction
We are pleased to present the London CIV Quarterly Investment Report for the
London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund for the quarter to 31 March 2021. The
Report provides an Investment Summary with valuation and performance data of
your Pension Fund's holdings. It includes an update on activities at London CIV, a
market update and Fund commentary from the London CIV Investment Team as
well as key portfolio data and a summary of ESG activity during the quarter. We
hope you find this report informative. Should you require any further information
regarding any aspect of your investment, or about our service, please contact our
Client Service Team via e-mail (clientservice@londonciv.org.uk).

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

Contents
Investment Summary . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
Performance Summary . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
Quarterly Update . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7
Funds
LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15
LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33
LCIV Emerging Market Equity Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 50
LCIV MAC Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 66
Appendices
Glossary of Terms . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 81
Disclaimer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 85

This report is confidential. It has been prepared for information purposes only and does not constitute investment advice. Whilst reasonable care has been taken to ensure that the information and opinions expressed as
part of this report were considered and valid at the time the report was published no representation or warranty as to the accuracy or completeness of this information is given.

Page 106

Passive Investment Summary . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 80

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

2

Investment Summary
The table below shows the Sub-funds held by the London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund by asset class as at 31 March 2021 and how these have changed during the quarter.
31 December 2020
Net Subscriptions /
Cash Distributions
Net Market Move
31 March 2021
(Redemptions)
Paid

ACS

£

£

£

£

Global Equities
LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund

113,747,761

-

-

2,484,080

116,231,841

LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund

85,692,053

-

-

5,652,156

91,344,209

LCIV Emerging Market Equity Fund

35,988,354

-

-

(61,955)

35,926,399

Fixed Income
LCIV MAC Fund

53,598,839

-

-

1,107,767

54,706,606

289,027,007

-

-

9,182,048

298,209,055

Total

The table below outlines the valuation of investments held per passive manager at the beginning and end of the quarter. A listing of the individual funds held can be found at the
end of the Funds section of this report.
31 December 2020
Passive Investments
Blackrock

†

31 March 2021

£

£

306,947,255

312,138,675

† Passive investments are managed in investment funds for which London CIV has no management or advisory responsibility and are shown for information purposes only.

Page 107

£

Active Investments

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

3

Performance Summary
Please see below the performance for ACS Sub-funds in which you, the Client Fund (CF), are invested. Performance since inception is annualised where period since inception is
over 12 months.
1 Year
%

3 Years
p.a. %

5 Years
p.a. %

Since CF
Inception p.a. %

CF Inception
Date

LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund

2.20

56.46

18.92

n/a

18.28

30/09/2016

Benchmark: MSCI All Country World Gross Index (in GBP)

3.55

39.53

13.29

n/a

12.26

Relative to Benchmark

(1.35)

16.93

5.63

n/a

6.02

Comparator Index: MSCI Growth Index Net Total Return

(0.84)

42.13

19.13

n/a

16.36

Relative to Comparator Index

3.04

14.33

(0.21)

n/a

1.92

LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund

6.54

36.01

n/a

n/a

10.14

Benchmark: MSCI World (GBP)(TRNet)

3.95

38.43

n/a

n/a

14.17

Relative to Benchmark

2.59

(2.42)

n/a

n/a

(4.03)

Comparator Index: MSCI World Quality Price Index Net Total Return

1.75

33.34

n/a

n/a

18.91

Relative to Comparator Index

4.79

2.67

n/a

n/a

(8.77)

(0.13)

53.51

n/a

n/a

13.36

1.34

42.35

n/a

n/a

13.59

(1.47)

11.16

n/a

n/a

(0.23)

LCIV MAC Fund

2.11

25.25

n/a

n/a

3.94

Target Benchmark: 3m LIBOR +4.5%

1.10

4.64

n/a

n/a

5.01

Relative to Target Benchmark

1.01

20.61

n/a

n/a

(1.07)

LCIV Emerging Market Equity Fund
Benchmark: MSCI Emerging Market Index (TR) Net
Relative to Benchmark

24/10/2018

24/10/2018

30/11/2018

Page 108

Current
Quarter %

Net Performance

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

2 Quarterly Update

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021
3 Funds

4 Appendices

4

Quarterly Update Q1 2021
Welcome to the London CIV Quarterly Investment Report (“QIR”)
Happy financial new year to all our clients and shareholders. London CIV continues to build its ‘design- select- manage' approach to investment management,
looking to add value to you as both London CIV investors and shareholders. We are also integrating responsible investment, risk management and cost transparency
into everything we do. The fund investment reports on each of the funds you hold with London CIV appear later in this report and will include more detail on the
underlying investment managers and additional ESG data. In this summary, we are delighted to report we have launched the LCIV Renewable Infrastructure Fund,
the LCIV Private Debt Fund in March and the LCIV Global Alpha Growth Paris Aligned Fund in April. All are in line with the expected timelines. Thank you to all our
seed investors for your trust, hard work, and commitments to these three funds. Work continues on future fund launches such as the LCIV Low Carbon Passive and
Sterling Credit, whilst changes to the LCIV Global Bond Fund (ESG enhancements) and the LCIV MAC Fund (second investment manager) are also in progress.

Q1 2021 activity in brief
As of 31 March 2021, London CIV ACS assets under management (AuM) amounted to £11,088m which represents an increase of £338m when compared with the
previous quarter end. The net inflows for this quarter were £72.4m. As of 31 March 2021, the value of the passive AuM managed by LGIM and Blackrock was
£9,005m and £3,524m, respectively, giving a total £12,529m representing an increase of 5.3% when comparing to Q4 2020. London CIV is the AIFM for assets
managed in alternative investment vehicles such as Exempt Unauthorised Unit Trusts (‘EUUT’) or partnerships for which are referenced in this report. Net investment
inflows from 127 transactions (relating to investments on the ACS, EUUTs partnership), which include drawdowns, that took place in the last 12 months for Client
Funds for the year ending 31 March 2021 was £671m (this figure does not include the commitments to the recently launched LCIV Renewable Infrastructure Fund
and LCIV Private Debt Fund). The current percentage of total Client Fund assets that our Client Funds have now pooled with us amounts to approximately 54%,
rising to 57% when we add commitments to Private Market funds.

Page 109

Despite some short term (Q1) underperformance from London CIV growth and sustainable sub-funds, in aggregate the sub-funds have performed very well over
the last 12 months and since inception. This summary will update on activity, performance, markets and the investment outlook for 2021.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

2 Quarterly Update

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021
3 Funds

4 Appendices

5

Page 110

(Source: London CIV 31 March 2021)

The focus for Q1 2021 has been on the latter stages of the procurement and subsequent launch of both the LCIV Renewable Infrastructure Fund and the LCIV Private
Debt Fund. The final seed investor groups (SIGs) were held on 15 February 2021 and 16 February 2021, respectively. The launch date for both Funds had been
agreed early in the development stage with the respective SIGs and both were successfully launched on 29 March 2021. The illustration below depicts the total
commitments that have been made by Client Funds to the Private Markets funds managed via the London CIV EUUTs.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

2 Quarterly Update

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021
3 Funds

4 Appendices

6

Page 111

(Source: London CIV 31 March 2021. Colours represent the committed amounts of each Client Fund. We have not included a colour key for this graphic as some data is not in the public domain.)

London CIV have selected funds managed by BlackRock Investment Management, Foresight Group, Quinbrook Infrastructure Partners, and Stonepeak Global
Renewables Advisor for the LCIV Renewable Infrastructure Fund, subject to final due diligence and legal agreement. Five seed investors have committed an initial
£435m into the Fund, and in the subsequent closes we anticipate a further six Client Funds to invest more than £300m by the end of 2021.
London CIV have selected funds managed by Churchill Asset Management, and Pemberton Asset Management for the LCIV Private Debt Fund, subject to final due
diligence and legal agreement. Three Client Funds with an initial commitment of £290m have seeded this Fund; a further three investors are anticipated to invest
more than £150m by the end of the year.
We continue to work with SIGs for the Low Carbon Equity and Sterling Credit funds with meetings held on 25 January 2021 and 26 February 2021, respectively. The
inaugural meeting for Sterling Credit was held on 26 January 2021 with a subsequent meeting held on 2 March 2021. All events are recorded and are available for
viewing upon request. Further SIG meetings for both mandates have been arranged for 14 April 2021 (Low Carbon Equity), and 20 April 2021 (Sterling Credit).

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

7

The Paris Aligned version of the LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund is to be launched in mid-April 2021. We currently have three Client Funds who will be investing into
the Sub-fund which is anticipated to attract an initial £538m. We are anticipating more Client Funds to invest in this new Sub-fund following on from the decisions
expected from the Q2 2021 Pension Committees. We will continue to offer the current form of
the LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund for Client Funds wishing to retain their allocation to that
Sub-fund.

The LCIV Equity Income Fund’s remaining two investors have elected to disinvest from the Subfund in concert with each other a proportion of which will invest into r London CIV products.
The Sub-fund will formally terminate in due course once accruals, including withholding tax
receivable, have been realised.
Source: London CIV 31/03/21

We continue providing monthly Business Updates with an approximate average of 50 Client

Funds/Advisers representatives in attendance. During Q1 2021 we have covered our thoughts and approaches on climate change and carbon foot-printing (January
2021), London CIV fund reporting which included a session on fee savings reports and the London CIV ACS year-end report (February 2021) and most recently,
enhancements to Client Fund Quarterly Investment Reports (QIR) which we plan to phase in through this report and the Q2 2021 report.
Meet the Manager events have now moved to a quarterly basis, although we may call these earlier in extra-ordinary circumstances. The January 2021 event
discussed Private Markets through a panel session that considered the London Fund, LCIV Inflation Plus Fund, and the LCIV Infrastructure Fund. Recordings and
presentations for the Business Updates and Meet the Manager events are available via the Client Portal.
London CIV Fund Performance
The performance of all funds managed by London CIV can be found in the fund range table hereafter.

Page 112

London CIV is continuing with the latter stages of the procurement for a complementary
investment manager for the LCIV MAC Fund. We have followed a robust screening exercise that
considered quantitative data, qualitative data, proposed fees, complementary attribution and
each investment managers’ approach to Responsible Investment and how they integrate ESG
into their processes and philosophy. We will be convening a meeting comprising the current
LCIV MAC Fund investors in April 2021, prior to recommendations being brought to the London
CIV Executive Committee. We will provide expected timescales for the implementation which
will also consider the potential requirement, dependent upon client demand, for a suitable
single investment manager fund, the name for which is to be agreed.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

8

Please see below a summary of the London CIV Sub-funds, including both those in which you are invested, and those you are not. All performance is reported Net of fees and
charges with distributions reinvested. For performance periods of more than a year performance is annualised.

ACS

Size

Current
Quarter %

1 Year
%

3 Years
p.a. %

5 Years
p.a. %

Since Inception p.a.
%

Inception
Date

No. of
Investors

2.20
3.55
(1.35)
(0.84)
3.04
4.16
3.71
0.45
6.54
3.95
2.59
1.75
4.79
1.57
3.44
(1.87)
1.75
(0.18)
6.35

56.46
39.53
16.93
42.13
14.33
37.56
39.58
(2.02)
36.01
38.43
(2.42)
33.34
2.67
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
26.96

18.92
13.29
5.63
19.13
(0.21)
15.19
13.28
1.91
11.66
13.44
(1.78)
18.00
(6.34)
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
8.06

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

20.84
14.84
6.00
18.27
2.57
11.80
11.16
0.64
9.18
10.75
(1.57)
15.08
(5.90)
3.26
12.71
(9.45)
7.33
(4.07)
4.28

11/04/2016

13

22/05/2017

3

17/07/2017

5

21/08/2020

2

08/11/2017

2

3.95
2.40
4.97
1.38
(0.13)
1.34
(1.47)

38.43
(11.47)
21.90
5.06
53.51
42.35
11.16

13.44
(5.38)
8.24
(0.18)
7.26
7.07
0.19

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

10.05
(5.77)
4.88
(0.60)
4.92
4.78
0.14

11/01/2018

6

Global Equities

Benchmark: MSCI World Index (Net)
Performance Against Benchmark
Comparator Index: MSCI World High Dividend Yield Net Total Return
Performance Against Comparator Index
LCIV Emerging Market Equity Fund
Benchmark: MSCI Emerging Market Index (TR) Net
Performance Against Benchmark

£3,691m

£725m

£917m

£512m

£141m

£497m

Page 113

LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund
Benchmark: MSCI All Country World Gross Index (in GBP)
Performance Against Benchmark
Comparator Index: MSCI Growth Index Net Total Return
Performance Against Comparator Index
LCIV Global Equity Fund
Benchmark: MSCI All Country World Index Total Return (Gross)
Performance Against Benchmark
LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund
Benchmark: MSCI World (GBP)(TRNet)
Performance Against Benchmark
Comparator Index: MSCI World Quality Price Index Net Total Return
Performance Against Comparator Index
LCIV Global Equity Core Fund
Benchmark: MSCI All Country World Index (with net dividends reinvested)
Performance Against Benchmark
Comparator Index: MSCI World Quality Price Index Net Total Return
Performance Against Comparator Index
LCIV Equity Income Fund

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

ACS

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

Size

3 Funds

4 Appendices

9

Current
Quarter %

1 Year
%

3 Years
p.a. %

5 Years
p.a. %

Since Inception p.a.
%

Inception
Date

No. of
Investors

0.17
3.95
(3.78)
4.42
(4.25)
1.42
3.95
(2.53)
4.42
(3.00)

46.36
38.43
7.93
36.15
10.21
50.10
38.43
11.67
36.15
13.95

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

15.27
13.15
2.12
13.64
1.63
53.96
33.33
20.63
31.43
22.53

18/04/2018

5

11/03/2020

2

0.97
1.42
(0.45)
0.88
0.09
(0.73)
0.88
(1.61)
7.39
0.74
6.65
0.88
6.51
1.19
0.98
0.21
0.88
0.31

8.84
6.22
2.62
3.60
5.24
17.97
3.60
14.37
20.81
3.07
17.74
3.60
17.21
19.26
4.07
15.19
3.60
15.66

3.24
7.18
(3.94)
4.00
(0.76)
2.52
4.00
(1.48)
7.46
3.47
3.99
4.00
3.46
7.76
4.48
3.28
4.00
3.76

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
4.48
3.94
0.54
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

3.30
7.71
(4.41)
3.93
(0.63)
5.17
3.94
1.23
6.87
3.42
3.45
3.93
2.94
5.67
4.43
1.24
3.95
1.72

17/06/2016

3

15/02/2016

7

21/06/2016

9

16/12/2016

2

Global Equities
LCIV Sustainable Equity Fund
Benchmark: MSCI World Index Total Return (Net) in GBP
Performance Against Benchmark
Comparator Index: MSCI World ESG Leaders Net Index Total Return
Performance Against Comparator Index
LCIV Sustainable Equity Exclusion Fund
Benchmark: MSCI World Index Net (Total Return)
Performance Against Benchmark
Comparator Index: MSCI World ESG Leaders Net Index Total Return
Performance Against Comparator Index

£693m

£390m

LCIV Global Total Return Fund
Target Benchmark: RPI + 5%
Performance Against Target Benchmark
Comparator Index: UK Base Rate +3.5%
Performance Against Comparator Index
LCIV Diversified Growth Fund
Target Benchmark: UK Base Rate +3.5%
Performance Against Target Benchmark
LCIV Absolute Return Fund
Target Benchmark: 1m LIBOR +3%
Performance Against Target Benchmark
Comparator Index: UK Base Rate +3.5%
Performance Against Comparator Index
LCIV Real Return Fund
Target Benchmark: 1m LIBOR +4%
Performance Against Target Benchmark
Comparator Index: UK Base Rate +3.5%
Performance Against Comparator Index

£241m

£657m

£1,018m

£124m

Page 114

Multi Asset

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

ACS

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

Size

3 Funds

4 Appendices

10

Current
Quarter %

1 Year
%

3 Years
p.a. %

5 Years
p.a. %

Since Inception p.a.
%

Inception
Date

No. of
Investors

2.11
1.10
1.01
(3.07)
(3.12)
0.05

25.25
4.64
20.61
9.57
7.44
2.13

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

3.43
5.06
(1.63)
6.33
6.15
0.18

31/05/2018

12

30/11/2018

3

Inception
Date

No. of
Investors

Fixed Income
LCIV MAC Fund
Target Benchmark: 3m LIBOR +4.5%
Performance Against Target Benchmark
LCIV Global Bond Fund
Benchmark: Barclays Aggregate – Credit Index Hedged (GBP) Index
Performance Against Benchmark

£1,137m

Total LCIV Assets Under Management

£11,088m

Private Markets

31 December 2020
Total Commitment

Undrawn
Commitments

Called to Date

31 December 2020
Fund Value

£

£

£

£

LCIV Infrastructure Fund

399,000,000

64,936,054

334,063,946

63,287,188

31/10/2019

6

LCIV Inflation Plus Fund

107,000,000

28,465,103

78,534,897

26,301,537

11/06/2020

2

*For details on remaining current capacity available for further investment please contact the Client Service Team at clientservice@londonciv.org.uk.

Page 115

Active Investments

£343m

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

2 Quarterly Update

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021
3 Funds

4 Appendices

11

Since inception, the weighted average £ invested in London CIV Fund has outperformed its respective index/ passive equivalent by more than 2% p.a. Separately,
the passive funds managed by LGIM and Blackrock mentioned in this report have broadly performed in line with their Indices as expected. On the ACS, the LCIV
MAC Fund which invests in the CQS MAC Fund, is on ‘enhanced monitoring’ and the LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund, managed by Longview, is on the ‘watch list’. All
other sub-funds are on normal monitoring. More details appear in the respective fund pages in this report.
Markets

(Source: Bloomberg 31/03/21 in US$ except for the UK Propety Index; purple - poor performance; green - good performance)

Responsible Investment
London CIV continues to work with Client Funds through the Responsible Investment Reference Group (“RIRG”) and with partners outside the LGPS family. We have
procured S&P/ Trucost data services in January 2021 to assist with our climate change foot-printing and TCFD reporting which we expect to have in place for Q2
2021. We also have Hermes EOS as our preferred Voting and Engagement partner. These appointments will help to develop our stewardship focus themes of climate
change, human capital, and tax & transparency. They will also support the London CIV Investment Beliefs and the London CIV Medium Term Financial Strategy

Page 116

Growth assets have continued to perform well in the first quarter of 2021 with global equities returning 5% in dollars and 3.9% in sterling, although global credit
markets have turned down though by dropping 4.5% in the same period. This poor performance in stabilising assets has been led by government bonds with long
duration (long-term bonds that have greater interest rate sensitivity). The returns table below shows the long-term asset class returns, with property, infrastructure,
and private equity using listed index proxies for your private markets’ investments, but clearly showing that private market assets have made decent returns over
the long-term and are likely seeing a recovery as we emerge from the Covid-19 triggered recession in 2020. Over the last 10 years all these assets have comfortably
exceeded UK inflation.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

2 Quarterly Update

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021
3 Funds

4 Appendices

12

(“MTFS”). Responsible investment is being integrated into the investment process at London CIV at the design, selection, and management stages of the investment
process. This can be seen in the fund launch programmes we have and in the changes being made to the existing sub-funds. It is also an important component in
the selection and ongoing monitoring of the investment managers we select.
Cost Transparency
London CIV continue to work with our Client Funds (as Investors and Shareholders) through the Cost Transparency Working Group (“CTWG”). We will work with
you to improve cost reporting and look to manage those full investment costs effectively on your behalf. We will also be publishing our second annual ACS
Assessment of Value in Q2 2021.
Investment/economic outlook

(Source: Bloomberg consensus data 31/03/2021)

Page 117

Global economic activity is expected to pick up this year as we all get our Covid-19 jabs and the lockdowns ease. Consensus expectations are for a sharp recovery
in developed economies with a pick-up in inflation.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

2 Quarterly Update

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021
3 Funds

4 Appendices

13

The above chart highlights some significant barriers to future growth as a result of expanded budget deficits, and the threat of future inflation and rising interest
rates. As is often the case, financial markets have been preempting the future with growth assets rising (equities +50% in 12 months) and stabilizing assets
weakening. The future market direction will be driven by changes in investor expectations, not by historic data.
Investors’ expectations for inflation are the highest they have been for 10 years (Source: ASR and BofA investor surveys March 2021). However, headline inflation
levels (excluding oil and food) remain low, especially in Europe. Clearly, we are heading into a time of greater uncertainty on inflation if not entering an inflation
cycle. This has implications for asset allocation and pension funds meeting their future liabilities. Chart 3 below shows the breakeven inflation expectations implied
by the difference between Govt bonds and their Inflation linked equivalents.
UK (blue) and US (red) Implied Inflation Rates through Breakeven Rates Chart

Page 118

(Source: Bloomberg 27/04/2021)

Rising inflation also tends to lead to higher interest rates and yield curve steepening which will impact fixed income assets, though the economic recovery will likely
see stronger returns from higher credit risk assets like high yield and emerging market debt. Bond markets are significantly compromised currently because the

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

2 Quarterly Update

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021
3 Funds

4 Appendices

14

Bank of England now owns 33% of the UK Gilts issuance and many G8 governments have been actively buying corporate debt and providing support to distressed
companies in the lockdown.
A rising risk for investment returns is how Governments bring their post Covid-19 high debt levels under control. This is more concerning for the developed markets
than emerging markets as they have had greater access to such cheap credit. To balance budgets, taxes need to rise, and collection rates need to improve. The U.K.
and U.S. proposed measures to raise corporation tax and introduce minimum taxes will seek to address the deficits, but this will have a knock-on effect on investment
returns across all asset classes.
So, where do you find returns to meet and beat your liabilities? After the 50% move in equities over the last year, equities’ returns must moderate in the future
with the risk of decline rising. Stabilising assets (government bonds) will likely remain under pressure from rising inflation and interest rates which leaves income
assets (private markets, infrastructure, and credit) as the favoured asset classes, given their inflation protection and income attributes. Property will be a
problematic asset class as we find out what a post Covid-19 world looks like. London CIV believe the Long Term secular transition to climate stability and responsible
investment will continue to offer better risk-adjusted returns over the long term.

Page 119

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

15

LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund
Quarterly Summary as at 31 March 2021

.
. Investment Objective
.
.
. The objective of the Sub-fund is to exceed the rate .. Enfield Valuation:
Total Fund Value:
.
. of return of the MSCI All Country World Index by ..
. 2-3% per annum on a gross fee basis over rolling .
.
.
. five year periods.
.
.
. Enfield investment date: 30/09/2016
.
Inception date:
11/04/2016
. This is a segregated Sub-fund of the London CIV ..
. ACS administered by Northern Trust. The delegated . This is equivalent to 3.15% of the Fund
Price:
247.30p
.
. investment manager has been Baillie Gifford & Co ..
. since the Sub-funds inception date.
Distribution frequency:
Quarterly
. Distribution option: Reinvest
.
. Est. distribution to be reinvested: £212,845
.
Next XD date:
01/04/2021
.
.
.
.
.
Pay date:
28/05/2021
.
.
.
.
Dealing frequency:
Daily
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
...................................................................................................

£116.2m

£3,691.4m

1 Year
%

3 Years
p.a. %

5 Years
p.a. %

Since Fund
Inception p.a. %

Since CF
Inception p.a. %

Fund

2.20

56.46

18.92

n/a

20.84

18.28

Benchmark**

3.55

39.53

13.29

n/a

14.84

12.26

Relative to Benchmark

(1.35)

16.93

5.63

n/a

6.00

6.02

Comparator Index***

(0.84)

42.13

19.13

n/a

18.27

16.36

Relative to Comparator Index

3.04

14.33

(0.21)

n/a

2.57

1.92

**Benchmark Name: MSCI All Country World Gross Index (in GBP)
***The Comparator Index MSCI Growth Index Net Total Return is not the stated fund objective, but has been selected as an appropriate index given the style of the Sub-fund. For further details, please refer to the
Glossary.

Page 120

Current
Quarter %

Net Performance

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

16

LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund
Quarterly Commentary
Performance

Performance since LCIV inception
%
200

Looking at performance from a sector attribution perspective, the top
winners were sectors that would benefit from a life returning to normal post
the Covid-19 vaccine rollout. The Sub-fund's top performers in this quarter
was Materials, Consumer Staples and Real Estate. The less successful sectors
that contracted performance were Financials, Health Care and Energy.

100
50
0
-50

Fund

Benchmark*

Comparator Index**

Source: Fund prices calculated based on published prices. Benchmarks obtained from
Bloomberg. All performance reported net of fees and charges with distributions reinvested.
* MSCI All Country World Gross Index (in GBP)
** MSCI Growth Index Net Total Return

Page 121

The Sub-fund was able to outperform the comparator index, the MSCI World
Growth Index, in Q1 2021 as the index returned -1%. The investment
managers ability to tap into companies at different growth stages as defined
by their four buckets was able to protect the Sub-fund from the growth index
contraction.

150

30
/0
6
30 /2
/0 01
9 6
31 /2
/1 01 6
31 2/2
/0 01
3 6
30 /2
/0 01
6 7
30 /2
/0 01 7
31 9/2
/1 01
7
31 2/2
/0 01
7
30 3/2
/0 01
8
30 6/2
/0 01
8
31 9/2
/1 01
8
31 2/2
/0 01
8
30 3/2
/0 01
9
30 6/2
/0 01
9
31 9/2
/1 01
9
31 2/2
/0 01
9
30 3/2
/0 02
6 0
30 /2
/0 02
9 0
31 /2
/1 02
0
31 2/2
/0 02
3/ 0
20
21

The LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund returned 2.2% in Q1 2021
underperforming its benchmark by 1.4% in the period. 1 year performance
for the Sub-fund is 56.5% which has outperformed the benchmark by 16.9%.
Since inception outperformance has reduced to 6% p.a. from 6.7% p.a. in Q4
2020 however, it is still an outstanding result from the investment manager.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

17

LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund
Peer Analysis

Page 122

The peer analysis graphs are taken from eVestment and are dated the most
recent available quarter end, which is 31st December 2020. When asset
managers add their funds on eVestment, eVestment assigns them to a
universe based off the information the asset manager provides. The peer
analysis graphs use the eVestment primary universe, which comprises funds
with the most homogenous attributes in terms of investment objectives,
investment characteristics, and risk profiles. This allows for relevant “applesto-apples" comparisons among investment strategies. London CIV does not
choose the asset managers, or the funds used in this peer group analysis.

Throughout the period, the fund has been in the top 2 quartiles compared to
its peer group and has consistently out-performed the MSCI ACWI index.
Over the longer term (7-10 years) the fund has been in the top quartile. This
is coupled with low risk (tracking error) compared to its peer group. The style
of the fund is tilted away from all value factors and some growth (return on
equity, income/sales) with a strong positive tilt towards sales growth. The
fund is also biased towards small cap stocks with a high market beta.
Market Views
The investment manager published its Research Agenda for 2021 which looks
at four key themes that the investment manager will focus on when it comes
to the development of its portfolio. Whilst the investment manager is a

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

2 Quarterly Update

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021
3 Funds

4 Appendices

18

LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund
resolute bottom-up stock picker, this agenda helps them to identify potential
unrecognised growth opportunities. At a high level, the topics include: 1) An
argument that growth investing is diversified so the trope of value vs growth
is not as relevant in recent times, 2) a new era of dot-com companies that will
continue to innovate, 3) the shift of consumers and governments demanding
products or brands that are ethically aligned and authentic. Finally, 4) the
global energy transition from fossil fuels to renewable-energy sources.

The latter three themes are ideas that the investment manager has been
following for several years now and essentially builds the case for why the
investment manager owns many of the stocks in the portfolio such as Alibaba,
Facebook and Tencent. Whilst not being particularly brand-new ideas, it is
reassuring to see the finger is kept on the pulse on what the key trends are in
current times.
Positioning
The investment manager has had an active quarter Q1 2021 as 10+ new buys
and sales were completed. Rolling 1-year turnover has increased to 21% from
20% in Q4 2020 as a result of the increased trading. This is consistent with

One notable transaction was the reduction of Tesla by 1% such that it is no
longer a top 10 holding for the portfolio. It is still a high conviction holding for
the investment manager as the company makes up circa 2% of the portfolio.
They still believe that the company has no competition in the near term
however, concerns over the volatility of the share price over ‘noise’ around
the company was the reason for the reduction.
In terms of changes to the investment managers four growth buckets, two
new additions were made to Rapid Growth, and then one of each to Growth
Stalwart, Cyclical Growth and Latent Growth. Previous conversations with the
investment manager have revealed intentions to increase the Cyclical Growth
exposure in light of the impending economic recovery across the globe.
However, the investment manager is taking a prudent approach and
continues to invest across the growth spectrum as and when opportunities
arise as opposed to taking a top-down view which would go against its stated
philosophy.

Page 123

The first point seems to be the investment managers response to the
question of whether the growth factor is in for a reversal as posed by many
market participants. The markets witnessed a rotation into cyclical stocks
from November 2020 when positive vaccine news was announced. Many of
these names are also value stocks which in turn has led to a resurgence of the
style factor not seen for over a decade in Q1 2021. Indeed, it could be argued
that this may be the catalyst for a ‘return to value’ (we will see), however the
investment manager of the Sub-fund argues that there are companies that
are only just entering a “sustained period of disequilibrium” for which we
read “uncertainty”.

the 5-year holding period of the portfolio therefore it is not a concern at this
stage. When looking at changes to the sector weights, Consumer
Discretionary continues to be the largest proportion of the portfolio, however
it has fallen to 19.7% vs 20.3% in Q4 2020. Industrials, Materials and Cash
were the only parts of the portfolio to increase in the period.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

19

LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund
1.18. The retirement of Charles Plowden, one of the founding portfolio
managers, retiring in April 2021 has been a well-documented process. As
such, we are comfortable with Helen Xiong replacing him where she is seen
as a compliment to the existing portfolio managers Spencer Adair and
Malcolm MacColl.
The Sub-fund is the largest of our London CIV funds but the liquidity remains
very high, so this is not a concern. This is good news as we will expect some
redemptions as Client Funds look to the soon to be launched LCIV Global
Alpha Growth Paris Aligned Fund also managed by Baillie Gifford.

(Source: eVestment data as at 31/12/2020)

The chart above shows the style biases for the fund, as measured by
eVestment using the underlying holdings. Unsurprisingly, the fund has a
heavy bias towards “Growth” stocks (the green bars) and an underweight to
“Value” (the blue bars). Importantly, this growth has been captured without
entering into highly levered companies (depicted by the negative yellow bar),
which can sometimes inflate the figure.
Fund Monitoring
There are two key monitoring points from a London CIV perspective on the
Sub-fund which entails performance and resourcing. Whilst performance has
been very strong since inception, this can often be a cause for concern as high
outperformance could be due to the investment manager increasing risk in
the portfolio. This is not the case for the Sub-fund as key risk statistics are in
line with expectations with volatility remaining around 20% and a beta of

The LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund underperformed the benchmark in Q1
2021 by 1.4% but outperformed the comparable MSCI World Growth Index.
This highlights two key facts, 1) the Sub-fund will underperform the
benchmark when markets rotate towards economically sensitive cyclical
stocks. For a growth fund, this characteristic is to be expected since those
types of stocks seldom feature on a growth screen. 2) the Sub-fund is not just
tracking the MSCI World Growth Index, it showcases the investment
managers success in selecting stocks. These two takeaways (albeit just based
on one quarter) show that the Sub-fund is doing the job it is supposed to do.
The research agenda does not really highlight any new trends and in some
ways seems as though the investment manager is playing it safe by appealing
to retail investors as opposed to taking stronger views. Indeed, the research
agenda only forms a high-level view of where the investment manager may
identify stocks. The true merit of their selection lies in the bottom-up analysis
that they undertake.
Helen Xiong will be taking over from Charles Plowden going forward and we
will continue to engage with her on what new ideas she brings to the table.

Page 124

Conclusion

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

2 Quarterly Update

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021
3 Funds

4 Appendices

20

LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund
She has been working closely with Malcolm MacColl on some of the
backwards looking analysis on the portfolio such as timings on reducing
positions and how that has impacted performance.

Page 125

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

21

LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund: Portfolio Characteristics
Sector Weights
Key Statistics
106

Number of Countries

23

Number of Sectors

10

Number of Industries

37

12.79
16.06
14.31
15.04

Financials
Information Technology

Yield %

Communication Services
Industrials
Materials
Real Estate

Risk Statistics

Other Investments

6.41

6.98
1.85
2.61
1.75
3.38
1.66
0.00
0.00
2.86

0%

20.34

Beta to Benchmark

20%

40%

Country Weights

1.18

49.05

United States

Source: London CIV

China

Currency Weights

Taiwan
South Africa

6.96
8.62

Euro
Japanese Yen

6.67
6.54

Hong Kong Dollar

6.09
3.65

Cash and other net assets

United Kingdom

7.24
3.76

British Pound

South African Rand

Japan
59.40
59.56

United States Dollar

India
Canada
France

3.52
0.50

Ireland
Cash and other net assets

1.66
0.00

Other Investments
0%

56.12
7.25
4.65
6.67
6.53
6.15
3.70
4.06
1.79
3.52
0.49
2.61
1.26
2.53
2.87
2.11
2.83
2.06
0.97
1.66
0.00
12.33

Other Investments

8.46
17.37

20%

40%

60%

60%

80%

18.79

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

Source: London CIV
*MSCI All Country World Gross Index (in GBP)

Page 126

Energy
Cash and other net assets

Fund Risk (Volatility) (%)

2.72

Consumer Staples

Source: London CIV

Tracking Error (%)

21.29
12.57
11.38
12.14
9.40
9.31
10.00
7.19
5.00

Health Care

0.86

Benchmark*

19.71

Consumer Discretionary

Number of Holdings

Fund

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

22

LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund: Portfolio Characteristics
Top Ten Equity Holdings
Security Name

Top Ten Contributors
% of NAV

Security Name

Top Ten Detractors
% Contribution

Security Name

% Detraction

3.52

Naspers

+0.46

Trade Desk

(0.23)

Amazon.com

2.67

Alphabet

+0.44

Novocure

(0.21)

Moody's

2.34

Prudential

+0.28

Farfetch Ltd

(0.20)

Prudential

2.23

CBRE Group

+0.24

Amazon.com

(0.15)

Microsoft

2.15

EOG Resources

+0.24

Adidas

(0.15)

Mastercard Inc

2.07

Martin Marietta Materials

+0.23

Oscar Health Inc

(0.14)

Ryanair Holdings

2.06

Anthem Com

+0.21

Sysmex Corporation

(0.12)

Alphabet

2.05

SEA

+0.21

Seagen Inc

(0.11)

SEA

2.04

Softbank Group

+0.18

Genmab

(0.11)

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing

2.02

Advantest

+0.17

B3 Brasil Bolsa Balcao

(0.10)

New Positions During Quarter

Completed Sales During Quarter

Security Name

Security Name

IAC/InterActiveCorp

Ms&Ad Insurance Group Holdings

Exact Sciences

Seagen Inc

Wizz Air Holdings plc

Jefferies Financial Group

CoStar Group

Just Eat Takeaway

Oscar Health Inc

Ritchie Bros Auctioneers

Li Auto
Staar Surgical

Source: London CIV

Page 127

Naspers

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

23

LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Summary of ESG Activity for the Quarter

Summary of Key Industry Initiatives
The UN-backed PRI (“PRI”) for which they rated A+, A+, A+, A+, A, A, A on strategy and governance, listed equity - incorporation, listed equity - active
ownership, fixed income - SSA, fixed income - corporate financial, fixed income - corporate non-financial and fixed income securitised.
Stewardship Codes (UK and Japan), the Investor Stewardship Group Principles, European Fund and assess Management Association, Asian Corporate
Governance Association and International Corporate Governance Network Principles
UK Sustainable Investment and Finance Association
Investor Mining and Tailings Safety Initiative
Financial Stability Board Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”)
FRC Advisory Group
The Institutional Investors Group on Climate Change (“IIGCC”)
The Carbon Disclosure Project (“CDP”)
This quarter, Baillie Gifford has also just published its first Firm-Wide TCFD report. It believes the TCFD framework offers a useful way of describing our approach to
integrating climate-related risks and opportunities. It is also completing a project to quantify the potential impact of climate change on its long-term return
expectations, as well as assessing the resilience of the portfolio to different climate-related scenarios.

Page 128

Baillie Gifford is signatory to a number of key industry initiatives, notably:

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

24

LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Summary of Quarterly Engagement
Amazon: better disclosure on social practices.
Chegg: ESG disclosure, educational outcomes for students, carbon emissions targets.
Rio Tinto Group: executive remuneration, human rights.

Page 129

This quarter the investment manager has held a number of notable engagements including:

Tesla: bitcoin, battery sustainability, artificial intelligence (“AI”)
Ubisoft Entertainment: executive remuneration, diversity, carbon emissions disclosure, carbon emissions targets.
During engagement with Tesla this quarter the investment manager gained further insight into Tesla's culture of innovation, long-termism and sustainability. The
investment manager learned more about Tesla's artificial intelligence (AI) team which is attempting to use video instead of static images to train its autonomous
driving software. On hardware, Tesla is moving ahead with plans for a more affordable and profitable $25,000 vehicle, thanks in part to making its own battery cells
that will require no cobalt or nickel.
The investment manager also used its meetings with Tesla to ask about the company's recent investment in bitcoin. The company is concerned about potential
inflation and therefore concluded that a gold-like asset with fixed supply was the right place to allocate a portion of cash reserves (eight per cent at time of purchase).
The company underlined that the decision was not taken lightly, and board approval was sought.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

25

LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Voting Summary

Source: LCIV calculated using ProxyEdge data

Page 130

As stewards of capital, exercising voting rights is an important part of our responsibility towards our client funds’ ESG objectives. We believe that voting on
shareholder resolutions is a powerful part of our stewardship strategy as it helps communicate our views to companies. Being transparent about disclosing our
voting records further supports this aim. London CIV’s investment managers are expected to vote on all proxies considering the impact of ESG factors to ensure
shareholder value is maximised. London CIV monitors voting records on a quarterly basis and expects managers to be able to provide a rationale for all voting activity
on a “comply or explain” basis. The following charts give an overview of voting activity for this quarter (1 January-31 March 2021):

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

26

LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Climate Impact Assessment
The following charts produced using data from Trucost provide climate impact and risk exposure metrics that may be used to support
climate-related disclosures in line with TCFD recommendations and inform internal
processes for risk management and strategy development.
Summary of coverage
Portfolio: LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund

Coverage (% AUM)

Benchmark: MSCI World
Holdings Date: 30th November 2020
Contributor Level: Companies

95%

Apportioning Denominator: Enterprise Value
Emissions Scope: Direct + First-Tier Indirect
The chart to the right shows the overall level of Scope 1 carbon disclosure, calculated
using three alternative methods - by value of holdings, by Scope 1 emissions, and by
number of holdings.
The materials have been prepared solely for informational purposes. Results have been
calculated as of the 30/11/2020 and may not reflect most recent Fund activity.

Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20

Page 131

To enhance the understanding of climate risks and identify specific areas of exposure, London CIV periodically measures and reports
the carbon footprint and fossil fuel exposure of listed equity and corporate fixed income instruments.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

27

LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Carbon Performance

The chart to the right shows the estimate carbon intensity using the three main
methodologies, carbon-to-revenue (C/R), carbon-to-value (C/V) and weightedaverage carbon intensity (WACI).
C/R gives an indication of carbon efficiency with respect to output (as revenues are
closely linked to productivity). C/V gives an indication of efficiency with respect to
shareholder value creation. The WACI approach circumvents the need for
apportioning ownership of carbon or revenues to individual holdings. Whilst the
first two methods act as indicators of an investor's contribution to climate change,
the weighted average method seeks only to show an investor's exposure to carbon
intensive companies, i.e. it is not an additive in terms of carbon budgets.

Carbon Intensity by Method
300
250

273
247
224

200

161

150
106
100
58
50
0
C/R
Portfolio

C/V
Benchmark

50%
45%
40%
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
0%

WACI
Relative Efficiency

Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20

Page 132

Carbon footprint analysis allows investors to use the latest available data in order
to quantify an estimate of the green greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) embedded
within their portfolio, presenting them as tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalents
(tCO2e) apportioned to the investor. These emissions may then be 'normalized' by
a financial indicator (either annual revenues or value invested) in order to give an
estimate measure of carbon intensity that enables comparison between companies
or portfolios, irrespective of size or geography.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

28

LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Attribution Analysis

224
Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20

273

29.14% -11.19%

17.94%

The principal reasons for the carbon intensity of a portfolio to differ from
the benchmark are a) sector allocation decisions and b) company selection
decisions.
Sector allocation decisions can cause the carbon intensity of a portfolio to
diverge from its benchmark when it is over or underweight markedly high
or markedly low carbon sectors. For example, if a portfolio is overweight a
high carbon sector, then it is more likely to have a higher overall intensity
than the benchmark. However, if the companies selected within a high
carbon sector are the most carbon efficient, then it is still possible that the
portfolio may have a lower overall intensity.
The table to the left shows the relative contribution of sector allocation and
company selection effects towards the ‘Total Effect’ of the portfolio versus
the benchmark. Sector allocation effects are determined using the 11 GICS
Sector classifications, and the analysis uses the C/R intensity metric.

Page 133

CommunicationServices
ConsumerDiscretionary
ConsumerStaples
Energy
Financials
HealthCare
Industrials
InformationTechnology
Materials
RealEstate
Utilities

C/RIntensity
AttributionEffect
Portfolio Bench.
Sector
Investee Total
42
48
3.89%
0.20%
4.10%
71
101 -1.81%
1.14%
-0.67%
211
247 -0.79%
0.26%
-0.53%
636
718
7.09%
0.95%
8.04%
7
30 12.05%
2.87% 14.92%
23
42
0.52%
0.90%
1.42%
567
211 -0.18% -16.60% -16.78%
92
73 -3.48%
-0.31%
-3.80%
1,233
1,173
-9.83%
-1.89% -11.71%
25
144
0.89%
1.29%
2.18%
2,405 20.76%
20.76%

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

29

LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Top Contributors - Weighted Average Carbon Intensity

Name

Sector

Ryanair Holdings Plc
Industrials
CRH Plc
Materials
Rio Tinto Group
Materials
Martin Marietta Materials, Inc.
Materials
Reliance Industries Limited
Energy
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing ComInformation Technology
BHP Group
Materials
Pernod Ricard SA
Consumer Staples
Albemarle Corporation
Materials
Orica Limited
Materials

VOH
Weight
2.23%
1.21%
0.95%
1.13%
1.05%
1.86%
0.95%
1.71%
0.83%
0.31%

Carbon
Weight
28.35%
30.82%
6.08%
3.45%
5.95%
1.09%
2.81%
1.62%
1.32%
3.00%

Company C/R
(tCO2e/mGBP)
1,770
1,987
965
689
719
407
561
306
429
831

Portfolio WACI Disclosure
Contribution
-22.73% Partial Disclosure
-13.90% Full Disclosure
-4.77% Partial Disclosure
-3.76% Partial Disclosure
-3.66% Partial Disclosure
-2.89% Full Disclosure
-2.38% Full Disclosure
-1.56% Full Disclosure
-1.40% Partial Disclosure
-1.28% Full Disclosure

Climate
100+*
No
Yes
No
Yes
No
No
No
No
No
No

Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20

*Climate Action 100+ is an investor initiative to ensure the world’s largest corporate greenhouse gas emitters take necessary action on climate change. These include
100 ‘systemically important emitters’, alongside more than 60 others with significant opportunity to drive the clean energy transition. For more information see
http://www.climateaction100.org.

Page 134

The largest contributors to the portfolio's estimated carbon intensity are shown below. Note that a company may appear due to the proportion owned/financed,
rather than because it is the most carbon intensive held. The 'WACI Intensity Contribution' is the percentage change in the portfolio's intensity that would be caused
by excluding the holding referenced. In other words, it is a measurement of how much a specific holding effects the estimated carbon performance of the portfolio.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

30

LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

FOSSIL FUELS

London CIV assesses exposure to such assets by highlighting holdings with business activities in
extractive and energy-related fossil fuel industries.
Financial Exposure to Fossil Fuel Activities
The chart to the right gives an indication of exposure to companies engaged in any fossil fuel
activities (left-hand side), as well as coal only (right-hand side). The height of each bar
represents the combined weight in the portfolio or benchmark of companies deriving any
revenues from fossil fuel related activities, while the segments indicate the weighted average
exposure to the revenues themselves. The list of extractive and energy-related fossil fuel
activities has been provided below:
Extractives: (1) Bituminous coal and lignite surface mining; (2) Bituminous coal underground
mining; (3) Bituminous coal mining; (4) Tar sands extraction; (5) Crude petroleum and natural
gas extraction; (6) Drilling oil and gas wells; (7) Natural gas liquid extraction; (8) Support
activities for oil and gas operations
Energy: (1) Coal Power Generation; (2) Petroleum Power Generation; (3) Natural Gas Power
Generation
Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20

Page 135

Future emissions from fossil fuel reserves far outweigh the allowable carbon budget that will limit global warming to 2 degrees Celsius above pre-industrial levels.
Industry experts refer to assets that may suffer from unanticipated or premature write-downs, devaluations or conversion to liabilities as 'stranded assets'.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

31

LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Top Contributors - Fossil Fuel Revenues

Name

Sector

VOH
Weight

EOG Resources, Inc.
BHP Group
Reliance Industries Limited

Energy
Materials
Energy

0.55%
0.95%
1.05%

Company Level
Fossil Fuel
Extractives Rev.
100.00%
33.81%
0.70%

Company Level
Fossil Fuel
Energy Rev.

Company Level
Total
Fossil Fuel Rev.
100.00%
33.81%
0.70%

Portfolio Level Climate
Weighted Avg. 100+*
Fossil Fuel Rev.
0.555% No
0.322% No
0.007% No

Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20

*Climate Action 100+ is an investor initiative to ensure the world’s largest corporate greenhouse gas emitters take necessary action on climate change. These include
100 ‘systemically important emitters’, alongside more than 60 others with significant opportunity to drive the clean energy transition. For more information see
http://www.climateaction100.org.
Summary of ESG Policy
In addition to face to face meetings with management, the Underlying Manager will consider factors such as management turnover, capital allocation, remuneration policies and
social and environmental factors. The Underlying Manager also has a specialised independent Governance & Sustainability team which, working alongside their investment
teams, monitors the companies in which they invest and engages with companies where appropriate. Their full ESG policy can be provided by London CIV upon request.
The UK Stewardship Code rating of the Underlying Manager is tier 1.

Page 136

The table below shows the companies with the most significant weighted average fossil fuel revenues. The degree to which the company's own revenues are derived
from extractive and energy-related fossil fuel activities is also indicated in adjacent columns.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

32

LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Link to Underlying Manager's Voting Report for the Quarter
https://londonciv.org.uk/portal/email/download/8889

Sector
Aerospace & Defense
Axon Enterprises 0.74
Casinos & Gaming
Sands China 0.46
Chemicals
Albemarle 0.89
Distillers & Vintners
Pernod Ricard 1.50
Fossil Fuel
Bhp Group 1.57
Oil & Gas
Reliance Industries 0.99

Total
Source: London CIV

% of NAV
0.74
0.46
1.13
Orica 0.24
1.50
1.57
1.75
EOG Resources 0.76

7.15

Page 137

Relevant Holdings

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

33

LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund
Quarterly Summary as at 31 March 2021

.
. Investment Objective
.
.
. The Sub-fund's long term objective is to achieve .. Enfield Valuation:
Total Fund Value:
.
.
. capital growth.
.
.
.
.
.
This
is
a
segregated
Sub-fund
of
the
London
CIV
.
. ACS administered by Northern Trust. The delegated ..
.
Enfield investment date: 24/10/2018
Inception date:
17/07/2017
. investment manager has been Longview Partners ..
. (Guernsey) Limited since the Sub-funds inception . This is equivalent to 9.96% of the Fund
Price:
132.20p
.
.
. date.
. Distribution option: Reinvest
.
Distribution frequency:
Quarterly
.
.
. Est. distribution to be reinvested: £151,107
.
Next XD date:
01/04/2021
.
.
.
.
.
Pay date:
28/05/2021
.
.
.
.
Dealing frequency:
Daily
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
...................................................................................................

£91.3m

£917.3m

1 Year
%

3 Years
p.a. %

5 Years
p.a. %

Since Fund
Inception p.a. %

Since CF
Inception p.a. %

Fund

6.54

36.01

11.66

n/a

9.18

10.14

Benchmark**

3.95

38.43

13.44

n/a

10.75

14.17

Relative to Benchmark

2.59

(2.42)

(1.78)

n/a

(1.57)

(4.03)

Comparator Index***

1.75

33.34

18.00

n/a

15.08

18.91

Relative to Comparator Index

4.79

2.67

(6.34)

n/a

(5.90)

(8.77)

**Benchmark Name: MSCI World (GBP)(TRNet)
***The Comparator Index MSCI World Quality Price Index Net Total Return is not the stated fund objective, but has been selected as an appropriate index given the style of the Sub-fund. For further details, please
refer to the Glossary.

Page 138

Current
Quarter %

Net Performance

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

34

LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund
Quarterly Commentary
Performance

Performance since LCIV inception
%
80

The performance continues to improve but some stock-specific news did lead
to detractions over the quarter.

40
20
0
-20

Fund

Benchmark*

Comparator Index**

Source: Fund prices calculated based on published prices. Benchmarks obtained from
Bloomberg. All performance reported net of fees and charges with distributions reinvested.
* MSCI World (GBP)(TRNet)
** MSCI World Quality Price Index Net Total Return

Page 139

The main contributions for the performance over the quarter came from
those stocks which benefitted from cyclical rotation in the market, such as
State Street, Lloyds and Bank of New York Mellon. Alphabet, the U.S. tech
giant, delivered the lion’s share of gains during the quarter. Equity markets
edged higher through the quarter, buoyed by Covid-19 vaccine-related and
announcement of the massive fiscal stimulus in the U.S., pushing the global
growth expectation on a positive path.

60

30
/0
9/
20
31
17
/1
2/
20
31
/0 1 7
3/
20
30
18
/0
6/
20
30
18
/0
9/
20
31
18
/1
2/
20
31
/0 1 8
3/
30 201
9
/0
6/
20
30
19
/0
9/
20
31
19
/1
2/
2
01
31
9
/0
3/
20
30
/0 2 0
6/
20
30
20
/0
9/
20
31
20
/1
2/
20
31
/0 2 0
3/
20
21

The Sub-fund continues to deliver positive results in the first quarter of the
year, returning 6.5% against the benchmark of 4%. Over the last 12 months,
performance was 36.0%, underperforming the benchmark by 2.4%. The
investment manager has recovered some of the losses made in 2020, but last
year was the worst period for the investment manager since inception and
this is one of the reasons they have been placed on watch.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

35

LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund
Peer Analysis

Page 140

The peer analysis graphs are taken from eVestment and are dated the most
recent available quarter end, which is 31st December 2020. When asset
managers add their funds on eVestment, eVestment assigns them to a
universe based off the information the asset manager provides. The peer
analysis graphs use the eVestment primary universe, which comprises funds
with the most homogenous attributes in terms of investment objectives,
investment characteristics, and risk profiles. This allows for relevant “applesto-apples" comparisons among investment strategies. London CIV does not
choose the asset managers, or the funds used in this peer group analysis.

under-performed the MSCI World benchmark over 3 years and has taken a
relatively high amount of risk. The portfolio is value orientated with positive
tilts towards all value factors, with the exception of dividend yield, coupled
with negative tilts towards most growth factors. The Sub-fund invests in small
cap stocks relative to the benchmark and in securities with low foreign sales.

Market Views

Relative to its peers, the Sub-fund’s performance has been in the bottom two
quartiles over the short to medium term, although the 7 and 10 year returns
and the most recent quarter were in the top quartile. The Sub-fund has also

Global equity markets saw a sharp rebound as investors become more
optimistic about the economic recovery following ongoing vaccination
programmes and declining Covid-19 infection rates in some parts of the
world. The equity rally was further fuelled by the strong combination of
central bank liquidity and congressional approval for a massive fiscal stimulus

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

2 Quarterly Update

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021
3 Funds

4 Appendices

36

LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund
package in the U.S., pushing the bond yield higher. However, the market
exhibits volatility as the uncertainties around the vaccination programmes
and the prospects for economic recovery remain intact. The speed of market
rotation serves as a reminder of the importance of maintaining a long-term
perspective and not being drawn into chasing short-term momentum or
timing the market.

Positioning
During the quarter, the largest gains to portfolio performance came from
Alphabet, American Express, and Lloyds. Alphabet, the US tech giant,
delivered strong results in the quarter as their business recovered and
continued to accelerate. The company’s Q4 2020 revenue grew 23%
organically, largely driven by search and YouTube activity. American Express
was also among the best-performing stocks in the quarter as the stock’s share
price reflected increasing expectations of an economic rebound in the U.S.,
the anticipated effect of stimulus payments on consumer spending and rising
interest rates. The stock also benefitted from the shift to online spending as
one of the trends in the post-pandemic economy.
Lloyds also produced strong gains in Q1 as a steepening of the U.K. yield curve
and a positive growth outlook due to the successful vaccination programme

Other contributors to the portfolio performance include the U.S. Financials,
such as Bank of New York Mellon and State Street, which continue to profit
from the rise of bond yields.
The top detractors to the portfolio performance include Charter
Communications and WW Grainger. After being the portfolio’s best
performer in 2020, Charter Communications was the largest detractor as
fourth-quarter broadband net additions came in slightly weaker than
expected. The investment manager maintains their conviction in the stock.
One focus of the U.S. infrastructure plan is affordable broadband access for
all citizens which raised concern over future price controls. W.W. Grainger, a
U.S.-based industrial supply company, detracted as Q4 earnings results
showed accelerating sales growth, but also a plunge of adjusted margins as
pandemic-related sales came with a lower gross margin.

Page 141

The outlook has not much shifted from the previous quarter. The portfolio
continues to benefit from a cyclical rotation in the market as central bank
liquidity, a massive fiscal stimulus package in the U.S. and, the expectation of
stronger growth, fuelled the equity market in the first quarter of the year.
The investment manager continues to focus on finding businesses that are
less sensitive to macro factors and particularly high-quality businesses whose
competitive position allows them pricing power to protect against any
inflationary pressures.

provided a favourable environment for the U.K. banking sector. However, the
investment manager sold its position in Lloyds following a downgrade in
quality as the bank’s competitive position has deteriorated and it is no longer
able to earn sufficiently high returns on capital. Regulatory pressures around
fees and the bank’s reliance on another source of revenue, net interest
income, have negatively affected Lloyds and made it challenging for the bank
to both grow loans and maintain net interest margins.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

37

LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund
company’s CEO, Marina Lund, and CIO, Alex Philipps, but due to increased
demand on the recruitment and screening side, the role of HR Director has
been created for the first time since Longview inception. Luke Taylor, a
member of the research team, is stepping down from his role in the second
quarter of the year, and some of his data responsibilities will be transferred
to a new employee, Murat Gunc. The firm also added a couple of research
trainees to the team.
Conclusion

The chart above shows the style tilt within the portfolio. Over the last year,
the Sub-fund has developed more “Value” characteristics, as shown by the
taller Blue bars. The Green bars show the low exposure to “Growth” areas of
the market, which has hurt the Sub-fund over the last 18 months.
Fund monitoring
Despite the improved performance over the last few quarters, the
investment manager remains on watch since October 2020 due to reasons of
poor performance in 2020, and the turnover of key personnel, including the
resignation of the CIO Alistair Graham.
In Q1, Longview made a few personnel changes within the firm. The role for
an HR Director has been created and now filled, with the start date in May.
Previously, the human resources responsibilities were shared between the

The portfolio’s outperformance was broad-based but benefitted from a
recovery amongst social distancing related companies, the portfolio’s
exposure to banks and the weak performance of big tech, except for the
portfolio position in Alphabet which was the largest contributor to the
performance during the quarter.
The investment manager has undoubtedly had their process and entire
philosophy challenged over the last 12 months. This has had a large positive
impact on a firm’s bottom-line and the broader impact on the team. The
investment processes remain unchanged, but we do expect some evolution
to come as the company recently expanded the team with a number of new

Page 142

(Source: eVestment data as at 31/12/2020)

The first quarter performance continues to be positive for the Sub-fund,
delivering two consecutive quarters of relative outperformance. The portfolio
performance continued to be largely driven by underlying market conditions,
with cyclical leadership rotation taking the lead and driving the recovery of
those stocks that were hardest hit last year. The macro-environment proves
to be helpful for the portfolio performance as among the top-performing
positions are the U.S. and U.K. banking sectors, which continue to benefit
from the positive outlook for growth expectations on the back of positive
macro trends, in particular vaccination news and interest rates.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

2 Quarterly Update

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021
3 Funds

4 Appendices

38

LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund
hires joining in Q2 2021. London CIV maintain the watch status for the Subfund and will be working closely with the investment manager and Client
Funds over the coming months to decide on the next steps.

Page 143

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

39

LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund: Portfolio Characteristics
Sector Weights
Key Statistics
34

Financials

Number of Countries

6

Consumer Staples

Number of Sectors

7

Information Technology

Number of Industries
Yield %

23

Industrials

1.28

Communication Services

Source: London CIV

12.41
20.63
13.72
11.88
7.18
11.87
21.34
10.87
10.86
9.38
9.05
6.11

Consumer Discretionary

Other Investments

Tracking Error (%)

6.50

Fund Risk (Volatility) (%)

12.06
4.12
0.00
0.00
13.38

0%

20%

19.06

Beta to Benchmark

40%

60%

80%

100%

Country Weights

1.06
75.63

United States

Source: London CIV

Currency Weights

4.25

79.34

7.15
4.33

2.85
2.92

France

6.66
9.90

Euro

3.75

Germany

66.61

British Pound

3.26
1.93

Japan

7.51

1.93

Japanese Yen

Other Investments

10.86

United Kingdom

United States Dollar

Cash and other net assets

64.53

7.52

Cash and other net assets

4.12
0.00

Other Investments

0.80

0%

11.64

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

4.12
0.00
0.79
17.60

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Source: London CIV
*MSCI World (GBP)(TRNet)

Page 144

Cash and other net assets

Risk Statistics

Benchmark*

25.14

Health Care

Number of Holdings

Fund

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

40

LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund: Portfolio Characteristics
Top Ten Equity Holdings
Security Name

Top Ten Contributors
% of NAV

Security Name

Top Detractors
% Contribution

Security Name

% Detraction

4.10

Alphabet

+0.67

Charter Communications

(0.31)

HCA Healthcare Inc

4.07

American Express

+0.67

Becton Dickinson & Co Com

(0.13)

State Street

3.89

Lloyds Banking Group

+0.61

Ww Grainger

(0.11)

American Express

3.84

State Street

+0.59

Henkel Vorzug Prf

(0.11)

Unitedhealth Group

3.82

HCA Healthcare Inc

+0.58

Tjx Cos

(0.04)

Bank of New York Mellon

3.78

Emerson Electric

+0.47

Fidelity National Infomation Services

(0.01)

Henkel Vorzug Prf

3.75

Bank of New York Mellon

+0.46

Continental AG

(0.00)

Alphabet

3.73

Aon

+0.39

Aon

3.71

Willis Towers Watson

+0.36

Ww Grainger

3.70

Omnicom Group

+0.36

New Positions During Quarter

Completed Sales During Quarter

Security Name

Security Name

Becton Dickinson

not applicable, no completed sales during the quarter

Page 145

Oracle

Diageo

Source: London CIV

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

41

LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Summary of ESG Activity for the Quarter

Summary of Key Industry Initiatives
UN-backed PRI (“PRI”) for which it now encourages underlying managers to do the same.
FRC’s UK Stewardship Code for which it is currently a Tier 1 signatory.
The investment manager believes that companies need to be managed in the interests of shareholders and that companies with good corporate governance are
more likely to be successful companies that deliver sustainable, long-term value to their shareholders and it is in these companies that our investments are focused.
Considering the current position of the business and a lack of long-term incentive, the Board was concerned that retention could be an issue at a time when the CEO
and CFO are critical to implementing the recovery plan for the company. The Board therefore wanted the underpins of the 2020 and 2021 RSP to be removed as
they believed they were no longer suitable given the unprecedented underperformance. The Board instead wanted to bring in a new incentive structure. After the
investment manager engaged with the company to fully the overall remuneration plan for the two directors, it felt it was not supportive of the incentive structure.
Longview believes that overall remuneration should be tied to business performance and the financial impact of Covid-19 should be shouldered by both the
shareholders and the Executive Directors.
Whitbread committed to speaking to a wider pool of investors to gauge the general view on the proposal. If enough investors are supportive, the proposal will be
put to a vote at their AGM. We will continue to monitor how Whitbread’s suggestion progresses.

Page 146

The investment manager is a signatory to selected initiatives including:

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

42

LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Summary of Quarterly Engagement
Becton, Dickinson and Company: ESG Sustainalytics rating, product governance, animal welfare.
Compass: health and wellbeing – nutrition.
W. W. Grainger: executive pay, supply chain, climate change risk, carbon emissions disclosure, diversity and inclusion.
Whitbread: executive remuneration.
An interesting example of engagement this quarter took place with Whitbread who reached out to Longview to discuss executive remuneration. The only long-term
incentive for the CEO and CFO is the 2020 Restricted Stock Plan (“RSP”). The underpins of the 2020 RSP are now under water due to Covid-19 related
underperformance. Whitbread emphasised the impact of the virus on the company and the efficient response of the Executive team. They explained the measures
that have been introduced in order to protect the business. Part of this was a cost reduction programme, which involved a voluntary 30% pay cut by the Executive
team and a 20% cut for the rest of the Board and other senior managers.

Page 147

Longview undertook a number of engagements during the quarter including:

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

43

LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Voting Summary

(Source: LCIV calculated using ProxyEdge data)

Page 148

As stewards of capital, exercising voting rights is an important part of our responsibility towards our client funds’ ESG objectives. We believe that voting on
shareholder resolutions is a powerful part of our stewardship strategy as it helps communicate our views to companies. Being transparent about disclosing our
voting records further supports this aim. London CIV’s investment managers are expected to vote on all proxies considering the impact of ESG factors to ensure
shareholder value is maximised. London CIV monitors voting records on a quarterly basis and expects managers to be able to provide a rationale for all voting activity
on a “comply or explain” basis. The following charts give an overview of voting activity for this quarter (1 January-31 March 2021):

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

44

LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Climate Impact Assessment
The following charts produced using data from Trucost provide climate impact and risk exposure metrics that may be used to support
climate-related disclosures in line with TCFD recommendations and inform internal processes for risk management and strategy
development.
Summary of coverage
Portfolio: LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund

Coverage (% AUM)

Benchmark: MSCI World
Holdings Date: 30th November 2020
Contributor Level: Companies

99%

Apportioning Denominator: Enterprise Value
Emissions Scope: Direct + First-Tier Indirect
The chart to the right shows the overall level of Scope 1 carbon disclosure, calculated
using three alternative methods - by value of holdings, by Scope 1 emissions, and by
number of holdings.
The materials have been prepared solely for informational purposes. Results have been
calculated as of the 30/11/2020 and may not reflect most recent Fund activity.

Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20

Page 149

To enhance the understanding of climate risks and identify specific areas of exposure, London CIV periodically measures and reports the
carbon footprint and fossil fuel exposure of listed equity and corporate fixed income instruments.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

45

LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Carbon Performance

Page 150

Carbon footprint analysis allows investors to use the latest available data in
order to quantify an estimate of the green greenhouse gas emissions (GHG)
embedded within their portfolio, presenting them as tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalents (tCO2e) apportioned to the investor. These emissions may then
be 'normalized' by a financial indicator (either annual revenues or value
invested) in order to give an estimate measure of carbon intensity that
enables comparison between companies or portfolios, irrespective of size or
geography.
The chart to the right shows the estimate carbon intensity using the three
main methodologies, carbon-to-revenue (C/R), carbon-to-value (C/V) and
weighted-average carbon intensity (WACI).
C/R gives an indication of carbon efficiency with respect to output (as
revenues are closely linked to productivity). C/V gives an indication of
efficiency with respect to shareholder value creation. The WACI approach
circumvents the need for apportioning ownership of carbon or revenues to
individual holdings. Whilst the first two methods act as indicators of an
investor's contribution to climate change, the weighted average method
seeks only to show an investor's exposure to carbon intensive companies, i.e.
it is not an additive in terms of carbon budgets.
Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

46

LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Attribution Analysis

49
Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20

273

58.34%

23.58%

81.92%

The principal reasons for the carbon intensity of a portfolio to differ from
the benchmark are a) sector allocation decisions and b) company selection
decisions.
Sector allocation decisions can cause the carbon intensity of a portfolio to
diverge from its benchmark when it is over or underweight markedly high
or markedly low carbon sectors. For example, if a portfolio is overweight a
high carbon sector, then it is more likely to have a higher overall intensity
than the benchmark. However, if the companies selected within a high
carbon sector are the most carbon efficient, then it is still possible that the
portfolio may have a lower overall intensity.
The table to the left shows the relative contribution of sector allocation and
company selection effects towards the ‘Total Effect’ of the portfolio versus
the benchmark. Sector allocation effects are determined using the 11 GICS
Sector classifications, and the analysis uses the C/R intensity metric.

Page 151

CommunicationServices
ConsumerDiscretionary
ConsumerStaples
Energy
Financials
HealthCare
Industrials
InformationTechnology
Materials
RealEstate
Utilities

C/RIntensity
AttributionEffect
Portfolio Bench.
Sector
Investee Total
29
48
0.39%
0.40%
0.78%
58
101 -3.91%
1.08%
-2.83%
74
247
1.24% 14.87% 16.12%
718 12.19%
12.19%
14
30
2.76%
1.33%
4.09%
48
42
7.63%
-0.50%
7.13%
78
211 -0.50%
5.53%
5.03%
47
73 -0.33%
0.87%
0.54%
1,173 18.61%
18.61%
144 -0.50%
-0.50%
2,405 20.76%
20.76%

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

47

LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Top Contributors - Weighted Average Carbon Intensity

Name

Sector

Emerson Electric Co.
Asahi Group Holdings, Ltd.
Henkel AG & Co. KGaA
HCA Healthcare, Inc.
Whitbread PLC
Medtronic plc
Zimmer Biomet Holdings, Inc.
Sanofi
frontdoor, inc.
Alphabet Inc.

Industrials
Consumer Staples
Consumer Staples
Health Care
Consumer Discretionary
Health Care
Health Care
Health Care
Consumer Discretionary
Communication Services

VOH
Weight
4.21%
1.98%
4.02%
4.48%
1.68%
3.68%
0.89%
3.35%
0.42%
3.93%

Carbon
Weight
12.89%
9.81%
9.42%
9.95%
1.56%
1.77%
0.60%
2.09%
0.32%
1.10%

Company C/R
(tCO2e/mGBP)
218
246
123
88
108
70
83
55
65
53

Portfolio WACI Disclosure
Contribution
-14.04% Full Disclosure
-7.57% Full Disclosure
-5.78% Full Disclosure
-3.28% Modelled
-1.85% Full Disclosure
-1.32% Full Disclosure
-0.54% Full Disclosure
-0.21% Full Disclosure
-0.11% Modelled
-0.10% Full Disclosure

Climate
100+*
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No

Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20

*Climate Action 100+ is an investor initiative to ensure the world’s largest corporate greenhouse gas emitters take necessary action on climate change. These include
100 ‘systemically important emitters’, alongside more than 60 others with significant opportunity to drive the clean energy transition. For more information see
http://www.climateaction100.org.

Page 152

The largest contributors to the portfolio's estimated carbon intensity are shown below. Note that a company may appear due to the proportion owned/financed,
rather than because it is the most carbon intensive held. The 'WACI Intensity Contribution' is the percentage change in the portfolio's intensity that would be caused
by excluding the holding referenced. In other words, it is a measurement of how much a specific holding effects the estimated carbon performance of the portfolio.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

48

LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

FOSSIL FUELS

London CIV assesses exposure to such assets by highlighting holdings with business
activities in extractive and energy-related fossil fuel industries.
Financial Exposure to Fossil Fuel Activities
The chart to the right gives an indication of exposure to companies engaged in any
fossil fuel activities (left-hand side), as well as coal only (right-hand side). The height
of each bar represents the combined weight in the portfolio or benchmark of
companies deriving any revenues from fossil fuel related activities, while the
segments indicate the weighted average exposure to the revenues themselves. The
list of extractive and energy-related fossil fuel activities has been provided below:
Extractives: (1) Bituminous coal and lignite surface mining; (2) Bituminous coal
underground mining; (3) Bituminous coal mining; (4) Tar sands extraction; (5) Crude
petroleum and natural gas extraction; (6) Drilling oil and gas wells; (7) Natural gas
liquid extraction; (8) Support activities for oil and gas operations
Energy: (1) Coal Power Generation; (2) Petroleum Power Generation; (3) Natural Gas
Power
Generation

Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20

Page 153

Future emissions from fossil fuel reserves far outweigh the allowable carbon budget that will limit global warming to 2 degrees Celsius above pre-industrial levels.
Industry experts refer to assets that may suffer from unanticipated or premature write-downs, devaluations or conversion to liabilities as 'stranded assets'.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

49

LCIV Global Equity Focus Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Link to Underlying Manager's Voting Report for the Quarter
https://londonciv.org.uk/portal/email/download/8880
Relevant Holdings
Sector

% of NAV

Aerospace & Defense
L3harris Techs. 3.49
Brewers
Asahi Group Holdings 1.93
Distillers & Vintners
Diageo 0.59

3.49

Total

6.01

Source: London CIV

1.93
0.59

Page 154

Summary of ESG Policy
The Underlying Manager assesses the significance of environmental and governance related risks and opportunities as an integral part of their bottom-up research process. All E,
S and G factors are considered throughout the idea generation, portfolio construction and risk management processes. Their Responsible Investment and Engagement Policy can
be provided by London CIV upon request.
The UK Stewardship Code rating of the Underlying Manager is tier 1.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

50

LCIV Emerging Market Equity Fund
Quarterly Summary as at 31 March 2021

.
. Investment Objective
.
.
. The Sub-fund's objective is to achieve long-term .. Enfield Valuation:
Total Fund Value:
.
. capital growth by outperforming the MSCI ..
. Emerging Market Index (Total Return) Net by 2.5% .
.
. per annum net of fees annualised over rolling three ..
. year periods.
. Enfield investment date: 24/10/2018
.
.
Inception date:
11/01/2018
.
. This is a segregated Sub-fund of the London CIV .. This is equivalent to 7.22% of the Fund
Price:
112.60p
.
. ACS administered by Northern Trust. The delegated ..
. investment manager has been JPMorgan Asset . Distribution option: Reinvest
Distribution frequency:
Quarterly
.
. Management (UK) Limited since 11 October 2019. .. Est. distribution to be reinvested: £36,822
Next XD date:
01/04/2021
.
. Prior to this the fund was managed by Henderson ..
Pay date:
28/05/2021
. Global Investors.
.
.
.
Dealing frequency:
Daily
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
...................................................................................................

£35.9m

£497.3m

1 Year
%

3 Years
p.a. %

5 Years
p.a. %

Since Fund
Inception p.a. %

Since CF
Inception p.a. %

Fund

(0.13)

53.51

7.26

n/a

4.92

13.36

Benchmark**

1.34

42.35

7.07

n/a

4.78

13.59

Relative to Benchmark

(1.47)

11.16

0.19

n/a

0.14

(0.23)

**Benchmark Name: MSCI Emerging Market Index (TR) Net

Page 155

Current
Quarter %

Net Performance

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

51

LCIV Emerging Market Equity Fund
Quarterly Commentary
Performance

Performance since LCIV inception
%
40

One of the key strengths of the investment manager has been its stock
selection, even towards the end of previous quarter, when the market
momentum started to shift towards more cyclical names. However, last
quarter was the first to see detraction through stock selection, again a
function of the focus areas of the investment manager against the prevailing
market themes. As a result, some of the portfolio’s strongest contributors in
2020, including Mercadolibre and Foshan Haitian Flavouring, were amongst
the largest detractors.
Country allocation proved to be neutral and while India and Argentina led the
way in the fourth quarter, they became large detractors due to macro
headwinds. India is facing major macro challenges, with a spike in Covid-19
rates causing particular concern, but the related overall currency devaluation

0

-20
-40

Fund

Benchmark*

Source: Fund prices calculated based on published prices. Benchmarks obtained from
Bloomberg. All performance reported net of fees and charges with distributions reinvested.
* MSCI Emerging Market Index (TR) Net

should benefit its information technology outsourcing businesses that the
portfolio holds. China, a key focus for the portfolio, has delivered strong
returns for the strategy in the long run, and proved to be the saviour again
from allocation perspective. Just like the prior quarters, China benefitted
from early normalization from Covid-19, along with long term structural
trends in its Technology sector.

Page 156

The Sub-fund performance was a reflection of the underlying market rotation
seen in the last quarter and thus does not come as a surprise. A rise in U.S.
treasury yields and optimism about a post-Covid-19 economic recovery
prompted a rotation from growth and domestic consumption-oriented
stocks, which the portfolio favours, towards more cyclical sectors, where the
portfolio is underweight. With that backdrop, the portfolio was expected to
underperform with the investment manager previously highlighting that in
such market conditions, the portfolio will remain focused on quality growth
stocks and will look to absorb any market headwinds, rather than change its
investment style and focus.

20

31
/0
3/
20
18
30
/0
6/
20
18
30
/0
9/
20
18
31
/1
2/
20
18
31
/0
3/
20
19
30
/0
6/
20
19
30
/0
9/
20
19
31
/1
2/
20
19
31
/0
3/
20
20
30
/0
6/
20
20
30
/0
9/
20
20
31
/1
2/
20
20
31
/0
3/
20
21

The Sub-fund returned -0.1% over the quarter, underperforming the
benchmark by -1.5%. Last quarter saw the first underperformance period for
the current investment manager for the Sub-fund. Over the last twelve
months, the Sub-fund has still outperformed its benchmark by 11.2%,
resulting in since inception outperformance of 0.1%.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

52

LCIV Emerging Market Equity Fund
Peer Analysis

Page 157

The peer analysis graphs are taken from eVestment and are dated the most
recent available quarter end, which is 31st December 2020. When asset
managers add their funds on eVestment, eVestment assigns them to a
universe based off the information the asset manager provides. The peer
analysis graphs use the eVestment primary universe, which comprises funds
with the most homogenous attributes in terms of investment objectives,
investment characteristics, and risk profiles. This allows for relevant “applesto-apples" comparisons among investment strategies. London CIV does not
choose the asset managers, or the funds used in this peer group analysis.

Looking at the graphs above, we can see the exceptionally strong track record
from the investment manager. Even in the first quarter, underperforming the
index by over 1%, they were still among the top quartile of their peers. This
shows that the market leadership in Emerging Markets over the first quarter
was in unloved or inaccessible areas. India is a consistent overweight among
active managers, so the horrific Covid-19 situation there has had an impact
on performance.
Market View
The investment manager expects that policy makers will be accommodative
for an extended period and the resulting economic growth and inflation
should benefit certain sectors that are excluded in the portfolio due to their

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

2 Quarterly Update

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021
3 Funds

4 Appendices

53

LCIV Emerging Market Equity Fund
low-quality earnings. However, once the dust settles on the current inflation
trade, market should realize what stocks are delivering against earnings
projections and they expect the portfolio to deliver in such market
environment.

The portfolio has maintained exposure to companies with sustainable
competitive advantages, consistent cash flow generation, and strong
management teams. This has worked well for the portfolio over the longterm and the investment manager remains confident that it is the right
strategy to pursue in current market conditions.

Positioning
The investment manager has a history of investing in stocks for a lengthy
period (in many cases over a decade), in the face of changing market
conditions, and that has resulted in strong alpha generation in the long run.
Despite the sector rotation and de-rating of longer duration growth stocks,
the portfolio has not seen much change, and the focus remains on strong
balance sheets and large competitive moats.
From a geographical perspective, Brazil and India remain the sticking point
due to poor Covid-19 management by the two governments. Within Brazil,
the portfolio does hold a few names that are susceptible to an economic halt,
but the investment manager holds strong conviction in those names which
are expected to deliver in the long run. While India is currently facing major
headwinds due to rising Covid-19 cases, the names held in the portfolio,
especially the large positions in HDFC Bank have been held in the portfolio for

(Source: eVestment data as at 31/12/2020)

The chart above shows the style analysis for the Sub-fund as at the end of the
first quarter. The blue bars show the Sub-fund is relatively highly valued, but

Page 158

The investment manager’s expectation for the full calendar year remains
high: a successful vaccination rollout leading to a resumption of normalcy.
With that comes optimism for corporate earnings and equity markets. Recent
market sell-offs underscore the volatility that might be the likely mainstay of
the year ahead as investors balance already high valuations and inflation
concerns with increasing optimism that pent-up demand will boost earnings.
Accommodative central banks and large fiscal stimulus packages should
create a solid landscape for economic growth as governments reduce
lockdowns, but this optimism also comes with risk of higher inflation.

more than a decade and the investment manager still believes that there are
structural tailwinds that still favour these stocks strongly. Another large
weight for the portfolio that has been marginally trimmed is TSMC, and while
the portfolio has benefitted from this position immensely, the investment
manager is aware of the significant overweight and should look to trim this
position as opportunity arises.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

2 Quarterly Update

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021
3 Funds

4 Appendices

54

LCIV Emerging Market Equity Fund
by paying that higher price they are accessing higher growth companies than
the index, as shown by the green bars. It is therefore unsurprising that there
is a significant momentum bias in the Sub-fund, both in the short term and
the medium term (as measured by the black bars).
Conclusion

Page 159

Despite underperforming in the last quarter, the Sub-fund’s long-term
performance remains very strong and the recent underperformance does not
come as a surprise given the focus areas of recent market momentum being
traditionally more volatile cyclical stocks. Overall, once the sector dispersion
fades away, the market returns should be more alpha driven and stock
selection, that has been the main contributor for the Sub-fund, should be the
key source of outperformance. While recent dispersion across market
segments might persist in the near future, once the market’s focus shifts
toward the earning strength, the Sub-fund should be able to deliver returns
that are more consistent with its long-term outperformance.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

55

LCIV Emerging Market Equity Fund: Portfolio Characteristics
Sector Weights
Key Statistics
53

Information Technology

Number of Countries

15

Consumer Discretionary

8

Communication Services

Number of Industries

25

Consumer Staples

Yield %

1.1

Industrials

Number of Sectors

Source: London CIV

18.22
23.97
20.95
15.58
17.65
14.71
11.74
10.19
5.62
3.47
4.30
1.55

Health Care

4.46
2.12
0.00
0.76

Other Investments

Tracking Error (%)

5.30

Fund Risk (Volatility) (%)

17.06

0%

16.30

Beta to Benchmark

20%

27.14

China

Source: London CIV

35.70
19.50

India

Currency Weights
25.52

Argentina

14.49
9.65

Brazil

9.09

Mexico

13.33

Chinese Yuan

3.70
4.53

South Africa

Brazilian Real

3.36
4.46

Indonesia

Cash and other net assets

Cash and other net assets

2.12
0.00

Other Investments
0%

Other Investments

8.26
33.97

20%

9.09
13.38
8.59

Hong Kong

21.62

Korean Won

14.20
13.73

South Korea

33.46

Indian Rupee

9.64

Taiwan

12.44

Hong Kong Dollar

40%

60%

Country Weights

0.92

United States Dollar

40%

60%

2.31
4.09
0.02
3.92
4.43
2.45
1.74
2.41
3.74
2.18
1.21
2.12
0.00
4.31
14.10

0%

20%

40%

60%

Source: London CIV
*MSCI Emerging Market Index (TR) Net

Page 160

Cash and other net assets

Risk Statistics

Benchmark*

27.65

Financials

Number of Holdings

Fund

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

56

LCIV Emerging Market Equity Fund: Portfolio Characteristics
Top Ten Equity Holdings
Security Name

Top Ten Contributors
% of NAV

Security Name

Top Ten Detractors
% Contribution

Security Name

% Detraction

9.33

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufactor ADR

+0.55

Mercadolibre

(0.79)

Tencent Holdings

8.41

HDFC Bank

+0.52

Alibaba Group Holding

(0.60)

Samsung Electronics

6.41

Tencent Holdings

+0.48

Allegro.EU

(0.28)

HDFC Bank

5.01

Alibaba Group Holding

+0.42

Foshan Haitian Flavouring & Food

(0.25)

AIA Group

4.27

Tata Consultancy Services

+0.33

Midea Group

(0.24)

Housing Development Finance

4.11

Naver

+0.29

Kotak Mahindra Bank

(0.18)

Mercadolibre

4.09

Infosys

+0.26

B3 Brasil Bolsa Balcao

(0.17)

Tata Consultancy Services

3.59

Techtronic Industries

+0.24

JD.Com

(0.17)

SEA

3.41

SEA

+0.16

Itau Unibanco Holding

(0.16)

Infosys

2.88

Hong Kong Exchanges & Clearing

+0.15

Budweiser Brewing Apac

(0.13)

New Positions During Quarter

Completed Sales During Quarter

Security Name

Security Name

New Oriental Education & Technology Group Inc.

not applicable, no completed sales during the quarter

Netease

Source: London CIV

Page 161

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufactor ADR

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

57

LCIV Emerging Market Equity Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Summary of ESG Activity for the Quarter

Summary of Key Industry Initiatives
Asian Corporate Governance Association (“ACGA”)
Business and Sustainable Development Commission (“BSDC”)
The Carbon Disclosure Project (“CDP”)
ClimateAction100+
Climate Leadership Council
Centre for Climate and Energy Solutions (“C2ES”)
Ceres
Equator Principles
Institutional Investor Group on Climate Change (“IIGCC”)
The Consumer Goods Forum
RE100
UN-backed PRI (“PRI”) for which it scored A+, A, A, B, A, B, B, B, A, A, A, across strategy and governance, private equity, listed equity - incorporation, listed
equity - active ownership, fixed income - SSA, fixed income - corporate financial, fixed income - corporate non-financial, fixed income - securitised, private
equity, property, infrastructure respectively.

Page 162

J.P. Morgan is a member of many key initiatives to support with responsible investment including:

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

58

LCIV Emerging Market Equity Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Summary of Quarterly Engagement

It reached out to one of the e-commerce companies following tragic media stories which emerged about two employee deaths, one from cardiac arrest and the
other from suicide. The investment manager raised its concerns on the intense working culture of the company and asked what steps are being put in place to
address this. The company acknowledged that it needed better support mechanisms for employees, and is now working on developing channels for employees to
express concerns and is also offering all employees an annual health check. Working hours are long, reflecting the infamous ‘996’ work culture, but the company
does pay overtime and encourage employees to rest during the day.
Whereas the other e-commerce company engagement was focussed on working together, to suggest areas where the investment manager felt they could improve
based on experience of best practice. On environment the investment manager suggested that the company do more to attain the fullest possible set of independent
(ISO) certifications on data security. Finally, on governance, it expressed our disappointment at the lack of female representation on the board. The investment
manager will follow up to see if the company progresses on any of these points, and update its red flags and materiality scores if appropriate.
Other notable engagements included conversations with a Chinese joint-stock commercial bank about climate risk and strategy alignment for long term investing, a
transport finance in India on climate risk and human capital management, as well as a Russian oil company on climate risk and stakeholder engagement.

Page 163

The investment manager continues the successful implementation of its risk materiality framework that was launched last year and is implemented by 37 analysts
throughout the business. This framework scores all the names covered by the analyst team across Environmental, Social and Governance issues, which then forms
the basis of engagement with that company. Over the third quarter this prompted engagement with two of the leading Chinese e-commerce companies where the
investment manager raised issues that concerned it, offered its views on best practice and established some milestones on which it will track future sustainability
performance.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

59

LCIV Emerging Market Equity Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Voting Summary

Source: LCIV calculated using ProxyEdge data

Page 164

As stewards of capital, exercising voting rights is an important part of our responsibility towards our client funds’ ESG objectives. We believe that voting on
shareholder resolutions is a powerful part of our stewardship strategy as it helps communicate our views to companies. Being transparent about disclosing our
voting records further supports this aim. London CIV’s investment managers are expected to vote on all proxies considering the impact of ESG factors to ensure
shareholder value is maximised. London CIV monitors voting records on a quarterly basis and expects managers to be able to provide a rationale for all voting activity
on a “comply or explain” basis. The following charts give an overview of voting activity for this quarter (1 January-31 March 2021):

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

60

LCIV Emerging Market Equity Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Climate Impact Assessment
The following charts produced using data from Trucost provide climate impact and risk exposure metrics that may be used to support
climate-related disclosures in line with TCFD recommendations and inform internal processes for risk management and strategy
development.
Summary of coverage
Portfolio: LCIV Emerging Markets Equity Fund

Coverage (% AUM)

Benchmark: MSCI World
Holdings Date: 30th November 2020
Contributor Level: Companies

96%

Apportioning Denominator: Enterprise Value
Emissions Scope: Direct + First-Tier Indirect
The chart to the right shows the overall level of Scope 1 carbon disclosure, calculated
using three alternative methods - by value of holdings, by Scope 1 emissions, and by
number of holdings.
The materials have been prepared solely for informational purposes. Results have been
calculated as of the 30/11/2020 and may not reflect most recent Fund activity.

(Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20)

Page 165

To enhance the understanding of climate risks and identify specific areas of exposure, London CIV periodically measures and reports
the carbon footprint and fossil fuel exposure of listed equity and corporate fixed income instruments.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

61

LCIV Emerging Market Equity Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Carbon Performance

Page 166

Carbon footprint analysis allows investors to use the latest available data
in order to quantify an estimate of the green greenhouse gas emissions
(GHG) embedded within their portfolio, presenting them as tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalents (tCO2e) apportioned to the investor. These
emissions may then be 'normalized' by a financial indicator (either annual
revenues or value invested) in order to give an estimate measure of carbon
intensity that enables comparison between companies or portfolios,
irrespective of size or geography.
The chart to the right shows the estimate carbon intensity using the three
main methodologies, carbon-to-revenue (C/R), carbon-to-value (C/V) and
weighted-average carbon intensity (WACI).
C/R gives an indication of carbon efficiency with respect to output (as
revenues are closely linked to productivity). C/V gives an indication of
efficiency with respect to shareholder value creation. The WACI approach
circumvents the need for apportioning ownership of carbon or revenues to
individual holdings. Whilst the first two methods act as indicators of an
investor's contribution to climate change, the weighted average method
seeks only to show an investor's exposure to carbon intensive companies,
i.e. it is not an additive in terms of carbon budgets.
Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

62

LCIV Emerging Market Equity Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Attribution Analysis

111

273

Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20

58.09%

1.31%

The principal reasons for the carbon intensity of a portfolio to differ from the
benchmark are a) sector allocation decisions and b) company selection decisions.
Sector allocation decisions can cause the carbon intensity of a portfolio to
diverge from its benchmark when it is over or underweight markedly high or
markedly low carbon sectors. For example, if a portfolio is overweight a high
carbon sector, then it is more likely to have a higher overall intensity than the
benchmark. However, if the companies selected within a high carbon sector are
the most carbon efficient, then it is still possible that the portfolio may have a
lower overall intensity.

The table to the left shows the relative contribution of sector allocation and
company selection effects towards the ‘Total Effect’ of the portfolio versus the
benchmark. Sector allocation effects are determined using the 11 GICS Sector
59.40% classifications, and the analysis uses the C/R intensity metric.

Page 167

Communication Services
Consumer Discretionary
Consumer Staples
Energy
Financials
Health Care
Industrials
Information Technology
Materials
Real Estate
Utilities

C/R Intensity
Attribution Effect
Portfolio Bench.
Sector
Investee Total
30
48
-0.30%
0.32%
0.02%
162
101
3.50%
-4.12%
-0.62%
119
247
1.03%
9.95%
10.98%
718 12.19%
12.19%
15
30
5.96%
1.49%
7.45%
73
42 -10.34%
-0.01% -10.35%
152
211
-1.72%
1.29%
-0.44%
178
73
9.94%
-8.79%
1.14%
152
1,173 17.56%
1.19%
18.75%
144
-0.50%
-0.50%
2,405 20.76%
20.76%

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

63

LCIV Emerging Market Equity Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Top Contributors - Weighted Average Carbon Intensity

Name

Sector

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing ComInformation Technology
Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd.
Information Technology
Yum China Holdings, Inc.
Consumer Discretionary
Midea Group Co., Ltd.
Consumer Discretionary
ITC Limited
Consumer Staples
The Bidvest Group Limited
Industrials
Ambev S.A.
Consumer Staples
Kweichow Moutai Co., Ltd.
Consumer Staples
Techtronic Industries Company Limited
Industrials
WEG S.A.
Industrials

VOH
Weight
10.28%
6.14%
1.13%
1.43%
0.62%
0.34%
0.63%
1.53%
1.50%
0.92%

Carbon
Weight
13.68%
20.83%
9.76%
9.60%
3.69%
3.17%
2.30%
0.86%
2.76%
0.90%

Company C/R
(tCO2e/mGBP)
407
169
565
212
674
225
274
363
139
202

Portfolio C/R
Contribution
-10.34%
-8.28%
-8.00%
-4.82%
-3.10%
-1.63%
-1.38%
-0.60%
-0.56%
-0.40%

Disclosure
Full Disclosure
Full Disclosure
Partial Disclosure
Modelled
Partial Disclosure
Partial Disclosure
Partial Disclosure
Modelled
Partial Disclosure
Partial Disclosure

Climate
100+*
No
No
No
No
Yes
No
No
No
No
No

Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20

*Climate Action 100+ is an investor initiative to ensure the world’s largest corporate greenhouse gas emitters take necessary action on climate change. These include
100 ‘systemically important emitters’, alongside more than 60 others with significant opportunity to drive the clean energy transition. For more information see
http://www.climateaction100.org.

Page 168

The largest estimated contributors to the portfolio's carbon intensity are shown below. Note that a company may appear due to the proportion owned/financed,
rather than because it is the most carbon intensive held. The 'WACI Intensity Contribution' is the percentage change in the portfolio's intensity that would be caused
by excluding the holding referenced. In other words, it is a measurement of how much a specific holding effects the estimated carbon performance of the portfolio.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

64

LCIV Emerging Market Equity Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

FOSSIL FUELS

London CIV assesses exposure to such assets by highlighting holdings with business
activities in extractive and energy-related fossil fuel industries.
Financial Exposure to Fossil Fuel Activities
The chart to the right gives an indication of exposure to companies engaged in any
fossil fuel activities (left-hand side), as well as coal only (right-hand side). The height
of each bar represents the combined weight in the portfolio or benchmark of
companies deriving any revenues from fossil fuel related activities, while the
segments indicate the weighted average exposure to the revenues themselves. The
list of extractive and energy-related fossil fuel activities has been provided below:
Extractives: (1) Bituminous coal and lignite surface mining; (2) Bituminous coal
underground mining; (3) Bituminous coal mining; (4) Tar sands extraction; (5) Crude
petroleum and natural gas extraction; (6) Drilling oil and gas wells; (7) Natural gas
liquid extraction; (8) Support activities for oil and gas operations
Energy: (1) Coal Power Generation; (2) Petroleum Power Generation; (3) Natural Gas
Power Generation
(Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20)

Page 169

Future emissions from fossil fuel reserves far outweigh the allowable carbon budget that will limit global warming to 2 degrees Celsius above pre-industrial levels.
Industry experts refer to assets that may suffer from unanticipated or premature write-downs, devaluations or conversion to liabilities as 'stranded assets'.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

65

LCIV Emerging Market Equity Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Link to Underlying Manager's Voting Report for the Quarter
https://londonciv.org.uk/portal/email/download/8894
Relevant Holdings
Sector
Brewers
Budweiser Brewing Apac 1.30
Casinos & Gaming
Sands China 0.88
Chemicals
Asian Paints 0.76
Distillers & Vintners
Kweichow Moutai 1.58
Tobacco
ITC 0.62

Total
Source: London CIV

% of NAV
1.87
Ambev 0.57
0.88
0.76
1.58
0.62

5.71

Page 170

Summary of ESG Policy
The Underlying Manager, JPMorgan' approach to responsible investment is underpinned by a belief that environmental, social and governance (ESG) factors are critical
ingredients of long term business success. As an active manager focused on delivering long-term investment performance, integration of ESG issues into their investment
decision making, voting and ownership practices plays an important part. Their full RI policy can be provided by London CIV upon request.
The UK Stewardship Code rating of the Underlying Manager is tier 1.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

66

LCIV MAC Fund
Quarterly Summary as at 31 March 2021

.
. Investment Objective
.
.
. The Sub-fund's objective is to seek to achieve a .. Enfield Valuation:
Total Fund Value:
.
. return of LIBOR+4-5%, with a net asset value ..
. volatility of 4-6%, on an annualised basis over a .
.
.
. rolling 4 year period, net of fees.
.
.
. Enfield investment date: 30/11/2018
.
Inception date:
31/05/2018
. This is a pooled Sub-fund of the London CIV ACS ..
. administered by Northern Trust. The Sub-fund has . This is equivalent to 4.81% of the Fund
Price:
106.10p
.
. invested in the collective investment vehicle CQS ..
. Credit Multi Asset Fund and is managed by CQS . Distribution option: Reinvest
Distribution frequency:
Annually
.
. Global Funds (Ireland) p.l.c since the inception date. ..
Next XD date:
04/01/2022
.
.
.
.
Pay date:
28/02/2022
.
.
.
.
Dealing frequency:
Monthly
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
...................................................................................................

£54.7m

£1,137.2m

1 Year
%

3 Years
p.a. %

5 Years
p.a. %

Since Fund
Inception p.a. %

Since CF
Inception p.a. %

Fund

2.11

25.25

n/a

n/a

3.43

3.94

Target Benchmark**

1.10

4.64

n/a

n/a

5.06

5.01

Relative to Target Benchmark

1.01

20.61

n/a

n/a

(1.63)

(1.07)

**The Target Benchmark 3m LIBOR +4.5% is an absolute level of return which is deemed as the appropriate return which investors can expect for the level of risk taken within the Sub-fund. For further details,
please refer to the Glossary.

Page 171

Current
Quarter %

Net Performance

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

67

LCIV MAC Fund
Quarterly Commentary
Performance

Performance since LCIV inception
%
20

Across credit asset classes, senior secured loans contributed the most to
returns with strong performance from the U.S. and European exposures. High
yield also posted positive returns over the first quarter and within the
portfolio’s high yield exposure, U.S. high yield in particular outperformed the
market significantly as the dispersion between rates and spreads aided the
portfolio. Overall, the investment manager’s European bias, which has been
a headwind previously in terms of relative geographical performance,
delivered strong returns.

10
5
0
-5
-10
-15

Fund

Target Benchmark*

Source: Fund prices calculated based on published prices. All performance reported Net of
fees and charges with distributions reinvested.
* 3m LIBOR +4.5%

Page 172

Overall market returns have been ahead of the investment manager’s
expectation, but importantly the portfolio is tracking above market returns.
The first quarter saw investor attention turn towards the reopening of
economies and expansion of vaccine programmes. However, inflation
expectations were a major headwind for fixed income markets, especially for
long duration investment grade market. While initial market expectations
were that spreads decompression might follow an inflation-led move in rates,
actual impact on spreads has been minimal, which was comparatively
beneficial for short duration credit-focused strategies, including the
underlying portfolio. The investment manager relates the lack of spread
decompression to the earlier wide-spread downgrades by rating agencies
that still remain priced-in for most issues.

15

30
/0
6/
20
18
30
/0
9/
20
18
31
/1
2/
20
18
31
/0
3/
20
19
30
/0
6/
20
19
30
/0
9/
20
19
31
/1
2/
20
19
31
/0
3/
20
20
30
/0
6/
20
20
30
/0
9/
20
20
31
/1
2/
20
20
31
/0
3/
20
21

The Sub-fund continued its positive momentum from the end of last year,
delivering 2.1% and outperforming its cash plus target benchmark by 1.%.
While the Sub-fund’s one-year returns have been strong, since inception
returns are still in the red by -1.6%.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

68

LCIV MAC Fund
Peer Analysis

better in the longer term and the most recent quarter. The level of risk the
investment manager is taking is in the top quartile over 3 years.

Page 173

The peer analysis graphs are taken from eVestment and are dated the most
recent available quarter end, which is 31st December 2020. When asset
managers add their funds on eVestment, eVestment assigns them to a
universe based off the information the asset manager provides. The peer
analysis graphs use the eVestment primary universe, which comprises funds
with the most homogenous attributes in terms of investment objectives,
investment characteristics, and risk profiles. This allows for relevant “applesto-apples" comparisons among investment strategies. London CIV does not
choose the asset managers, or the funds used in this peer group analysis.

Market View

As shown in these charts, returns over the short to medium term have been
in the bottom two quartiles relative to its peers, although it has performed

The key event in the market over the last quarter has been the further
steepening of yield curves on the back of economies reopening and inflation
expectations, which is a tailwind for floating rate and short duration
instruments. The investment manager does not believe this trend will reverse
in the near future and expects the portfolio to be well placed even if rates
start to rally – the investment manager’s house view is that 10-year interest
rates should sit between 2-2.5% by year end.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

69

LCIV MAC Fund
One significant change to investment manager’s outlook towards the end of
last year was the change in default assumption, which are now lower than
before and more in line with the market. While the default expectations are
lower, it is still expected that the default cycle will extend and recovery rates
will be low. The change in default outlooks has not resulted in any meaningful
portfolio changes and the investment manager continues to be cautious on
credit selection and has not changed course from sector allocation
perspective.

High yield exposure has remained relatively stable and while the asset class
underperformed due to rates earlier in the quarter, the investment manager
captured some of this opportunity by adding to high yield, followed by profit
taking towards quarter end as rates sell-off stalled. The investment manager
remains optimistic on Financials which present strong risk-adjusted returns.
Also, cash levels are now lower and closer to long-term average.

Across all asset classes, despite the traditional spread gap that has remained
between CLOs and high yield, CLOs have not retraced as significantly as
expected, and along with Financials, remain one of the more attractive
exposures within the portfolio.

The Sub-fund remains on enhanced monitoring and following some key
departures last year, another departure of Prakash Narayanan, portfolio
manager for Global Relative Value strategy, was announced. Prakash has
decided to leave the firm for another opportunity and was one of the
members of the Senior Partners Group.

There have been no significant changes to the portfolio over the quarter and
the investment manager has made some marginal opportunistic changes. The
portfolio saw some additions to loans through a combination of primary and
secondary markets. Most of the increase has been within European loans,
where the investment manager continued to see more value relative to U.S.,
but the relative value gap was closed towards the end of the first quarter.
Loans comprise more than half of the portfolio (including CLOs) due to
demonstrable excess returns, lower forward-looking defaults and higher
recoveries than other sub-IG asset classes. European CLOs were also added
over the quarter (now over 13%), mainly in BB and B ratings, where spreads
are still materially higher, despite historic default levels being substantially
below corporates. Within BB CLOs, the portfolio is earning 600-650bps, which
is a great income opportunity. However, the exposure is not expected to go
above 15% due to CLOs negative convexity and traditional volatility
associated with CLOs.

Also, the Sub-fund has changed its duration methodology to better reflect the
rates sensitivity for the loans portfolio, resulting in 0.25 years reduction in
reported duration figure.
Conclusion
The Sub-fund had a strong quarter from asset allocation and security
selection perspective. The portfolio’s European bias benefitted the
performance, loans outperformed bonds and more importantly relative
performance in all invested asset classes was above the relative markets.
However, performance was slightly subdued when compared to previous
quarter, but it was a reflection of the overall markets over the first quarter as
the retracement trade from last year’s drawdown started to fade out, in
addition to the sell-off in rates market.

Page 174

Positioning

Fund Monitoring

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

70

LCIV MAC Fund: Portfolio Characteristics
Liquidity Management

Risk Highlights

Weighted Average rating

BB-

% Long BEE with Public Rating

88%

% of Investment with Public Rating

87.5%

Yield to Expected Maturity GBP

4.88%
3.87

Interest Rate Duration

1.21

0.6%

Level 2

95.7%

Level 3

3.7%

Page 175

Spread Duration

Level 1

Stress Test
Asset Class

Equities -10%

Equities +10%

ABS

Credit -25%

Credit +25%

IR -100bps

ABS -10%

ABS +10%

0.02%

(0.02)%

0.01%

(1.86)%

1.86%

0.06%

Convertibles

(0.21)%

0.24%

0.03%

(0.02)%

Loans

(0.08)%

0.08%

2.34%

(2.17)%

High Yield

0.74%

(0.69)%

0.69%

Financials (IG)

0.40%

(0.37)%

0.41%

Investment Grade

0.03%

(0.03)%

0.07%

Uncommitted Capital

Source: CQS for definitions of Risk Highlights please see the Glossary

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

71

LCIV MAC Fund: Portfolio Characteristics
Asset Classification
Classification

Contribution
to Return %

Risk
Weighted
Exposure %

42.21
19.00
18.74
9.84
4.17
0.93

1.08
0.25
0.48
0.19
0.11
0.03

unavailable
unavailable
unavailable
unavailable
unavailable
unavailable

Top Contributors to Performance
Security Name
Ark Topco Limited A1
Carestream Hea-2023 Extended :3470_P
Tpc Group Inc 10.5% 01Aug24 144A
Ep Energy Llc / Everest Acqu US

Nominal
Exposure %

Contribution
to Return %

0.71
0.18
0.18
0.00

0.15
0.04
0.04
0.05

Bottom Contributors to Performance
Security Name
Bonhom Holdings (Lux) SaRL Class B
Pinduoduo Inc 0% 01Dec25
Frans Bonhomme-Frans FRN
Credit Suisse Group 6.375% PERP REGS

Nominal
Exposure %

Contribution
to Return %

0.03
0.06
0.14
0.29

(0.01)
(0.01)
(0.04)
(0.01)

Sector Weights

NAV %

NAV %
30.01

United States

17.94

ABS

15.39

United Kingdom

France

7.26

Germany

7.20

Netherlands

3.62

Spain

3.52

15.17

Financials

13.27

PanEuropean

10.12

Consumer Discretionary

9.50

Information Technology

Industrials

8.16

Luxembourg

1.80

Health Care

7.90

Italy

1.43

Consumer Staples

7.47

Switzerland

1.27
Communication Services

7.19

Austria

1.14

Israel

1.08

Sweden

0.97

Canada

0.86

Denmark

0.74

Ireland

0.63

Finland

0.55

Malta

0.51

Australia

0.50

Other Investments

0%

4.07

Materials

3.18

Energy

Utilities

1.66

Real Estate

1.59
0.00

Broad Market Indices

Sovereign

10%

-0.53
6.57

Other Investments

8.25

20%

30%

40%

-10%

Page 176

Loans
ABS
HY Corporate Bonds
Financial Bonds
Convertibles
IG Corporate Bonds

Nominal
Exposure %

Country Weights

0%

10%

20%

30%
Source: CQS

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

72

LCIV MAC Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Summary of ESG Activity for the Quarter

The investment manager is a member of selected industry initiatives including:

Standards Board for Alternative Investments
The investment manager has expressed its intention to ensure the portfolio is compliant with the Sustainable Finance Disclosures Regulation (“SFDR”) Article 8.
Following London CIV engagement on ESG performance with the investment manager, CQS have also committed to quantifying its carbon intensity and performing
climate audit covering scopes 1, 2 and 3. Thus, London CIV has noted that the investment manager is making efforts to improve ESG performance.
The investment manager had one notable engagement in quarter with Logoplaste, a leading designer and manufacturer of sustainable rigid plastic containers
headquartered in Portugal. The market for environmentally friendly plastic containers continues to expand, with high barriers to entry for competitors. As a leader
in the market, Logoplaste has a long record of creative solutions to help clients achieve sustainability goals.
Logoplaste estimate that their unique business model saved more than 19,000 tonnes of CO2 in 2019 compared to market norms and are committed to increase
this further. CQS is a long-term member of the loan syndicate for Logoplaste and were strong and early supporters of an amendment to the pricing structure to
incorporate an ESG pricing ratchet. The investment manager provided early support and feedback for the initiative.
The amendment from Logoplaste has set a record by creating the first institutional term loan with interest payments directly linked to ESG factors and will engage
further to encourage more arrangements where economic and sustainability objectives coincide.

Page 177

UN-backed PRI (“PRI”) for which it scored A, B, B, B across strategy and governance, fixed income - corporate financial, fixed income - corporate non-financial,
fixed income - securitised.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

73

LCIV MAC Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Climate Impact Assessment
The following charts produced using data from Trucost provide climate impact and risk exposure metrics that may be used to support
climate-related disclosures in line with TCFD recommendations and inform
internal processes for risk management and strategy development.

Page 178

To enhance the understanding of climate risks and identify specific areas of exposure, London CIV periodically measures and reports
the carbon footprint and fossil fuel exposure of listed equity and corporate fixed income instruments.

Summary of coverage
Portfolio: LCIV Global Equity Fund

Coverage (% AUM)

Benchmark: MSCI World
Holdings Date: 30th November 2020
Contributor Level: Companies

18%

Apportioning Denominator: Enterprise Value
Emissions Scope: Direct + First-Tier Indirect
The chart to the right shows the overall level of Scope 1 carbon disclosure,
calculated using three alternative methods - by value of holdings, by Scope
1 emissions, and by number of holdings.
The materials have been prepared solely for informational purposes. Results have been
calculated as of the 30/11/2020 and may not reflect most recent Fund activity.

(Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20)

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

74

LCIV MAC Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Carbon Performance

Page 179

Carbon footprint analysis allows investors to use the latest available data in
order to quantify an estimate of the green greenhouse gas emissions (GHG)
embedded within their portfolio, presenting them as tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalents (tCO2e) apportioned to the investor. These emissions may then be
'normalized' by a financial indicator (either annual revenues or value invested)
in order to give an estimate measure of carbon intensity that enables
comparison between companies or portfolios, irrespective of size or geography.
The chart to the right shows the estimate carbon intensity using the three main
methodologies, carbon-to-revenue (C/R), carbon-to-value (C/V) and weightedaverage carbon intensity (WACI).
C/R gives an indication of carbon efficiency with respect to output (as revenues
are closely linked to productivity). C/V gives an indication of efficiency with
respect to shareholder value creation. The WACI approach circumvents the
need for apportioning ownership of carbon or revenues to individual holdings.
Whilst the first two methods act as indicators of an investor's contribution to
climate change, the weighted average method seeks only to show an investor's
exposure to carbon intensive companies, i.e. it is not an additive in terms of
carbon budgets.
(Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20)

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

75

LCIV MAC Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Attribution Analysis

425
Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20

273

-39.68%

-15.95%

-55.63%

The principal reasons for the carbon intensity of a portfolio to differ from
the benchmark are a) sector allocation decisions and b) company selection
decisions.
Sector allocation decisions can cause the carbon intensity of a portfolio to
diverge from its benchmark when it is over or underweight markedly high
or markedly low carbon sectors. For example, if a portfolio is overweight a
high carbon sector, then it is more likely to have a higher overall intensity
than the benchmark. However, if the companies selected within a high
carbon sector are the most carbon efficient, then it is still possible that the
portfolio may have a lower overall intensity.
The table to the left shows the relative contribution of sector allocation and
company selection effects towards the ‘Total Effect’ of the portfolio versus
the benchmark. Sector allocation effects are determined using the 11 GICS
Sector classifications, and the analysis uses the C/R intensity metric.

Page 180

Communication Services
Consumer Discretionary
Consumer Staples
Energy
Financials
Health Care
Industrials
Information Technology
Materials
Real Estate
Utilities

C/R Intensity
Attribution Effect
Portfolio Bench.
Sector
Investee Total
38
48
2.38%
0.30%
2.68%
142
101
2.82%
-2.62%
0.20%
156
247
0.12%
3.87%
3.99%
740
718
8.18%
-0.20%
7.98%
11
30
4.23%
1.69%
5.92%
53
42
-9.18%
-0.06%
-9.24%
871
211
-1.15% -20.36% -21.52%
115
73
-2.06%
-0.99%
-3.05%
1,177
1,173 -30.50%
-0.22% -30.72%
152
144
-0.32%
-0.01%
-0.33%
2,244
2,405 -14.18%
2.64% -11.54%

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

76

LCIV MAC Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Top Contributors - Weighted Average Carbon Intensity

Name

Sector

Drax Group plc
Delek Group Ltd.
PAO Severstal
ArcelorMittal
Deutsche Lufthansa AG
Air France-KLM SA
LafargeHolcim Ltd
NRG Energy, Inc.
Veolia Environnement S.A.
easyJet plc

Utilities
Energy
Materials
Materials
Industrials
Industrials
Materials
Utilities
Utilities
Industrials

VOH
Weight
0.81%
1.70%
0.38%
0.45%
0.96%
0.70%
0.09%
0.11%
0.38%
0.35%

Carbon
Weight
15.67%
1.67%
2.98%
11.66%
6.68%
5.04%
1.01%
1.27%
2.06%
1.67%

Company C/R
(tCO2e/mGBP)
3,283
1,317
4,788
3,766
1,403
1,258
6,862
5,717
1,811
1,369

Portfolio WACI Disclosure
Contribution
-7.89% Partial Disclosure
-5.64% Modelled
-5.46% Full Disclosure
-5.00% Partial Disclosure
-3.44% Full Disclosure
-2.17% Full Disclosure
-1.98% Full Disclosure
-1.92% Partial Disclosure
-1.86% Full Disclosure
-1.19% Full Disclosure

Climate
100+*
No
No
Yes
Yes
No
Yes
Yes
Yes
No
No

Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20

*Climate Action 100+ is an investor initiative to ensure the world’s largest corporate greenhouse gas emitters take necessary action on climate change. These include
100 ‘systemically important emitters’, alongside more than 60 others with significant opportunity to drive the clean energy transition. For more information see
http://www.climateaction100.org.

Page 181

The largest estimated contributors to the portfolio's carbon intensity are shown below. Note that a company may appear due to the proportion owned/financed,
rather than because it is the most carbon intensive held. The 'WACI Intensity Contribution' is the percentage change in the portfolio's intensity that would be caused
by excluding the holding referenced. In other words, it is a measurement of how much a specific holding effects the estimated carbon performance of the portfolio.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

77

LCIV MAC Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

FOSSIL FUELS

London CIV assesses exposure to such assets by highlighting holdings with business
activities in extractive and energy-related fossil fuel industries.
Financial Exposure to Fossil Fuel Activities
The chart to the right gives an indication of exposure to companies engaged in any
fossil fuel activities (left-hand side), as well as coal only (right-hand side). The height
of each bar represents the combined weight in the portfolio or benchmark of
companies deriving any revenues from fossil fuel related activities, while the
segments indicate the weighted average exposure to the revenues themselves. The
list of extractive and energy-related fossil fuel activities has been provided below:
Extractives: (1) Bituminous coal and lignite surface mining; (2) Bituminous coal
underground mining; (3) Bituminous coal mining; (4) Tar sands extraction; (5) Crude
petroleum and natural gas extraction; (6) Drilling oil and gas wells; (7) Natural gas
liquid extraction; (8) Support activities for oil and gas operations
Energy: (1) Coal Power Generation; (2) Petroleum Power Generation; (3) Natural
Gas Power Generation
(Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20)

Page 182

Future emissions from fossil fuel reserves far outweigh the allowable carbon budget that will limit global warming to 2 degrees Celsius above pre-industrial levels.
Industry experts refer to assets that may suffer from unanticipated or premature write-downs, devaluations or conversion to liabilities as 'stranded assets'.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

78

LCIV MAC Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Top Contributors - Fossil Fuel Revenues

Name

Sector

Delek Group Ltd.
Pioneer Natural Resources Company
Iberdrola, S.A.
Drax Group plc
EnBW Energie Baden-Wuerttemberg AG
ElectricitedeFrance
The Chugoku Electric Power Co., Inc.
Veolia Environnement S.A.
Exxon Mobil Corporation
Occidental Petroleum Corporation
Occidental Petroleum Corporation
EQT Corporation
NRG Energy, Inc.
WPX Energy, Inc.
EQT Corporation

Energy
Energy
Utilities
Utilities
Utilities
Utilities
Utilities
Utilities
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Utilities
Energy
Energy

VOH
1.70%
0.38%
0.93%
0.81%
0.41%
0.93%
0.12%
0.38%
0.51%
0.05%
0.05%
0.03%
0.11%
0.03%
0.03%

Source: LCIV calculated using Trucost data as at 30 November 20 *Climate

Company Level Fossil
Fuel Extractives Rev.
32.31%
100.00%

Company Level Fossil
Fuel Energy Rev.
12.83%
11.20%
10.53%
16.49%
7.03%
48.79%
14.23%

9.05%
80.68%
80.68%
99.78%
27.03%
92.05%
99.78%

Company Level Total
Fossil Fuel Rev.
45.14%
100.00%
11.20%
10.53%
16.49%
7.03%
48.79%
14.23%
9.05%
80.68%
80.68%
99.78%
27.03%
92.05%
99.78%

Portfolio Level Weighted Climate
Avg Fossil Fuel Rev. 100+*
0.769% No
0.379% No
0.105% Yes
0.086% No
0.068% No
0.066% Yes
0.057% No
0.054% No
0.046% Yes
0.043% Yes
0.041% Yes
0.034% No
0.030% Yes
0.026% No
0.026% No

Action 100+ is an investor initiative to ensure the world’s largest corporate greenhouse gas emitters
take necessary action on climate change. These include 100 ‘systemically important emitters’, alongside more than 60 others with significant opportunity to drive
the clean energy transition. For more information see http://www.climateaction100.org.

Page 183

The table below shows the companies with the most significant weighted average fossil fuel revenues. The degree to which the company's own revenues are derived
from extractive and energy-related fossil fuel activities is also indicated in adjacent columns.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

79

LCIV MAC Fund: ESG Summary

Environmental

Social

Governance

Relevant Holdings
Sector

% of NAV

Aerospace & Defense
Casinos & Gaming
Distillers & Vintners
Fertilizers & Agricultural Chemicals
Oil & Gas

0.43
1.38
0.10
0.31
3.21

Total

5.43

Source: CQS

Page 184

Summary of ESG Policy
London CIV reviews the ESG policies of all holdings within the London CIV MAC Fund.
The Underlying Manager believes that ESG factors can influence the performance of companies and the value of their securities. While the these factors are typically skewed
toward impacting equity security valuation more than the value of an issuer's debt, it is possible for these factors to affect an issuer's ability to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due, potentially materially so.
The Underlying Manager assesses each of these factors as part of the fundamental research process that supports the investment process. Their research process considers both
bottom-up and macro ESG factors in assessing investments. Where they perceive there may be material risk or opportunity resulting from company exposure to these matters,
this is considered in constructing strategies.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

80

Passive Investment Summary
The table below outlines the valuation of investments held per passive manager at the beginning and end of the quarter. For details on the performance of these funds please
contact the passive managers directly.
31 March 2021

Blackrock

£

£

ACS WORLD LOW CARBON EQ TKR FD X2

0

220,388,640

AQ LIFE UP TO 5YR UK GILT IDX S1

56,981,552

56,548,644

AQUILA LIFE ALL STK UK ILG IDX S1

37,591,253

35,201,391

AQUILA LIFE WORLD EX-UK EQ IDX S1

200,552,277

0

AQUILA LIFE UK EQUITY INDEX FD S1

11,822,173

0

306,947,255

312,138,675

Total
Source: Passive Investment Manager Blackrock

Page 185

31 December 2020

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

2 Quarterly Update

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021
3 Funds

4 Appendices

81

Glossary of Terms
Country Characteristics The number of holdings in different countries is

is stationary. In other words, it is the extra return due to the non-market

counted based on the classification to countries of risk of all individual

factors. The risk-adjusted factor takes into account both the performance

portfolio holdings within the Northern Trust fund accounting system.

of the market as a whole and the volatility of the manager. A positive

Note: the percentage of the portfolio calculations excludes the impact of

alpha indicates that a manager has produced returns above the expected

any cash held within the Sub-fund. For the equity funds holdings

level at that risk level and vice versa for a negative alpha.

incorporated in tax havens have been reflected as the country in which

Bear Duration An investment portfolio's effective duration after a 50 bp

that company is headquartered.

rise in rates. The extent to which a portfolio's bear market duration

Duration An investment portfolio's price sensitivity to changes in interest

exceeds its duration is a gauge of extension risk.

rates. An accurate predictor of price changes only for small, parallel shifts

Beta The beta is the sensitivity of the investment portfolio to the stated

of the yield curve. For every 1 basis point fall/ (rise) in interest rates, a

benchmark.

portfolio with duration of 1 year will rise /(fall) in price by 1 bp.

Bull Duration An investment portfolio's effective duration after a 50 bp

ESG This stands for Environmental, Social and Governance and refers to

decline in rates. The extent to which a portfolio's duration exceeds its bull

the three main areas of concern that have developed as central factors in

market duration is a gauge of contraction risk.

measuring the sustainability and ethical impact of an investment in a

Capacity Please refer to the prospectus, Sub-funds may be limited by

company or business.

subscriptions into the Sub-fund or by the total Sub-fund valuation size. For

Estimated PPU The estimated distribution pence per unit payment that

queries on remaining capacity as at a relevant date, please contact the

will be made to unitholders at the next pay date.

Client Service Team at clientservice@londonciv.org.uk.

Interest Rate Duration It is the price sensitivity of the investment

Comparator Benchmarks are indices which represent a style-appropriate

portfolio to changes in interest rates.

reference index to compare the underlying funds. These have been

Net Market Move Change in valuation of the holding due to movement in

selected following back-testing and holdings-based analysis to ensure that

the market rather than cash flows into or out of the Sub-fund.

they are relevant to the Sub-fund.

New Positions For delegated investment portfolios any new holdings

Completed Sales For delegated portfolios any holdings held at the last

entered into during the quarter that were not held at the last quarter end

quarter end which have been sold out of and are no longer held as at the

have been reflected as new positions. If there are more than ten it is

reporting date shown as completed sales. If there are more than ten it is

limited to the largest ten as at the end of the quarter. This is not

limited to the largest ten as at the end of last quarter. This is not

necessarily the same as the largest ten purchases for the quarter if pre-

necessarily the largest ten sales for the quarter. Note if a position was

existing holdings have been topped up. Note if a position was bought and

bought and sold within the quarter this will not appear.

has since been sold this will not appear.

Page 186

Annualised Alpha The incremental return of a manager when the market

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

82

Glossary of Terms
Pay Date The date on which the distribution amount will be paid in cash.
If a reinvestment option is taken this will be reinvested on pay date –2
Business Days.
Performance Attribution For delegated portfolios the top ten
contributors and detractors to performance are shown. This is to show
how the structure of the investment portfolio contributed to the total
performance.
Performance Calculation Basis Sub-fund performance is calculated net

Oil Comp-Exploration &
Production
Integrated Oil & Gas
Oil & Gas Drilling
Oil & Gas Exploration &
Production
Oil & Gas Refining & Marketing
Oil – US Royalty Trusts
Tobacco

Oil & Gas
Oil & Gas
Oil & Gas
Oil & Gas
Oil & Gas
Oil & Gas
Tobacco

of all fees and expenses. Where a Sub-fund has been open for less than a
Reporting Date All data and content within this report is as per the date

Since 1 January 2020 the investment performance calculations use a time

noted on the front cover, unless otherwise noted. Where the reporting

weighted rather than money weighted basis. The time-weighted rate of

end date falls on a weekend or Bank holiday, data from the previous

return (“TWR”) is a measure of the compound rate of growth in a portfolio.

business day will be used.

The TWR measure eliminates the distorting effects on growth rates

Securities Financing Transaction “SFT” A transaction where securities

created by inflows and outflows of money.

are used to borrow or lend cash. They include repurchase agreements

Relevant Holdings This table highlights holdings within the investment

(repos), securities lending activities, and sell/buy-back transactions.

portfolio in GICS sub-industries which may be considered relevant for ESG

Sectors and Industry Characteristics The number of holdings in

considerations. Specifically, this calls upon sub-industries:

different sectors and industries is counted based on the classification to
Global Industry Classification Standards (“GICS”) categories of all individual

GIC Sub Industry
Aerospace & defence
Brewers / Brewery
Casinos & Gaming / Casino Hotels
Distillers & Vintners
Beverages-Wine/Spirits
Diversified Metals & Mining
Diversified Chemicals
Speciality Chemicals
Commodity Chemicals
Fertilizers & Agricultural Chemicals
Oil Comp-Integrated

Reporting Group
Aerospace & defence
Brewers
Casinos & Gaming
Distillers & Vintners
Distillers & Vintners
Fossil Fuel
Chemicals
Chemicals
Chemicals
Fertilizers & Agricultural Chemicals
Oil & Gas

portfolio holdings within the Northern Trust fund accounting system. Note
the percentage of the portfolio calculations excludes the impact of any
cash held within the Sub-fund.
Set up of the Sub–funds The London LGPS CIV Ltd (“London CIV”) is the
Alternative Investment Fund Manager for the London LGPS CIV Authorised
Contractual Scheme and manages the Sub-funds on either a delegated or
pooled basis.

o

Delegated: The Sub-fund is structured as a delegated mandate
with an appointed investment manager selecting individual
securities overseen by the London CIV. The Sub-funds directly own

Page 187

month the performance will show as “n/a” unless otherwise specified.

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021

2 Quarterly Update

3 Funds

4 Appendices

83

Glossary of Terms
o

the assets which are held by the custodian. This is the case for the

Top Ten Holdings Largest ten holdings within the investment portfolio as

global equity and global bond Sub-funds.

at the reporting date. Note this excludes the impact of any cash held

Pooled: The Sub-fund holds units in collective investment schemes

within the Sub-fund.

managed by other investment managers rather than directly

Tracking error A measure of the risk in an investment portfolio that is

holding the individual securities. This is the case for the multi-asset

due to active management decisions made by the investment manager; it

Sub-funds.

indicates how closely a portfolio follows the benchmark. This is shown in
percentage terms.

been live for a period exceeding 12 months, figures are annualised taking

UK Stewardship Code A code which aims to enhance the quality of

into account the period the fund has been open.

engagement between investors and companies to help improve long-term

Spread Duration This represents the price sensitivity of the investment

risk-adjusted returns to shareholders. Asset managers who sign up are

portfolio to changes in spreads between different credit quality bonds.

given a tier rating of one or two. Details of all signatories, with links to the

Spread duration constitutes an investment portfolio's sensitivity to

statements on their websites are available on the Financial Reporting

changes in Option-Adjusted Spread (“OAS”), which affects the value of

Council website https://www.frc.org.uk/investors/uk-stewardship-code

bonds that trade at a yield spread to treasuries. Corporate, mortgage, and

List of Underlying Manager for Delegated ACS Sub-funds:

emerging markets spread duration represents the contribution of each

Baillie Gifford & Co for LCIV Global Alpha Growth Fund

sector to the overall portfolio spread duration. For every 1 year of spread

Epoch Investment Partners, Inc for LCIV Equity Income Fund

duration, portfolio value should rise (fall) by 1 basis point with every 1

JPMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited for LCIV Emerging

basis point of OAS tightening (widening). Negative spread duration

Market Equity Fund

indicates the portfolio will benefit from widening spreads relative to

Longview Partners (Guernsey) Limited for LCIV Global Equity Focus

treasuries.

Fund

Standard Deviation A common risk metric. It measures the average

PIMCO Europe Limited for LCIV Global Bond Fund

deviations of a return series from its mean. A high standard deviation

RBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited for LCIV Sustainable

implies that the data is highly dispersed and there have been large swings

Equity Fund and the LCIV Sustainable Equity Exclusion Fund

or volatility in the manager’s return series. A low standard deviation tells

Newton Investment Management Ltd for LCIV Global Equity Fund

us the fund return stream is stable and less volatile.

List of Pooled ACS Sub-funds current Underlying Managers:

Target Benchmark is not the Sub-fund objective but has been selected

Baillie Gifford & Co for LCIV Diversified Growth Fund

on the basis of the risk taken within the underlying fund. This has been

Newton Investment Management Ltd for LCIV Real Return Fund

defined using historical analysis and in conjunction with the underlying

Pyrford International Limited for LCIV Global Total Return Fund

market participants to triangulate the most appropriate target level.

Ruffer LLP for LCIV Absolute Return Fund

Page 188

Since Inception Performance For Sub-funds / Client Funds that have

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

2 Quarterly Update

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021
3 Funds

4 Appendices

84

Glossary of Terms
CQS (UK) LLP for LCIV MAC Fund
Volatility Risk A measure of the total risk in an investment portfolio. This
is shown in percentage terms.
Weighted Average Rating This is the weighted average credit rating of all
the bonds in the fund which gives an idea of the credit quality and
riskiness of the portfolio.
XD Date The date on which the distribution amount will be determined.
Units purchased in the Sub-fund on its ex-dividend date or after, will not
receive the next payment. Any units held in the Sub-fund before the exdividend date, receive the distribution.
is held until it matures.
Yield to Maturity The rate of annual income return on an investment
expressed as a percentage. Current yield is obtained by dividing the
coupon rate of interest by the market price. Estimated yield to maturity is
obtained by applying discounts and premiums from par to the income
return. Bond yields move inversely to market prices. As market prices rise,
yields on existing securities fall, and vice versa.
Yield % as displayed in the Key Statistics table of the London CIV Equity
Sub-funds is the dividend yield as calculated by Northern Trust. It
represents an estimate of the dividend-only return on your investment.
% Long Bond Equivalent Exposure with Public Rating This represents
the percentage market value of all debt instruments that the fund has
bought and have a rating issued by a credit agency.
% of Investment with Public Rating This represents the percentage
market value of all debt instruments that the fund is long or short and
have a rating issued by a credit agency.

Page 189

Yield to Expected Maturity It is the total return expected on the bond if it

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
1 Investment Summary

2 Quarterly Update

Quarterly ACS Investment Report - 31 March 2021
3 Funds

4 Appendices

85

Disclaimer
London CIV
22 Lavington Street
London
SE1 0NZ
Issued by London LGPS CIV Limited, which is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority number 710618. London CIV is the trading name of
London LGPS CIV Limited.

Past performance is not a guide to future performance. The value of investments and the income from them may go down as well as up and you may not get back
the amount you invest. Changes in the rates of exchange between currencies may cause the value of investments to diminish or increase. Fluctuation may be
particularly marked in the case of a higher volatility fund and the value of an investment may fall suddenly and substantially. Levels and basis of taxation may
change from time to time.
Subject to the express requirements of any other agreement, we will not provide notice of any changes to our personnel, structure, policies, process, objectives or,
without limitation, any other matter contained in this document. No part of this material may be reproduced, stored in retrieval system or transmitted in any form
or by any means, electronic, mechanical, recording or otherwise, without the prior written consent of London CIV. If applicable, any index benchmark used is done
so with the permission of the third party data provider, where the data usage is prohibited for any other purpose without the data provider's consent. This data is
provided without any warranties of any kind, where no liability exists for the data provider and the issuer of this document.
Registered office: 70 Great Bridgewater Street, Manchester M1 5ES.

Compliance code: 2021164

Page 190

This material is for limited distribution and is issued by London CIV and no other person should rely upon the information contained within it. This document is
not intended for distribution to, or use by, any person or entity in any jurisdiction or country where such distribution would be unlawful under the laws governing
the offer of units in collective investment undertakings. Any distribution, by whatever means, of this document and related material to persons who are not
eligible under the relevant laws governing the offer of units in collective investment undertakings is strictly prohibited. Any research or information in this
document has been undertaken and may have been acted on by London CIV for its own purpose. The results of such research and information are being made
available only incidentally. The data used may be derived from various sources, and assumed to be correct and reliable, but it has not been independently verified;
its accuracy or completeness is not guaranteed and no liability is assumed for any direct or consequential losses arising from its use. The views expressed do not
constitute investment or any other advice and are subject to change and no assurances are made as to their accuracy.

Page 191

Agenda Item 9

London Borough of Enfield
PENSION POLICY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
Meeting Date: 10 June 2021

Subject:

LGPS Update

Cabinet Member:

Cllr Maguire

Executive Director:

Fay Hammond

Key Decision:

[

]

Purpose of Report
1.

This report provides an update on several general developments affecting
the Local Government Pensions Scheme, one of the functions of the
Committee is to meet the Councils duties in respect of the efficient
management of the pension fund.

2.

The Committee’s consideration of the information in the report contributes
towards the achievement of the Council’s statutory duties.
Proposal(s)

3.

Pension Policy and Investments Committee are recommended to note the
contents of this report.
Reason for Proposal(s)

4.

For effective and efficient management of the Fund.

5.

There is a requirement for the Committee to be kept up to date with current
issues and legislative developments to support and effect the effective
discharge of their role.

6.

Relevance to the Council’s Corporate Plan

7.

Good homes in well-connected neighbourhoods.

8.

Build our Economy to create a thriving place.

9.

Sustain Strong and healthy Communities.

Page 192

Background
TPR New Code Consultation
10.

TPR’s current expectations, and the new Code aims to address some
inconsistencies between the codes which The Pensions Regulator (TPR)
issued its consultation on a new Code of Practice which runs for 10 weeks to
26 May 2021.

11.

The new code brings together 10 existing codes of practice, including Code of
Practice 14 (Governance and Administration of Public Service Pension
Schemes), into a single modular (on-line) code which will apply to all UK
pension schemes.

12.

TPR's reasons given for replacing the existing codes included a need to
update the requirements arising from the Occupational Pension Schemes
(Governance) (Amendment) Regulations 2018, although those regulations
don't apply to public sector schemes. In addition, some codes were outdated
and did not reflect TPR's current expectations, and the new Code aims to
address some inconsistencies between the codes which had not been helpful
to users or to TPR’s enforcement activity.

13.

In relation to public service pension schemes, we believe the Regulator now
has a better understanding of the public service pension arrangements having
had oversight since 2015, and it was felt much of the wording in the Code of
Practice No. 14 would be useful for application to private sector
arrangements.

14.

Not all parts of the new code apply to the LGPS, and some others are
recommended best practice and not strictly required by law. Appendix 1 of the
consultation document helpfully summarises which parts of the code apply to
the LGPS and which are new.
£95K cap update

15.

On 25 February Government laid regulations revoking the Public Service Exit
Payments Regulations 2020, following HMT's announcement on 12 February.

16.

The Revocation regulations came into force on 19 March. Whilst the
revocation is not retrospective, the new regulations provide for relevant
authorities to pay the difference between the capped exit payment and the
uncapped exit payment for exits after 4 November 2020.

17.

On 4 March, MHCLG withdrew its 28 October 2020 letter which had advised
LGPS administering authorities not to pay unreduced early retirement benefits
on redundancy under Regulation 30(7) where this would breach the £95K limit
set out in the Public Sector Exit Payments Regulations 2020. This, together
with the revocation regulations, paves the way for administering authorities to
revisit exits after 4 November 2020 and put into payment benefits under
Regulation 30(7) where these had previously been withheld.

Page 2 of 9

Page 193

18.

Employers who paid an alternative compensation payment will need to seek
to recover those payments from the member to avoid paying twice.
New mortality projection model (CMI_2020)

19.

The CMI ('Continuous Mortality Investigation'), owned by the Institute and
Faculty of Actuaries, has recently published its updated standard mortality
projections model, 'CMI_2020'.

20.

The COVID-19 pandemic has led to significantly increased mortality. Weekly
death registrations for England and Wales released by the Office for National
Statistics indicate that around 601,000 deaths were registered for the ages
represented by the CMI model in 2020. This compares to 523,000 in 2019.
This translates into a mortality ‘improvement’ of −10% for 2020 which is a long
way outside the range of the last 4 decades.

21.

Consequently, the CMI Mortality Projections Committee has decided that no
weight should be placed on the 2020 data within the core CMI_2020 model.
This is principally intended to ensure that the model reacts in a sensible way
to 2020’s experience. The model does however contain flexibility to place
non-zero weight on 2020 data.

22.

The CMI model typically projects that life expectancy will increase year on
year, but life expectancies in 2021 under CMI_2020 are very similar to life
expectancies in 2020 under the previous version of the model (CMI_2019).
This means that the life expectancy in 2021 is slightly lower than would
previously have been projected.

23.

Assuming all else being equal, using CMI_2020 instead of CMI_2019 should
lead to a small reduction in liabilities (less than 0.5%) for a typical pension
scheme. However, Aon advised LGPS Funds adopted CMI_2018 in the 2019
valuations. All else being equal, CMI_2020 is likely to be very similar to the
2018 version of the projection model, with very small impact on liabilities.
GMP indexation

24.

On 23 March HMT responded to its consultation on the indexation of
Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMPs) in Public Service Pension Schemes.
In summary, HMT has discounted conversion (of GMP into main scheme
benefits) as their long-term policy solution and instead will make full GMP
indexation the permanent solution for public service pension schemes.

25.

Currently, all members whose State Pension Age is between 5 April 2016 and
6 April 2021 have their GMP pensions fully uprated by their scheme in line
with CPI. The new policy will extend this to members whose State Pension
Age (SPA) is on or after 6 April 2021.

26.

From an administration point of view administering authorities will be relieved
there is no longer the prospect of a full GMP conversion exercise being
needed over the next couple of years (or indeed, ever).

Page 3 of 9

Page 194

27.

Software suppliers will need to ensure the extension is appropriately allowed
for, and transfer terms will also need to be reviewed centrally. Otherwise this
can be seen as business as usual for administration teams. However, we are
expecting further guidance (to an undefined timetable) on how HMT propose
to deal with the sex inequalities which will persist for a minority of members,
which will have implications for benefit calculations.

28.

It is also worth noting that this consultation does not address the second
Lloyds Bank ruling in November 2020 which found that transfers paid in
relation to service between 17 May 1990 and 6 April 1997 containing GMP
would need to be revisited to address any sex discrimination. Government
guidance on this issue is yet to be released.

29.

The implications for funding will depend on the approach taken in the 2019
valuations. Funds which provisioned for the interim solution ending 5 April
2021 may see total liabilities increase by approximately 0.1% to 0.2%,
however the impact will vary by employer.
Pensions Dashboards Programme (PDP)

30.

In the 2016 Budget, the Government tasked the pensions industry with
ensuring that by 2019 it had designed, funded and launched a pensions
dashboard to enable individuals to view all of their retirement savings in one
place.

31.

The idea is that this will improve member engagement and make it easier to
plan for retirement. In April 2019, following consultation, the government
confirmed that multiple industry dashboards should exist alongside a noncommercial dashboard hosted by the Money and Pensions Service (MaPS).

32.

In 2019 MaPS set up the Pensions Dashboards Industry Delivery Group (IDG)
to lead the delivery of the initial phase of the pensions dashboards
programme. The IDG was subsequently renamed the Pensions Dashboards
Programme (PDP).

33.

In February 2020, the PDP launched a call for evidence from pension
providers and schemes. The deadline to this was originally 16 March 2021 but
this has been extended to the close of play on 2 April 2021. LGA, who
encourage all administering authorities to respond, responded with their views
earlier this month.

34.

The Pension Schemes Act 2021 (PSA 2021) provides a legal framework for
pensions dashboards, including new powers to compel schemes to provide
information to dashboard providers. Detailed requirements of what must be
provided, when and how will be set out in regulations. Schemes and providers
are expected to have their data ‘dashboard’ ready from 2023 but the
development and testing phases will be happening throughout 2021 and in
2022.
RPI Reform and LGPS valuations

Page 4 of 9

Page 195

35.

Here within are the Fund actuary (Aon) thoughts on the move to align RPI
with CPIH with effect from 2030, if this will affect the assumptions, they have
adopted for funding purposes for future pension increases and revaluation of
pension accounts, which are linked to CPI. They think it’s actually quite simple
for the LGPS funds although this can be really complicated for private sector
schemes.

36.

It’s simple because for long-term secure employers our CPI assumption is set
based on the long-term best estimate of CPI inflation from our Capital Market
Assumptions. These are the product of an extensive data gathering exercise
every quarter by Aon’s Global Asset Allocation specialists.

37.

For inflation, they take the views expressed in a biannual survey of long-term
forecasts as well as other more frequent forecasts by economic institutions to
derive where they think the true market consensus forecast for CPI inflation is.
This approach has generally led to their LGPS Actuaries to recommend a
lower CPI assumption than adopted by other LGPS advisers because it isn’t
distorted by supply and demand factors that impact the alternative approach
of comparing the yield on index-linked gilts with the yield on fixed interest gilts
(so-called market-implied breakeven RPI inflation).

38.

They also stated that their approach is also appropriate because it means
their CPI assumption is consistent with the long-term investment returns
which underpin the choice of discount rate. Thus, given CPI itself isn’t
changing, the only change to our CPI assumption for long-term secure
employers is to reflect updated views of future best estimate CPI, which isn’t
influenced by RPI reform.

39.

Although there are of course situations when it might not be quite so simple
and the valuation may be affected, for example: if a Fund are holding a
substantial proportion of assets in index-linked gilts as a matching asset/to “hedge”
CPI inflation.

40.

The Government will not offer compensation to index-linked gilt holders, the
Scheme liability is to pay CPI-linked benefits is unchanged but from 2030
payments from Fund/Scheme index-linked gilt holdings will be linked to CPIH
not RPI and CPHI is expected to be lower than RPI.
Employer flexibilities

41.

On 2 March 2021, MHCLG issued their statutory guidance for administering
authorities developing their policies on how to use these new flexibilities
introduced by the Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) (No.2)
Regulations 2020. The Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) have also released
more detailed guidance at the same time.

42.

The flexibilities allow administering authorities (AAs) to:
a) review employer contribution rates between valuations under more
circumstances (before now this has been very limited),

Page 5 of 9

Page 196

b) spread exit payments over a period rather than require immediate
payment from an exiting employer, and
c) enter into Deferred Debt Agreements with an employer who would
otherwise be exiting the Fund, which in effect postpones an exit valuation
to a later date.
43.

AAs are unable to use the new provisions unless their policies are set out in
their funding strategy statement. The publication of statutory guidance now
allows those policies to be developed and finalised. There is a lot of
information AAs will need to include in their policies.

44.

It is important that AAs treat employers consistently but inevitably policies
cannot (and should not) be too prescriptive nor try to cater for every
eventuality.
McCloud

45.

The Written Ministerial Statement (WMS) for McCloud was issued on 13 May
2021. The WMS confirms key policy points set out in last year’s consultation,
although MHCLG is waiting for the Public Service Pensions Bill amendments
to be passed before LGPS Regulations implementing McCloud can be made.
However, the WMS provides sufficient high level policy direction to give
administering authorities and software providers the confidence to plan and
start to implement changes to administrative processes and software, along
with member communications, in readiness for the effective date of 1 April
2023.

46.

Whilst the effective date is welcome in terms of allowing more time to
implement the changes, it only adds to the amount of retrospective leaver
calculations that need to be reviewed, i.e. all qualifying leavers from 1 April
2014 to 31 March 2023. Administering authorities need to continue to make
progress with their data collection and verification programmes and plan
resourcing to minimise disruption to business as usual.

47.

Although data collection for McCloud is a lengthy and resource intensive
process and so the advice is to get this underway as soon as possible, if not
already started.

48.

Here is a reminder of the key elements of the changes that will be made to the
LGPS Regulations:
i) Underpin protection will apply to LGPS members who meet the revised
qualifying criteria, principally that they were active in the scheme on 31st
March 2012 and subsequently had membership of the career average
scheme without a continuous break in service of more than five years.
ii) The period of protection will apply from 1st April 2014 to 31st March 2022
but will cease earlier where a member leaves active membership or
reaches their final salary scheme normal retirement age (normally 65)
before 31st March 2022.
Page 6 of 9

Page 197

iii) Where a member stays in active membership beyond 31st March 2022,
the comparison of their benefits will be based on their final salary when
they leave the LGPS, or when they reach their final salary scheme normal
retirement age, if earlier.
iv) Underpin protection will apply to qualifying members who leave active
membership of the LGPS with an immediate or deferred entitlement to a
pension.
v) A ‘two stage process’ will apply for assessing the underpin so that, where
there is a gap between a member’s last day of active membership and the
date, they take their pension, members can be assured they are getting
the higher benefit.
vi) Scheme regulations giving effect to the above changes will be
retrospective to 1st April 2014.
Section 13 update
49.

Government Actuarial Department (GAD) are currently engaging with the fund
actuaries over the preliminary findings of their section 13 analysis. The
following observations are highlighted:
a) there are more amber flags this year partly due to the fact that GAD’s best
estimate basis has strengthened, and assets and liabilities have increased
relative to core spending
b) the asset shock metric (linked to core spending) is not causing the same
issues for the Met funds as at 2016
c) there is still a focus on consistency, but a more holistic and less “name
and shame” approach is planned; however, many aspects of the reporting
are still being decided.
d) it is expected that approaches taken to allow for the potential costs of
McCloud will be compared under the consistency comparison.
e) there will be some follow up to the recommendation in the 2016 report in
relation to academies, although this may be less of an issue this time
given DfE has other priorities and there is a general view that
academisation has materially slowed down
f) GAD will be including some thoughts on what they will expect at the 2022
valuation in respect of climate change.

50.

The actuarial firms will be asked for their views on academies too.
Business continuity

51.

The Pension Regulator’s draft new Code of Practice includes a module on
business continuity which is identified as best practice for public service
pension schemes. Integral to this module is the provision that the governing
Page 7 of 9

Page 198

body (read administering authority for the LGPS) should 'have a resilient
business continuity plan (BCP) that sets out key actions in case of a range of
events occur that impact the scheme’s operations'.
52.

Whilst developing a fund-specific plan is an invaluable outcome, business
continuity management can no longer be considered as a single business
recovery document, rather it is just one component in a fund’s overall
reaction, response and resilience capability, and should be part of its
established governance and risk management framework.



53.

Safeguarding Implications
None.
Public Health Implications

54.

The Enfield Pension Fund indirectly contributes to the delivery of Public
Health priorities in the borough.
Equalities Impact of the Proposal

55.

The Council is committed to Fairness for All to apply throughout all work and
decisions made. The Council serves the whole borough fairly, tackling
inequality through the provision of excellent services for all, targeted to meet
the needs of each area. The Council will listen to and understand the needs of
all its communities.
Environmental and Climate Change Considerations

56.

There are no environmental and climate change considerations arising from
this report.
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not
taken

57.

This is a noting report.
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that
will be taken to manage these risks

58.

Risks arising from poor administration tend to be reputational but can include
additional expenditure through inaccurate benefits, delays in collecting
contribution, fines and interest on late payments. This and future reports are
designed to provide the Committee with assurance that pension risks are
being adequately managed.
Financial Implications

59.

There are no direct financial implications arising from the contents of this
report.
Legal Implications
Page 8 of 9

Page 199

60.

The PPIC is required to consider pension matters and ensure that the Council
meets its statutory duties in respect of the fund. It is appropriate having regard
to these matters for the Committee to receive information from the Pensions
Administration team about the administration functions of the pension fund.
The report also provides the Committee with updates on various other matters
relevant to the administration of the Pension Fund. There are no immediate
legal implications arising from the report.

61.

When carrying out its functions as the administering authority of its pension
fund, the Council must have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful
conduct under the Equality Act 2010, the need to advance equality of
opportunity and the need to foster good relations between persons who share
a protected characteristic and those who don’t (the public sector duty).
Workforce Implications

62.

The employer’s contribution is a significant element of the Council’s budget
and consequently any improvement in investment performance will allow the
Council to meet this obligation easily and could also make resources available
for other corporate priorities.
Property Implications

63.

None
Other Implications

64.

None
Options Considered

65.

No alternative options considered.
Conclusion

66.

The Pension Policy and Investment Committee is recommended to note the
updates provided in this report

Report Author:

Bola Tobun
Finance Manager – Pensions & Treasury
Bola.Tobun@enfield.gov.uk
Tel no. 020 8132 1588

Date of report

15th March 2021

Appendices
None
Background Papers
AON - Local Government Newsletter

Page 9 of 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 201

Agenda Item 10

.

London Borough of Enfield
PENSION POLICY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
Meeting Date: 10 June 2021

Subject: Pension Fund Business Plan and PPIC Work Plan for 2021/22
Cabinet Member:

Cllr Maguire

Executive Director:

Fay Hammond

Key Decision:

[

]

Purpose of Report
1.

The purpose of this report is to review the business plan for the Pension
Fund that outlines the Fund’s goals and objectives in delivering the Council’s
statutory function as the administering authority of the London Borough of
Enfield Pension Fund.

2.

The Executive Director of Resources is the Section 151 Officer and therefore
has a statutory responsibility for the proper financial affairs of the Council
including Fund matters.

3.

The London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund represents an asset to the
Council in terms of its ability for attracting and retaining staff who deliver
services to residents. The adoption of a Work Plan should lead to more
effective management of the Fund.
Proposal(s)

4.

Pension Policy and Investments Committee are recommended to:
a) note and approve the Business Plan attached as Appendix 1 to this report
and
b) note and approve the revised work plan for 2021/22 attached as Appendix
2.
Reason for Proposal(s)

5.

Under the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations, the
Council is required to maintain a Pension Fund for its employees and other
scheduled bodies as defined in the Regulations. The Regulations also
empower the Fund to admit employees of other defined (e.g. other public
bodies, housing corporations) bodies into the Fund.

Page 202

6.

The proposed business plan and budget for the Fund has been put together
to assist in the management of the Fund and to ensure that the Council is
able to perform its role as the administering authority in a structured way. The
Business Plan and the budget are not intended to cover all aspects of
Pension Fund administration and management; rather they are designed to
assist with meeting part of its delegated function as administering authority to
the Fund.

7.

The Pension Policy and Investment Committee is charged with meeting the
duties of the Council in respect of the Pension Fund. Therefore, it is
appropriate that the Committee formally adopts a work plan to assist with the
discharge of its duties.
Relevance to the Council’s Corporate Plan

8.

Good homes in well-connected neighbourhoods.

9.

Build our Economy to create a thriving place.

10.

Sustain Strong and healthy Communities.
Background
OVERVIEW OF THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

11.

The Council has specific delegated functions that it has to fulfil as the
administering authority to the Pension Fund. This requires that a number of
monitoring and management activities are undertaken to ensure that it fully
discharges its oversight and governance responsibilities to the Fund.

12.

The key decision making for, and management of, the Fund has been
delegated by the London Borough of Enfield (the Council) to a formal Pension
Committee, supported by officers of the Council and advisers to the Pension
Fund. The Section 151 Officer has a statutory responsibility for the proper
financial affairs of the Council including Fund matters. A local pension board
is in place to assist with:


securing compliance of Fund matters and



ensuring the efficient and effective governance and administration of the
Fund.

13.

It is appropriate that the Committee should set out how it intends to fulfil its
obligations as the delegated authority appointed by the Council to be
responsible for the Fund. Adopting a planned approach should make
monitoring easier for the Committee and ensure that activities critical to the
effective management of the Fund are being undertaken.

14.

The primary objectives of the Fund are sub-divided into specific areas of
governance, funding, investments, administration and communications
which are covered in turn below.
Page 2 of 9

Page 203

15.

Governance Objectives
i) All staff, Pension Board and Pension Committee Members charged with
the financial administration and decision-making with regard to the Fund
are fully equipped with the knowledge and skills to discharge the duties
and responsibilities allocated to them.
ii) The Fund is aware that good governance means an organisation is open
in its dealings and readily provides information to interested parties.
iii) To understand and ensure compliance with all relevant legislation.
iv) To ensure the Fund aims to be at the forefront of best practice for LGPS
funds
v) Ensures the Fund manages Conflicts of Interest

16.

Funding Objectives
vi) To ensure the long-term solvency of the Fund.
vii) To help employers recognise and manage pension liabilities as they
accrue.
viii)To minimise the degree of short-term change in the level of each
employer’s contributions where the Administering Authority considers it
reasonable to do so.
ix) To use reasonable measures to reduce the risk to other employers and
ultimately to the Council Taxpayer from an employer defaulting on its
pension obligations. (Including: addressing the different characteristics of
disparate employers or groups of employers to the extent that this is
practical and cost effective).

17.

Investment Objectives
x) Optimising the return on investment consistent with a prudent level of risk
xi) Ensure that there are sufficient assets to meet the liabilities as they fall
due (i.e. focus on cash flow requirements)
xii) Ensure the suitability of assets in relation to the needs of the Fund (i.e.
delivering the required return).
xiii)Ensuring that the Fund is properly managed (and where appropriate being
prepared to change).
xiv) Set an appropriate investment strategy for the Fund to allow the
Administering Authority to seek to maximise returns (and minimise the cost
of benefits) for an acceptable level of risk’). Ensure return seeking assets
are in line with Funding objectives.

18.

Administration Objective
xv) To deliver an efficient, quality and value for money service to its scheme
employers and scheme members.

19.

Communications Objective
Ensure that all stakeholders are kept informed of developments within the
Pension Fund. Ensuring that all parties are aware of both their rights and
obligations within the Fund.
WORK PLAN

Page 3 of 9

Page 204

20.

In designing the work plan, the priorities of the Council as the administering
authority of the Fund have been considered and incorporated into the Fund
Business Plan. The Pension Policy and Investment Committee Work Plan
has therefore been developed using the business plan attached as appendix
1 to this report.

21.

Following on from our ESG position with an increased expectation from
cabinet/council, the Committee need to define ESG targets, develop and
issue responsible investment policy to assist in monitoring the Fund ESG
positions. Two workshops will be dedicated to work on this prior to September
and November meetings.

22.

An annual Work Plan will be presented to the Committee for agreement. The
Work Plan should be presented to the Committee by the last Committee
meeting of the prior financial year to which the Work Plan applies.
Safeguarding Implications

23.

The report provides clear evidence of sound financial management, efficient
use of resources, promotion of income generation and adherence to Best
Value and good performance management.

24.

Public Health Implications

25.

The Enfield Pension Fund indirectly contributes to the delivery of Public
Health priorities in the borough.
Equalities Impact of the Proposal

26.

The Council is committed to Fairness for All to apply throughout all work and
decisions made. The Council serves the whole borough fairly, tackling
inequality through the provision of excellent services for all, targeted to meet
the needs of each area. The Council will listen to and understand the needs of
all its communities.
Environmental and Climate Change Considerations

27.

There are no environmental and climate change considerations arising from
this report.
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not
taken

28.

A Business plan, work plan and budget should result in a more efficient
process of managing the Pension Fund.

29.

The adoption of a work plan will minimise risks relating to the management of
the Fund and should assist in managing down the risk of non-compliance with
the Council’s obligations under the Regulation as the administering authority
of the London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund.

Page 4 of 9

Page 205

30.

Lack of robust governance inevitably involves a degree of risk. The successful
identification, monitoring and control of risk are therefore central to the
Council’s pension fund management.
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that
will be taken to manage these risks

31.

Not approving the report recommendations and not adhering to the overriding
legal requirements could impact on meeting the ongoing objectives of the
Enfield Pension Fund.
Financial Implications

32.

This report revised the work plan with updated timetable for the development
of the Fund’s 2021 Investment Strategy review. The development of a robust
investment strategy helps the Fund to take an ordered and prudent approach
to the management of its assets, helping to manage the long term costs
associated with the Pension Fund.

33.

Spending time developing the investment strategy helps to ensure that the
Committee are fulfilling their responsibilities as quasi Trustees of the Fund
and that the Fund’s investment objectives and policies are clearly set out in
line with the Local Government Pensions Scheme (Management and
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016.
Legal Implications

34.

Administering authorities are now bound by the Local Government Pension
Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 which
have replaced the 2009 Regulations. These regulations set out an
administering authority’s statutory duties in ensuring the proper administration
and management of its pension fund.

35.

The Council must take proper advice at reasonable intervals about its
investments and must consider such advice when taking any steps in relation
to its investments.

36.

One of the functions of the Pension Policy and Investment Committee is to
meet the Council’s duties in respect of investment matters. It is appropriate
having regard to these matters, for the Committee to receive information
about budgetary matters. The Committee’s consideration of the information in
the report contributes towards the achievement of the Council’s statutory
duties.

37.

Members of this Committee are required by the Council’s Constitution to
consider pension matters and meet the various statutory obligations and the
duties of the Council. This Work Plan provides for certain statutory
requirements to be met and for members to be well trained and kept up to
date and thus fit for purpose.

38.

When making decisions regarding investment of pension funds, the Council
must have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful conduct under the
Page 5 of 9

Page 206

Equality Act 2010, the need to advance equality of opportunity and the need
to foster good relations between persons who share a protected characteristic
and those who don’t (the public sector duty).

Workforce Implications
39.

The employer’s contribution is a significant element of the Council’s budget
and consequently any improvement in investment performance will allow the
Council to meet this obligation easily and could also make resources available
for other corporate priorities.
Property Implications

40.

None
Other Implications

41.

None
Options Considered

42.

The development and implementation of a work plan should ensure that a
structured approach is in place for the monitoring and management of the
Pension Fund. This should in turn ensure that the Council meets its statutory
obligations as administering authority to the Fund. However, the Committee is
under no obligation to adopt a work plan in carrying out its duties.

Report Author:

Bola Tobun
Finance Manager – Pensions & Treasury
Bola.Tobun@enfield.gov.uk
Tel no. 020 8132 1588

Date of report

14th May 2021

Appendices
Appendix 1 – Enfield Pension Fund Business Plan
Appendix 2 – Pension Policy and Investment Committee Work Plan for 2021/22
Appendix 3 – Asset Managers Monthly Meeting Schedule
Background Papers - None

Page 6 of 9

Page 207

Appendix 1

BUSINESS PLAN 2021-2024
In order to meet the objectives of the Pension Fund, the Pensions Board has to
review the business plan and the Pensions Committee has to review and agree the
business plan for the period 2021-2024. This has to be put into the context of a
period of significant uncertainty for the Fund, which reflects not just ongoing volatility
in investment markets, but also measures for structural reform which could have a
fundamental impact on the overall management of the Fund.
The purpose of the business plan is to:
a) explain the background and objectives of London Borough of Enfield for the
management of the Enfield Pension Fund
b) document the priorities and improvements to be implemented by the pension
administration service during the next three years to help achieve those
objectives
c) enable progress and performance to be monitored in relation to those
priorities
d) provide staff, partners and customers with a clear vision for the next three
years.

Set out in the table below is the three year business plan for the Pension Fund:

2021/22

Governance Objectives
Draft Pension Fund
Accounts
Approve Final Pension
Fund Annual Report &
Accounts
Employer Forum
Review Risk Register
TPR Code of Practice
Governance Policy
Review
Self-Assessment &
Review of Advisers
Induction Training for
New Members
Member’s Training
Training Policy Review

2022/23

2023/24

Primary
Objective
Reference (s)

March - May

March - May

March - May

1,2,3,7,13,15,16

June November

June November

June November

1,2,3,7,13,15,16

November January
Quarterly

November January
Quarterly

November January
Quarterly

3,4,7,8,9,15,16

Quarterly
December March
December March
May – July
(As Required)
Quarterly
November –
February

Quarterly
December March
December March
May – July
(As Required)
Quarterly
November –
February

Quarterly
DecemberMarch
December –
March
May – July
(As Required)
Quarterly
November –
February

1,2,5,6,7,8,9,10,
11,12,13
1,2,3,4,5
1,2,3,4,5
1,2,3,4,5
1, 2, 4,15
1,2,4,15
1,3,4
Primary

Page 7 of 9

Page 208

2021/22
Pensions Board –Annual
Reporting
Review Performance,
funding and budget
AVC Review
Review Reporting
Breaches Policy
Review Conflicts of
Interest Policy Review
Creation & Review
Cessation Policy
Funding Objectives
Preparation and Update
of Actuarial Valuation
Review of Funding
Strategy Statement
Investments Objectives
Review Investment
Strategy Statement
Investment in Low
Carbon
Investment in Clean
Energy, Renewable
Energy and or Private
Debt
Review Investment
Consultancy Contract
Review Actuarial
Services Contract
Strategic Asset Allocation
– Regular Review
Carbon Footprint Audit
Pension Fund Treasury
Management Strategy
Investment Performance
Review
Individual Manager
Review
Asset/Liability Monitoring
Collaborative workingLondon CIV

2022/23

2023/24

Objective
Reference (s)

Mar - July

Mar - July

Mar - July

1 - 16

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

1 - 16

September –
January
September

1,2,3,4,5

September

September –
January
September

September

September

September

5

April - June

April - June

April - June

5,6,7,8,9,15,16

As Required

As Required

As Required

5,6,7,8,9,15,16

As Required

As Required

As Required

5,6,7,8,9,15,16

February September
July September
July December

As required

As required

1,3,10,11,12,13,
14 ,15,16
1,2,4,10,11,12,
13,14,15
1,2,4,10,11,12,
13,14,15

November /
December
September

June

June

September

September

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

Dec - June
February June
Quarterly

Dec - June
February June
Quarterly

Dec - June
February June
Quarterly

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

5,10,11,12,13,
14,15
5,10,11,12,13,
14,15
1,4,6,8,9,10,11,
12,13,14
5,6,7,8,9,15,16
1,9,10,11,12,13,
14,15
1,2,4,10,11,12,
13,14,15
1,2,4,10,11,12,
13,14,15
5,10,11,12,13,
14,15,16
1,2,4,10,11,12,
13,14,15
Primary

Page 8 of 9

10,15,16

Page 209

Pension Administration
Pension Administration
Strategy
McCloud Remedial
Judgement Monitoring
GMP Reconciliation
Employer data
Improvements
Administering Authority
Discretions Review
Admitted Bodies Policy
Employing Authority
Discretions
Communications
Annual Benefit
Statements
Auto-Enrolment
/Workplace Pensions
Communications Policy
Review
Annual General Meeting
(AGM)

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

April - June
June December
AprilSeptember
Ongoing

January –
March
June December
AprilSeptember
Ongoing

January –
March
June December

Ongoing

1,2,3,7,9,15,16

April - June

April - June

April - June

September

September

September

April - June

April - June

April - June

1,2,3,4,5,9,10,
15,16
1,2,3,4,5,9,10,15,
16
1,2,3,4,5,9

August

August

August

15,16

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

1,2,3,15,16

JanuaryMarch
September/
October

JanuaryMarch
June/July

JanuaryMarch
June/July

1,2,3,15,16

Page 9 of 9

Objective
Reference (s)

1,2,3,7,9,15,16
1,2,3,7,9,15,16
1,2,3,15,16

1,2,3,4,7,8,9,15,
16

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 211
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 217
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 235
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 241
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 245

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 14

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 249
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 267
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

